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Q Technology (Group) Company Limited (the “Company”,
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) is a leading camera
and fingerprint recognition module manufacturer in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”). The Group is primarily engaged in
the design, research and development, manufacture and sales of
camera modules and fingerprint recognition modules with focus on
mid-to-high end camera and fingerprint recognition module market
for Chinese branded smart phone and tablet PC manufacturers.
The Group is one of the first few manufacturers in the PRC to
use chip on board (“COB”) and chip on flex (“COF”) assembly
technologies in the manufacture of camera modules, as well as
to produce ultra-thin camera modules with resolution of 16 mega
pixels and above, dual camera modules and fingerprint recognition
modules with various technologies on a mass production scale.
Currently, the Group’s product mix covers camera modules
ranging from 3 mega pixels to 20 mega pixels, dual camera
modules, fingerprint recognition modules and outdoor sports
camera modules. The Group is dedicated to become a technology
company, which provides machine vision and human vision to
mobile terminals, through continuously building up capabilities of
optics, computing vision and deep learning.
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Five-Year Financial Summary

A FMBHE

(In Renminbi (“RMB’) thousands, except per share amounts or

otherwise indicated)

For the Year ended 31 December

(ARETr BREEXSHIEHEI)

BEZE+t=-HA=1+—BLEE

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
Ll —T—FF 2 —T-NF —T—= —T—=F
Consolidated
=

Operating results RexE
Revenue WA 4,991,158 2,202,395 2,161,084 1,410,613 637,786
Gross profit E7 422,437 240,571 352,579 234,046 86,861
Finance costs AR (5,548) (9,948) (23,171) (9,010) (5,307)
Profit before taxation B 3 AR 7 214,587 114,701 239,077 188,172 54,322
Income tax charge FTi (23,832) (12,702) (43,571) (25,011) (3,852)
Profit for the year FERBEF 190,755 101,999 195,506 163,161 50,470

Attributable to: -

Owners of the Company VNN 190,755 101,999 195,506 163,161 50,470
Non-controlling interests RS - = = = =
190,755 101,999 195,506 163,161 50,470

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2016



Five-Year Financial Summary

A FRBHRE

(In Renminbi (“RMB’) thousands, except per share amounts or

otherwise indicated)

For the year ended 31 December

(ARE T BREEXSHIEHEI)

BE+-RA=1+t—-HLFE

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
-l — T 2 —E-m§g =% T
Consolidated
At
Basic earnings per share ERgRAF
(RMB cents) (ARES) 18.4 10.1 31.8 32.6 N/A
Diluted earnings per share HEE kAT
(RMB cents) (ARED) 18.1 9.8 29.6 30.9 N/A
Assets and liabilities BERERE
Non-current assets EnDEE 826,185 458,930 359,954 294,174 236,348
Current assets MENEE 3,694,144 1,536,731 1,942,579 1,468,266 885,144
Total assets BEEHRE 4,520,329 1,990,661 2,302,533 1,762,440 1,121,492
Bank borrowings RITER 335,432 142,164 712,679 427 581 84,527
Other liabilities HtB & 2,616,932 630,940 465,566 1,066,260 935,613
Total liabilities BEAE 2,952,364 773,104 1,178,245 1,493,841 1,020,140
Net assets EEFE 1,567,965 1,217,657 1,124,288 268,599 101,352
Total equity ERBE 1,567,965 1,217,657 1,124,288 268,599 101,352
Key Financial Ratio TERBLLE
Gross profit margin (%) E R (%) 8.5% 10.9% 16.30% 16.60% 13.60%
Net profit margin (%) %@%IJ%&%) 3.8% 4.6% 9.00% 11.60% 7.90%
Gearing ratio (%) (Note 1) BEARAEHE (%)
~(MiEE1) 21.4% 11.7% 63.40% 213.60% 144.60%
Rate of return on common FEEERE %)
stockholders’ equity (%) N 12.2% 8.4% 17.4% 60.7% 49.8%
Current ratio (times) MENLE (&)
(Note 2) (Hfitz) 1.3 2.0 1.7 1.1 0.9
Quick ratio (times) REIL X (£F)
(Note 3) (#1#23) 1.0 1.7 1.5 1.0 0.8
Net asset value per share ARFIBRERA A
attributable to owners of ELERTFEE
the Company 1.45 1.18 1.12 0.54 0.20
Price per share as +=-A=+—H
at 31 December (HKD) _BREROEE) 4.00 1.59 2.20 N/A N/A
Price earnings ratio (Note 4) ~ T & X (ffi#4) 20.29 13.19 5.46 N/A N/A
Market capitalization as +-A=+—8
at 31 December miE
(HKD thousand) (B&FT) 4,327,084 1,634,447 2,200,000 N/A N/A
Dividend per share BRRE
(RMB cents) (ANRES) 3.50 4.06 - N/A
Dividend yield (%) IR B e & 1.21% 2.1% - N/A
EBITDA (Note 5) BHITE REHEA
& (Hrats) 284,155 167,098 293,574 207,297 70,134
Note 1:  Gearing ratio represents bank borrowings and related parties’ A/at7 - ;ﬁfﬁ% J:t%{'éjﬁjﬁjﬁ K AR
loans divided by total equity as at the end of the year. ¥ ERFRIAERESARRE - )
Note 2:  Current ratio represents total current assets divided by total Hiit2 - ﬁiﬁtt%?‘aﬁﬁ%ﬁ? BERNEZE
current liabilities as of the end of the year. . ¢ RE) BN ﬁ E iu Ee] ' .
Note 3:  Quick ratio represents total current assets less inventories ~ M/at3 + EEBNLFIFRE & EMBERMEFR
divided by total current liabilities as of the end of the year. N %%Mﬁ:@fﬁ?ﬁﬁ’%ﬁ =} E@@%’E S
Note 4:  Price earnings ratio represents the market price of shares as of Htit4 - m BEIBFRREMER AFARIK
the end of the year divided by earnings per share. . m ° . . N
Note 5:  EBITDA represents earnings before interest and tax (EBIT) + MA7&t5 - EBlTDAjEE‘ RATAEEBT)+ITE &
depreciation cost + amortization cost. R+#HEER-
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Five-Year Financial Summary
EEHBHRE
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Dear Shareholders,

We are very honored to present to the shareholders the annual
results for the year ended 31 December 2016 (the “Year”), the third
annual results of Q Technology (Group) Company Limited since its
listing on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Stock Exchange”).

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the Year, although the global and the PRC economies
encountered more fluctuations due to influences from various
aspects and many sectors faced considerable difficulties and
challenges, however, the global mobile phones market still
maintained a stable growth. China’s smartphone brands received
higher recognition from customers on product design reputation
and cost/price performance through continuous product innovation
and effective marketing measures, hence, the market share of
various leading brands increased significantly, and the market
share of China’s smartphone brands increased steadily and the
supply chain of China’s smartphone brands also achieved a stable
development. Through relentless efforts, the Group established
cooperative relationships with China’s major smartphone brands
which had greatly improved our customer base and rapidly
enhanced our product portfolio, and the Group was able to
maintain its strong competitiveness in the intense competitive
market. During the Year, the Group’s business achieved a rapid
growth.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

ERRE

Looking back to the year of 2016, with the trust and support of
our core customers and the relentless efforts of all our employees,
both the sales volume and revenue of the Group increased rapidly,
among which, the sales volume of camera modules reached
approximately 177.40 million units, representing an increase
of approximately 80.3% as compared with that of 2015, while
the sales volume of fingerprint recognition modules reached
approximately 20.94 million units, representing an increase of over
2,000 times than that of 2015. The revenue recorded by the Group
amounted to approximately RMB4,991,158,000, representing an
increase of approximately 126.6% as compared with that of 2015.
The year-on-year growth in revenue was faster than that of the
sales volume, mainly due to the surge of average selling price of
camera modules as a result of the significant enhancement of the
product pixel mix of camera modules, and the average selling price
of fingerprint recognition modules which recorded a rapid growth
in 2016 is higher than the overall product average selling price of
2015. Thus, the overall product average selling price increased by
approximately RMB2.78 (or approximately 12.4%) as compared
with that of 2015 to approximately RMB25.16. The average
selling price of camera modules increased by approximately
RMB1.71 (or approximately 7.7%) as compared with that of
2015 to approximately RMB24.09, mainly due to the significant
enhancement of product pixel mix of camera modules and the
commencement of mass production of dual camera modules.

During the Year, the gross profit margin of the Group was
approximately 8.5%, representing a decrease of approximately
2.4 percentage points as compared with approximately 10.9% of
2015. The decrease in gross profit margin was mainly attributable
to: the drop-off range of the average selling price of same product
resulting from the intensified market competition exceeded the
drop-off range of the average purchase price of the raw materials
of the product. Further, various production raw materials of
the Group were purchased from overseas and settled in US
dollars (“USD”). Due to the depreciation of the exchange rate of
RMB against USD by approximately 6.8% during the Year, the
purchasing costs of raw materials was further pushed up and,
hence, increased the proportion of the composite costs of raw
materials in the total revenue of the Group.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2016
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During the year under review, the Group has proactively responded
to the market demand for high pixel products and developed
the mid-to-high end camera modules with resolution of 8 mega
pixels and above. The total sales volume of camera modules with
resolution of 8 mega pixels and above significantly increased
by approximately 78.27 million units to approximately 117.16
million units as compared with that of 2015, which accounted
for approximately 66.0% of the Group’s total sales volume of
camera modules for the Year (2015: approximately 39.5%), and
approximately 81.2% of the Group’s total revenue of camera
modules for the Year (2015: approximately 55.2%). The sales
volume of high-end camera modules with resolution of 13 mega
pixels and above has significantly increased by approximately
35.82 million units to approximately 41.48 million units as
compared with that of 2015, which accounted for approximately
23.4% of the Group’s total sales volume of camera modules for
the Year (2015: approximately 5.8%), and approximately 39.8% of
the Group’s total revenue of camera modules for the Year (2015:
approximately 13.4%). The rapid increase in the sales volume and
proportion of mid-to-high end camera modules has demonstrated
the increasing market recognition of the Group’s high-end
products, which made the Group to be more competitive in the
high pixels products segment and laid a solid foundation for further
increasing the sales volume of products with resolution of 13 mega
pixels and above as well as the dual camera modules in future.

Meanwhile, the sales volume of fingerprint recognition
modules amounted to approximately 20.94 million units (2015:
approximately 7,000 units), which accounted for approximately
10.6% of the Group’s total sales volume for the Year, and
approximately 14.4% of the Group’s total revenue for the Year,
among which, the fingerprint recognition modules that adopted
cover plate technique accounted for approximately 35.3% of the
total sales volume of fingerprint recognition modules. The rapid
increase in the sales volume of fingerprint recognition modules
was, on one hand, benefited from the rapid growth in demand
from smartphone brands for fingerprint recognition modules,
and, on the other hand, it also demonstrated the high market
recognition of the Group’s comprehensive ability, which laid a solid
foundation for further increasing the market share of the Group in
fingerprint recognition modules in future.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

ERRE

During the Year, the Group continues to place great emphasis
on maintaining and expanding its domestic and overseas quality
customer base. On one hand, the Group maintained close
cooperative relationship with its core customers, and no core
customers was lost. On the other hand, subsequent to the
establishment of cooperative relationships with several customers
such as Xiaomi, Asus and Chino in 2015, the Group also
developed various customers such as Huawei and Motorola during
the Year, and established supply cooperative relationships with
these renowned enterprises for camera modules and/or fingerprint
recognition modules products, which demonstrated the Group’s
good customer relationship management and sales capabilities.
The optimization of customer base laid a good foundation for the
subsequent strengthening of business development of fingerprint
recognition modules, camera modules with resolution of 13 mega
pixels and above and dual camera modules.

During the Year, the Group continuously reviewed and improved
its production know-how and was dedicated in developing more
advanced functionalities and products. On one hand, the Group
established cooperative relationships with several companies such
as MTK and Qualcomm on dual camera modules algorithm to
further enhance the Group’s capability of developing dual camera
modules products, which enables the Group to become one of the
few earliest companies in the mass production and sales of dual
camera modules in Mainland China, and one of the few companies
able to mass produce dual camera modules with various
solutions such as RGB+RGB, RGB+MONO and WIDE+TELE
in Mainland China. On the other hand, the Group constantly
enhanced its research and development (‘R&D”) efforts in the
leading technologies such as gesture recognition, light sensing
recognition, iris recognition and super-large aperture, which
enables the Group to become one of the few camera modules
manufacturers in the industry with leading technologies such as
dual camera, PDAF, gesture recognition, iris recognition, high-end
modules with resolution of 16 mega pixels and above, and F1.7
large aperture. The shipments of dual camera modules, high-end
modules with resolution of 16 mega pixels and above, fingerprint
recognition modules and outdoor sports camera modules have
already achieved bulk deliveries.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2016
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AWARDS AND HONORS

During the Year, we continued to adhere to our customer-oriented
service strategies, always considered the provision of good
personal experience for customers as our operation direction
and devoted our best efforts to satisfy customers’ needs in
product R&D, sales delivery, after-sales service, product quality
and technology innovation, and earned positive recognition
of the Group’s products and services from the industry, local
governments and our customers.

In April 2016, the trademark “Q Tech and Q Image” used by
Kunshan Q Technology Limited (‘Kunshan QT China”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Group, received the 2015 “Jiangsu
Renowned Trademark” honorary title granted by Jiangsu
Administration for Industry and Commerce. The honorary title is
valid for three years and is effective from 28 December 2015.

In April 2016, the “Q Tech camera modules” manufactured and
sold by Kunshan QT China won the 2015 “Jiangsu Famous-brand
Product” honorary title granted by Jiangsu Strategic Top Brand
Promotion Committee. The honorary title is valid for three years
and is effective from December 2015 to December 2018.

In December 2016, Kunshan QT China won the “2016 ZTE Global
Best Partner Award” granted by ZTE Corporation. This is the fifth
consecutive year that Kunshan QT China has won the said award.

In January 2017, Kunshan QT China won the “Quality Advance
Award” granted by Huagin Telecom Technology Co., Ltd..

In January 2017, Kunshan QT China won the “Quality
Management Standard Award” granted by Huawei Device
Company Limited.

The aforementioned awards and honors had reflected the high
recognition by local governments and our core customers, which
has further enhanced our confidence in driving the product
mix optimization strategies and providing customers with good
personal experience, and also further strengthened our confidence
in maintaining a sound operation.
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PROSPECTS

Although the operating results of the Group in 2016 recorded
a significant growth as compared with that of 2015, and the
customer base and product mix were significantly optimized,
however, the Directors are also well aware that 2017 will still
be full of challenges. On one hand, the global macro poalitical
and economic situation remains unpredictable and fraught with
uncertainties, the growth in overseas and China’s consumer
demand are still difficult to ascertain, uncertainties in the prospect
of the intelligent mobile communication terminal industry also
remains high under the macro-economic environment, and
the growth rate of mobile phones and tablet PC industry may
be lower. On the other hand, major customers of the Group
are brand smartphone manufacturers in Mainland China, while
overseas mobile phone brands are actively scrambling for market
share, the impact of new products that will be launched by those
overseas brands on China’s brand smartphone manufacturers
is unpredictable and our existing customers may be unable to
continue to record its growth rate as in the past, thereby affecting
our shipments. Moreover, affected by multiple factors such as
politics, economy, and supply and demand, the trend of RMB
against USD may still be fluctuating. As it is difficult to reverse in
the short run the Group’s business pattern that comprises of sales
revenue settled in RMB but overseas purchases of various core
components settled in USD, accordingly, the task on management
of exchange risks remains heavy. However, the Directors remain
cautiously optimistic about the ongoing demand for camera
modules and fingerprint recognition modules, and believe that:

(i) Camera modules will remain one of the end-consumers’
most concerned smartphone configuration, and consumer
demands for camera modules with enhanced functionality
will continue to remain high, which will lead to continuous
improvement in product specifications. The Group has
obtained the qualification for supplying high pixel products to
the major customers in camera module products, which will
help the Company to further uplift the shipment proportion of
single camera modules with resolution of 13 mega pixels and
above.
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Camera modules are the most important human-machinery
information interactive interface during the Internet of Things
era, which enable the continuous expansion of camera
modules’ application fields. The demand for camera modules
by products such as AR, VR, MR and motor vehicles may
give a new growth potential for the volume expansion of
camera modules.

With the increasingly improved dual camera modules
solutions, a number of global and China’s renowned brands
have already adopted the dual camera modules solutions in
their products and positive feedback from end-consumers
have been received. This may lead to a remarkable
improvement in penetration rate of dual camera modules in
the future and hence will bring new and increased demand for
camera modules.

While personal data privacy protection and mobile payment
become an increasingly important demand for end-
consumers, intelligent mobile communication terminals such
as mobile phones are becoming important personal data
storage and mobile payment instruments for end-consumers.
As such, with the end-consumer’s increasing demand for
higher security for mobile phones, fingerprint recognition
modules are gradually becoming the standard equipment
for smartphones and therefore stimulate the rapid growth
of fingerprint recognition modules business. The Group
has established the supply cooperation with various well-
known brand smartphone manufacturers in China regarding
fingerprint recognition modules, which will contribute to our
continuous efforts in striving for rapid development of the
fingerprint recognition modules business.

In addition to optical design and precision manufacturing,
the sound functionalities of dual/multiple camera modules
have more vital demand for image algorithm. Our related
company established in Chengdu possessed good technical
preparation in image algorithm and with certain customer
resources, and the technical cooperation and customers’
collaborative marketing between the Group and the related
company in precision manufacturing and image algorithm
is likely to favour our expansion in the dual/multiple camera
modules business.

(i)
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Hence, the Directors believe, as opportunities coexist with
challenges, the Group will adhere to the mission of “providing
comprehensive machinery vision and human vision product
solutions for intelligent mobile terminals” to strengthen the
capacity deployment in three aspects, namely optical design,
computing vision and deep learning, continue to enhance the
R&D of new products and new processes, continue to improve
precision manufacturing capability, proactively carry out customer
relationship marketing, aggressively expand overseas renowned
smartphone branded customers and continuously enhance the
core competitiveness of the Group. We will focus on developing
high-end camera modules with resolution of 16 mega pixels and
above and dual camera modules, with an effort to strengthen the
technical cooperation and resource integration in image algorithm
of dual/multiple camera modules, at the same time striving to
achieve a breakthrough in the application of camera modules in
non-mobile-phone sector. The Directors are confident to lead the
Group to embrace the challenges, and make further efforts to
achieve good development and strive to create greater value for
the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEERENwED

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the Year, although the global and the PRC economies
encountered more fluctuations due to influences from various
aspects and many sectors faced considerable difficulties and
challenges, however, the global mobile phones market still
maintained a stable growth. China’s smartphone brands received
higher recognition from customers on product design reputation
and cost/price performance through continuous product innovation
and effective marketing measures, hence, the market share of
various leading brands increased significantly, and the market
share of China’s smartphone brands increased steadily and the
supply chain of China’s smartphone brands also achieved a stable
development. Through relentless efforts, the Group established
cooperative relationships with China’s major smartphone brands
which had greatly improved our customer base and rapidly
enhanced our product portfolio, and the Group was able to
maintain its strong competitiveness in the intense competitive
market. During the Year, the Group’s business achieved a rapid
growth.
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Looking back to the year of 2016, with the trust and support of
our core customers and the relentless efforts of all our employees,
both the sales volume and revenue of the Group increased rapidly,
among which, the sales volume of camera modules reached
approximately 177.40 million units, representing an increase
of approximately 80.3% as compared with that of 2015, while
the sales volume of fingerprint recognition modules reached
approximately 20.94 million units, representing an increase of over
2,000 times than that of 2015. The revenue recorded by the Group
amounted to approximately RMB4,991,158,000, representing an
increase of approximately 126.6% as compared with that of 2015.
The year-on-year growth in revenue was faster than that of the
sales volume, mainly due to the surge of average selling price of
camera modules as a result of the significant enhancement of the
product pixel mix of camera modules, and the average selling price
of fingerprint recognition modules which recorded a rapid growth
in 2016 is higher than the overall product average selling price of
2015. Thus, the overall product average selling price increased by
approximately RMB2.78 (or approximately 12.4%) as compared
with that of 2015 to approximately RMB25.16. The average
selling price of camera modules increased by approximately
RMB1.71 (or approximately 7.7%) as compared with that of
2015 to approximately RMB24.09, mainly due to the significant
enhancement of product pixel mix of camera modules and the
commencement of mass production of dual camera modules.

During the Year, the gross profit margin of the Group was
approximately 8.5%, representing a decrease of approximately
2.4 percentage points as compared with approximately 10.9% of
2015. The decrease in gross profit margin was mainly attributable
to: the drop-off range of the average selling price of same product
resulting from the intensified market competition exceeded the
drop-off range of the average purchase price of the raw materials
of the product. Further, various production raw materials of the
Group were purchased from overseas and settled in USD. Due
to the depreciation of the exchange rate of RMB against USD
by approximately 6.8% during the Year, the purchasing costs of
raw materials was further pushed up and, hence, increased the
proportion of the composite costs of raw materials in the total
revenue of the Group.
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During the year under review, the Group has proactively responded
to the market demand for high pixel products and developed
the mid-to-high end camera modules with resolution of 8 mega
pixels and above. The total sales volume of camera modules with
resolution of 8 mega pixels and above significantly increased
by approximately 78.27 million units to approximately 117.16
million units as compared with that of 2015, which accounted
for approximately 66.0% of the Group’s total sales volume of
camera modules for the Year (2015: approximately 39.5%), and
approximately 81.2% of the Group’s total revenue of camera
modules for the Year (2015: approximately 55.2%). The sales
volume of high-end camera modules with resolution of 13 mega
pixels and above has significantly increased by approximately
35.82 million units to approximately 41.48 million units as
compared with that of 2015, which accounted for approximately
23.4% of the Group’s total sales volume of camera modules for
the Year (2015: approximately 5.8%), and approximately 39.8% of
the Group’s total revenue of camera modules for the Year (2015:
approximately 13.4%). The rapid increase in the sales volume and
proportion of mid-to-high end camera modules has demonstrated
the increasing market recognition of the Group’s high-end
products, which made the Group to be more competitive in the
high pixels products segment and laid a solid foundation for further
increasing the sales volume of products with resolution of 13 mega
pixels and above as well as the dual camera modules in future.

Meanwhile, the sales volume of fingerprint recognition
modules amounted to approximately 20.94 million units (2015:
approximately 7,000 units), which accounted for approximately
10.6% of the Group’s total sales volume for the Year, and
approximately 14.4% of the Group’s total revenue for the Year,
among which, the fingerprint recognition modules that adopted
cover plate technique accounted for approximately 35.3% of the
total sales volume of fingerprint recognition modules. The rapid
increase in the sales volume of fingerprint recognition modules
was, on one hand, benefited from the rapid growth in demand
from smartphone brands for fingerprint recognition modules,
and, on the other hand, it also demonstrated the high market
recognition of the Group’s comprehensive ability, which laid a solid
foundation for further increasing the market share of the Group in
fingerprint recognition modules in future.
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During the Year, the Group continues to place great emphasis
on maintaining and expanding its domestic and overseas quality
customer base. On one hand, the Group maintained close
cooperative relationship with its core customers, and no core
customers was lost. On the other hand, subsequent to the
establishment of cooperative relationships with several customers
such as Xiaomi, Asus and Chino in 2015, the Group also
developed various customers such as Huawei and Motorola during
the Year, and established supply cooperative relationships with
these renowned enterprises for camera modules and/or fingerprint
recognition modules products, which demonstrated the Group’s
good customer relationship management and sales capabilities.
The optimization of customer base laid a good foundation for the
subsequent strengthening of business development of fingerprint
recognition modules, camera modules with resolution of 13 mega
pixels and above and dual camera modules.

During the Year, the Group continuously reviewed and improved
its production know-how and was dedicated in developing more
advanced functionalities and products. On one hand, the Group
established cooperative relationships with several companies such
as MTK and Qualcomm on dual camera modules algorithm to
further enhance the Group’s capability of developing dual camera
modules products, which enables the Group to become one of the
few earliest companies in the mass production and sales of dual
camera modules in Mainland China, and one of the few companies
able to mass produce dual camera modules with various solutions
such as RGB+RGB, RGB+MONO and WIDE+TELE in Mainland
China. On the other hand, the Group constantly enhanced its R&D
efforts in the leading technologies such as gesture recognition,
light sensing recognition, iris recognition and super-large aperture,
which enables the Group to become one of the few camera
modules manufacturers in the industry with leading technologies
such as dual camera, PDAF, gesture recognition, iris recognition,
high-end modules with resolution of 16 mega pixels and above,
and F1.7 large aperture. The shipments of dual camera modules,
high-end modules with resolution of 16 mega pixels and above,
fingerprint recognition modules and outdoor sports camera
modules have already achieved bulk deliveries.
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AWARDS AND HONORS

During the Year, we continued to adhere to our customer-oriented
service strategies, always considered the provision of good
personal experience for customers as our operation direction
and devoted our best efforts to satisfy customers’ needs in
product R&D, sales delivery, after-sales service, product quality
and technology innovation, and earned positive recognition
of the Group’s products and services from the industry, local
governments and our customers.

In April 2016, the trademark “Q Tech and Q Image” used by
Kunshan QT China, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group,
received the 2015 “Jiangsu Renowned Trademark” honorary title
granted by Jiangsu Administration for Industry and Commerce.
The honorary title is valid for three years and is effective from 28
December 2015.

In April 2016, the “Q Tech camera modules” manufactured and
sold by Kunshan QT China won the 2015 “Jiangsu Famous-brand
Product” honorary title granted by Jiangsu Strategic Top Brand
Promotion Committee. The honorary title is valid for three years
and is effective from December 2015 to December 2018.

In December 2016, Kunshan QT China won the “2016 ZTE Global
Best Partner Award” granted by ZTE Corporation. This is the fifth
consecutive year that Kunshan QT China has won the said award.

In January 2017, Kunshan QT China won the “Quality Advance
Award” granted by Huagin Telecom Technology Co., Ltd..

In January 2017, Kunshan QT China won the “Quality
Management Standard Award” granted by Huawei Device
Company Limited.

The aforementioned awards and honors had reflected the high
recognition by local governments and our core customers, which
has further enhanced our confidence in driving the product
mix optimization strategies and providing customers with good
personal experience, and also further strengthened our confidence
in maintaining a sound operation.
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PROSPECTS

Although the operating results of the Group in 2016 recorded
a significant growth as compared with that of 2015, and the
customer base and product mix were significantly optimized,
however, the Directors are also well aware that 2017 will still
be full of challenges. On one hand, the global macro poalitical
and economic situation remains unpredictable and fraught with
uncertainties, the growth in overseas and China’s consumer
demand are still difficult to ascertain, uncertainties in the prospect
of the intelligent mobile communication terminal industry also
remains high under the macro-economic environment, and
the growth rate of mobile phones and tablet PC industry may
be lower. On the other hand, major customers of the Group
are brand smartphone manufacturers in Mainland China, while
overseas mobile phone brands are actively scrambling for market
share, the impact of new products that will be launched by those
overseas brands on China’s brand smartphone manufacturers
is unpredictable and our existing customers may be unable to
continue to record its growth rate as in the past, thereby affecting
our shipments. Moreover, affected by multiple factors such as
politics, economy, and supply and demand, the trend of RMB
against USD may still be fluctuating. As it is difficult to reverse in
the short run the Group’s business pattern that comprises of sales
revenue settled in RMB but overseas purchases of various core
components settled in USD, accordingly, the task on management
of exchange risks remains heavy. However, the Directors remain
cautiously optimistic about the ongoing demand for camera
modules and fingerprint recognition modules, and believe that:

(i) Camera modules will remain one of the end-consumers’
most concerned smartphone configuration, and consumer
demands for camera modules with enhanced functionality
will continue to remain high, which will lead to continuous
improvement in product specifications. The Group has
obtained the qualification for supplying high pixel products to
the major customers in camera module products, which will
help the Company to further uplift the shipment proportion of
single camera modules with resolution of 13 mega pixels and
above.
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Camera modules are the most important human-machinery
information interactive interface during the Internet of Things
era, which enable the continuous expansion of camera
modules’ application fields. The demand for camera modules
by products such as AR, VR, MR and motor vehicles may
give a new growth potential for the volume expansion of
camera modules.

With the increasingly improved dual camera modules
solutions, a number of global and China’s renowned brands
have already adopted the dual camera modules solutions in
their products and positive feedback from end-consumers
have been received. This may lead to a remarkable
improvement in penetration rate of dual camera modules in
the future and hence will bring new and increased demand for
camera modules.

While personal data privacy protection and mobile payment
become an increasingly important demand for end-
consumers, intelligent mobile communication terminals such
as mobile phones are becoming important personal data
storage and mobile payment instruments for end-consumers.
As such, with the end-consumer’s increasing demand for
higher security for mobile phones, fingerprint recognition
modules are gradually becoming the standard equipment
for smartphones and therefore stimulate the rapid growth
of fingerprint recognition modules business. The Group
has established the supply cooperation with various well-
known brand smartphone manufacturers in China regarding
fingerprint recognition modules, which will contribute to our
continuous efforts in striving for rapid development of the
fingerprint recognition modules business.

(i)
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(v) In addition to optical design and precision manufacturing,
the sound functionalities of dual/multiple camera modules
have more vital demand for image algorithm. Our related
company established in Chengdu possessed good technical
preparation in image algorithm and with certain customer
resources, and the technical cooperation and customers’
collaborative marketing between the Group and the related
company in precision manufacturing and image algorithm
is likely to favour our expansion in the dual/multiple camera
modules business.

Hence, the Directors believe, as opportunities coexist with
challenges, the Group will adhere to the mission of “providing
comprehensive machinery vision and human vision product
solutions for intelligent mobile terminals” to strengthen the
capacity deployment in three aspects, namely optical design,
computing vision and deep learning, continue to enhance the
R&D of new products and new processes, continue to improve
precision manufacturing capability, proactively carry out customer
relationship marketing, aggressively expand overseas renowned
smartphone branded customers and continuously enhance the
core competitiveness of the Group. We will focus on developing
high-end camera modules with resolution of 16 mega pixels and
above and dual camera modules, with an effort to strengthen the
technical cooperation and resource integration in image algorithm
of dual/multiple camera modules, at the same time striving to
achieve a breakthrough in the application of camera modules in
non-mobile-phone sector. The Directors are confident to lead the
Group to embrace the challenges, and make further efforts to
achieve good development and strive to create greater value for
the Shareholders.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

For the Year, the revenue of the Group was approximately
RMB4,991,158,000, representing an increase of approximately
126.6% or approximately RMB2,788,763,000 as compared
with 2015. While there was an increase in sales volume of
approximately 101.6% as compared with that of 2015, the year-
on-year growth in revenue was faster than that of the sales
volume, mainly due to the surge of average selling price of camera
modules as a result of the significant enhancement of the product
pixel mix of camera modules, and the average selling price of
fingerprint recognition modules which recorded a rapid growth in
2016 is higher than the overall product average selling price of
2015. Thus, the overall product average selling price increased by
approximately RMB2.78 (or approximately 12.4%) as compared
with that of 2015 to approximately RMB25.16. The average
selling price of camera modules increased by approximately
RMB1.71 (or approximately 7.7%) as compared with that of
2015 to approximately RMB24.09, mainly due to the significant
enhancement of product pixel mix of camera modules and the
commencement of mass production of dual camera modules.

Cost of sales

For the Year, the cost of sales of the Group was approximately
RMB4,568,721,000, representing an increase of approximately
132.9% as compared with approximately RMB1,961,824,000 in
2015. The increase in the cost of sales was primarily attributed
to (i) a year-on-year increase in the total input costs of raw
materials by approximately 138.0% due to a year-on-year
increase in revenue by approximately 126.6%; (i) a year-on-year
increase in manufacturing labor cost by approximately 80.7% to
approximately RMB200,835,000; and (iiij a year-on-year increase
in depreciation cost that was attributed to manufacturing cost by
approximately 52.6% to approximately RMB51,395,000.
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Gross profit and gross profit margin

For the Year, the gross profit of the Group was approximately
RMB422,437,000 (2015: approximately RMB240,571,000),
representing a year-on-year increase of approximately 75.6%;
while the gross profit margin was approximately 8.5% (2015:
approximately 10.9%), representing a year-on-year decrease
of approximately 2.4 percentage points. The decrease in gross
profit margin was mainly attributable to: the drop-off range of the
average selling price of same product resulting from the intensified
market competition exceeded the drop-off range of the average
purchase price of the raw materials of the product. Further,
various production raw materials of the Group were purchased
from overseas and settled in USD. Due to the depreciation of the
exchange rate of RMB against USD by approximately 6.8% during
the Year, the purchasing costs of raw materials was further pushed
up and, hence, increased the proportion of the composite costs of
raw materials in the total revenue of the Group.

Other revenue

For the Year, other revenue of the Group was approximately
RMB18,407,000, representing a decrease of approximately 22.1%
as compared with approximately RMB23,622,000 in 2015. The
decrease in other revenue was primarily due to the following
factors: (i) the government subsidies recognised amounted to
approximately RMB13,620,000,
approximately RMB7,788,000 as compared with approximately
RMB5,832,000 in year 2015; (ii) interest income amounted
to approximately RMB4,256,000,
approximately RMB7,055,000 as compared with approximately
RMB11,311,000 in year 2015; and (iii) approximately
RMB4,741,000 in investment income was recorded from the

representing an increase of

representing a decrease of

available-for-sale financial assets in year 2015, and there was no
such income generated for the Year.
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Other net loss

For the Year, the Group had other net loss of approximately
RMB45,172,000, representing an increase of approximately 43.5%
as compared with other net loss of approximately RMB31,476,000
in 2015. The increase in other net loss was primary due
to the following factors: (i) exchange loss of approximately
RMB64,613,000, representing an increase of approximately
RMB33,735,000 as compared with approximately RMB30,878,000
in 2015; and (ii) approximately RMB19,458,000 of fair value gain
generated from the valuation of foreign exchange option contracts
at the end of year.

Selling and distribution expenses

For the Year, the total selling and distribution expenses of the
Group amounted to approximately RMB9,662,000, representing an
increase of approximately 54.9% as compared with approximately
RMB6,237,000 for year 2015, which accounted for approximately
0.2% of the revenue (2015: approximately 0.3%). The increase
in selling and distribution expenses was mainly attributed to the
increase of sales staff’s salaries as compared with last year.

Administrative and other operating expenses

For the Year, total administrative and other operating expenses
of the Group amounted to approximately RMB41,311,000,
representing an increase of approximately 50.2% as compared
with year 2015 (2015: approximately RMB27,505,000), which
accounted for approximately 0.8% of the revenue (2015:
approximately 1.2%). The increase in administrative and other
operating expenses for the Year was mainly attributed to the
increase in salaries and benefits of management personnel
as compared with last year and the provision of allowance for
doubtful debts on trade receivables for the Year of RMB9,400,000
(2015: approximately RMB1,000).
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R&D expenses

For the Year, the total R&D expenses of the Group amounted
to approximately RMB124,564,000, representing an increase
of approximately 67.6% as compared with last year (2015:
approximately RMB74,326,000), which accounted for
approximately 2.5% of the revenue (2015: approximately 3.4%).
The increase in R&D expenses for the Year was mainly attributed
to the additional efforts and resources devoted to the research
and development of new products and new functionalities by the
Group. This allowed the Group to develop products with higher
pixels, enhance functionality and diversification, such as dual
camera products, fingerprint recognition modules, PDAF, gesture
recognition, camera modules used in other application sectors, as
well as to optimize and enhance the efficiency and standards of
production techniques through intelligentized production.

Finance costs

Finance costs of the Group decreased by approximately
44.2% from RMB9,948,000 for year 2015 to approximately
RMB5,548,000 for the Year, which was primarily due to: (i) the
decrease in statutory interest rate in borrowings in RMB for the
Year; and (ii) the majority of bank borrowings were generated in
the fourth quarter of the Year, so that the daily average balance of
bank borrowings of the Year was lower than that of 2015.

Income tax expenses

The income tax expenses of the Group increased by approximately
87.6% from approximately RMB12,702,000 of 2015 to
approximately RMB23,832,000 for the Year, which was primarily
due to the significant increase in revenue that resulted in significant
increase in profit before taxation of approximately 87.1% as
compared with last year.
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Kunshan QT China, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, was
successfully recognized as a High and New Technology Enterprise
(“HNTE”) on 6 July 2015, and obtained the recognition certificate
as a HNTE. Kunshan QT China will continue to enjoy preferential
policies of income tax rate of 15% and bonus deduction allowance
of R&D expenses with a validity period up to 31 December 2017.
Chengdu Q Technology Limited (“Chengdu QT”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group, was recognized as a software enterprise.
According to the relevant PRC policies, Chengdu QT is entitled to
preferential policies in a value-added tax levy-refund and “2-year
exemption and 3-year half payment” of income tax from 1 January
2015, with a validity period up to 31 December 2019.

Profit for the year

For the Year, the profit of the Group amounted to approximately
RMB190,755,000 (2015: approximately RMB101,999,000),
representing an increase of approximately 87.0% as compared
with last year. Net profit margin was approximately 3.8% (2015:
approximately 4.6%). The decrease in net profit margin for the Year
was mainly attributed to the decrease in gross profit margin and
the increase in foreign exchange loss.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

Bank borrowings

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s balance of bank borrowings
amounted to approximately RMB335,432,000,
an increase of approximately 135.9% as compared with
approximately RMB142,164,000 as at 31 December 2015. The
maturities of all of those bank borrowings are less than 1 year.

representing

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s bank borrowings were
denominated in RMB and/or USD.
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The overview of the Group’s cash flow for the Year and 2015 was
set out as follows:

AEBRAFER=
BRI

—hEMIRER

For the year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+t—HLEE

Net cash (used in)/generated from
operating activities WEmEFHE
Net cash (used in)/generated from
investing activities REeMEFHE
Net cash generated from/(used in)
financing activities RemE /F5HE
For the Year, the operating activities of the Group recorded
net cash outflow, and investing activities also recorded net
cash outflow due to additional capital expenditure for capacity
expansion, which has led to the balance of cash and cash
equivalents as at 31 December 2016 amounting to approximately
RMB64,905,000, representing a decrease of approximately
RMB217,310,000 as compared with the balance as at 31

December 2015.
Operating activities

For the Year, the Group’s net cash outflow of operating activities
amounted to approximately RMB38,614,000, representing a
decrease of approximately RMB362,613,000 as compared with
the net cash inflow of approximately RMB323,999,000 in 2015,
which was primarily attributed to (i) the balance of inventory
amounted to approximately RMB799,246,000,
increase of approximately RMB589,984,000 as compared with the

representing an

balance as at the end of 2015; and (ii) a decrease in gross profit
margin of the Group in 2016 as compared with that of 2015.
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Investing activities

The net cash outflow from investing activities of the Group in 2016
amounted to approximately RMB429,711,000, which was mainly
due to the purchase of equipment and construction of plants
with amount of approximately RMB408,893,000, the net cash
outflow of purchase and redemption of other financial assets of
approximately RMB25,500,000, and the inflow of interest income
of approximately RMB5,279,000.

Financing activities

As at 31
financing activities of the Group amounted to approximately
RMB245,529,000, which was mainly attributed to (i) the proceeds
of approximately RMB137,276,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$154,428,000) from the shares placing of 40,000,000
ordinary shares on 12 December 2016 after deducting relevant

December 2016, the net cash inflow from

expenses; (i) inflow from bank borrowings of approximately
RMB245,746,000, outflow of bank borrowings repayment of
approximately RMB270,172,000; and (iiij the decrease in the
amount of bank deposits pledged for borrowings by approximately
RMB132,684,000.

Gearing ratio

As at 31 December 2016, the gearing ratio, which is defined by
bank borrowings and related parties divided by total equity at
the end of the Year, was approximately 21.4%, representing an
increase of approximately 9.7 percentage points as compared with
approximately 11.7% in year 2015, which was mainly due to: (i)
significant additional new bank borrowings, which increased the
amount of bank borrowings to approximately RMB335,432,000
as at 31 December 2016, representing a year-on-year increase of
approximately 135.9% (2015: approximately RMB142,164,000);
(i) the net profit recorded in the Year was approximately
RMB190,755,000, and no dividend was paid to shareholders for
the year 2015.
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Treasury policies

The Group’s treasury policy was disclosed in the prospectus of
the Company dated 20 November 2014 (the “Prospectus”), apart
from the following amendments to the funds management policy
of the Group, there was no amendment to the treasury policy
during the Year. The Board, the risk management committee of
the Board (“Risk Management Committee”) and the staff at the
relevant positions always remain alert to the performance and
risk assessment of the available-for-sale financial assets so as
to assure that the wealth management operation does not pose
excessive risk to the principal amount. At the same time, the
Company also pays attention to the liquidity position of the Group
in order to ensure that the sufficiency of its working capital is not
affected.

On a meeting of the Risk Management Committee held on 24
March 2016, the members of the Risk Management Committee
reviewed and passed certain amendments to the funds
management policy of the Group, including:

1) the increase in transaction amount of non-principal protected
wealth management that requires approval of the Risk
Management Committee. After the amendments, the chief
financial officer shall complete the approval for a single
transaction of wealth management business operation with
transaction amount of RMB50 million or below (inclusive of
RMB50 million) (previously RMB10 million or below (inclusive
of RMB10 million)), while a single transaction of wealth
management business operation with transaction amount
exceeding RMB50 million (exclusive of RMB50 million)
(previously exceeding RMB10 million (exclusive of RMB10
million)) will, in addition, require approval from the Risk

Management Committee. Further, the amount of an instructed

single transaction was amended from not exceeding RMB50

million to not exceeding RMB50 million “in principle”; and
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certain adjustments on the restrictions towards the input
of funds to non-principal protected wealth management
business, including: (i) the previous restriction on input of
funds to wealth management products issued by commercial
banks ranked outside top 10 in the PRC was adjusted and
relaxed to restricting input of funds to commercial banks
ranked outside top 20 (inclusive) in the PRC; (i) the risk level
for all bank wealth management products in which input of
funds was restricted was adjusted from “exceeding low to
medium risk” to restricting input of funds to “high risk” wealth
management products; (iii) the previous restriction on input
of funds to wealth management products with duration of
“more than one year” was amended to restricting input of
funds to wealth management products with duration of “more
than one year (exclusive of one year)”. Further, the previous
restriction on input of funds to wealth management products
not accepted as security for financing and with duration of
“not exceeding one year” was amended to restricting input
of funds to wealth management products “not accepted as
security for financing or issuance of bills payables” and with
duration of “exceeding three months”; (iv) the restriction on
“prohibition on repurchase of wealth management products
which are non-principal protected, with floating income and
unable to purchase insurance coverage” was deleted; and
(v) for non-principal protected wealth management products
instructed by the Company which are fixed term and covered
by insurance purchased on the financing principal, the
maximum balance of which has been increased from not
exceeding RMB300 million or equivalent to not exceeding
RMB one billion or equivalent.
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MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

The Group did not have any material acquisitions or disposals of
its subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during the Year.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT
The Group did not hold any significant investment during the Year.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

On 22 February 2017, the Company entered into a Letter of Intent
(the “Letter of Intent”) with Newmax Technology Co., Ltd. (#T$EF}
R AERZAF) (‘“Newmax Technology”), a company listed on the
Taipei Exchange (stock code: 3630), in relation to the Company’s
intention to the conditional participation in the possible private
placement of Newmax Technology. The details of the Letter of
Intent were disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
22 February 2017.

Save as disclosed in the announcement, the Group had not
entered into any legally binding agreements or arrangements with
respect to any investment opportunities as at 31 December 2016.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2016, the Group did not have any contingent
liabilities.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2016, the assets pledged by the Group
were bank deposits of approximately RMB96,543,000 and bank
acceptance bills of approximately RMB129,225,000, all of which
were pledged as security for bank borrowings, bills payable,
customs payment guarantee and construction project payment
guarantee. As at 31 December 2016, the Group did not have
any available-for-sale financial assets or fixed assets which were
pledged.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2016
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EMPLOYEE POLICIES AND REMUNERATION

As of 31 December 2016, the Group had a total of 1,850
employees (31 December 2015: 1,314) (excluding staff under
labor service agreements and internship agreements). During
the Year, the Group committed to providing all staff with fair
working and living environment, providing newly recruited staff
with induction training and job technical counseling to help
them to adapt to job requirements quickly, providing all staff
with clear job responsibilities guidelines and for employees at
different positions with on-the-job training together with other
training programmes to help improving their skills and knowledge,
and strived to provide all staff with competitive remuneration
packages. Total remuneration of the employees of the Group
was approximately RMB278,918,000 (31 December 2015:
approximately RMB151,049,000). Apart from basic salary, the
package also includes year-end bonus, medical insurance and
provident fund (staff under labor service agreements and internship
agreements are treated according to the laws and regulations of
the PRC). Meanwhile, the Group has accepted the applications
from 42 staff to exercise their options and issued a total of
13,826,000 ordinary shares during the Year pursuant to the pre-
IPO share option scheme and a share option scheme adopted on
13 November 2014 (please see the disclosures in sections D1 and
D2 headed “Share Option Scheme” and “Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme” of Appendix IV “Statutory and General Information”
of the Prospectus respectively for details), the exercise price
was RMBO0.40 per share and total consideration received
was RMB5,530,400, which assured the stability of the core
management and technical personnel. In addition, on 26 October
2016, the Group granted 39,425,000 share options in total to
165 staff (including two Executive Directors, Mr. Wang Jiangiang
and Mr. Hu Sanmu) in accordance with the share option scheme
adopted by the Company on 13 November 2014 as incentives
or returns for certain staff for the contributions made or may be
made to the Company and/or subsidiaries, the exercise price of
the share options was HK$4.13 per share and the grantees may
apply to exercise the share options by phases in the future under
fulfilling certain conditions (please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated 26 October 2016 on Hong Kong Stock
Exchange for details). In respect of the compliance in the labor
and social security aspect, there was no material non-compliance
act occurred in the Group and we had obtained the Certificate
of Compliance and No Punishment issued by Kunshan Municipal
Human Resources and Social Security Bureau successfully.
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through bank
borrowings, product sales and purchase of raw materials which
give rise to receivables, payables, cash balances and loans
that are denominated in foreign currencies other than RMB.
The currencies that give rise to our currency risk are primarily
generated from the exchange or translation of USD and Hong
Kong Dollars into RMB. During the Year, the Group recorded an
exchange loss of approximately RMB64,613,000 as the sales
income of the Group was still mainly settled in RMB but various
raw materials for production were purchased from overseas and
settled in USD, and depreciated approximately 6.8% in the RMB
against USD exchange rate for the Year. As affected by multiple
factors such as politics, economic, and supply and demand, the
trend of RMB against USD in the future is still subject to great
uncertainties and the control task of the Company’s exchange
risks remains heavy. The Company will, on one hand, strive to
strengthen the expansion of overseas business continuously to
increase USD income; on the other hand, coordinate actively
with suppliers receiving settlement in USD to seek the consent of
certain suppliers to purchase domestically or arrange settlement in
RMB, so as to reduce the demand for USD. Meanwhile, the Group
will enhance monitoring of the exchange rate fluctuation on a daily
basis, adjust the proportion of USD deposits to total deposits
balance and the proportion of USD loans to total loans balance
from time to time with reference to the analysis of exchange rates
fluctuation trend, and fix the future foreign exchange costs by
using currency derivative instruments such as foreign exchange
forwards and options, so as to strengthen the management of
foreign exchange risks and strive to reduce foreign exchange loss.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2016
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM GLOBAL OFFERING

On 2 December 2014, the shares of the Company were initially
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. The net proceeds
from the above global offering was approximately HK$658,000,000
(after deducting relevant listing expenses). As at 31 December
2016, the balance of the fund raised was approximately 0.5%
or approximately HK$3,341,000, and approximately 99.5% or
approximately HK$654,659,000 were utilised. Among the utilised
net proceeds: (i) approximately HK$256,620,000 was utilised to
purchase production and testing machinery and equipment; (ii)
approximately HK$164,500,000 was utilised to enhance R&D
capabilities; (i) approximately HK$101,990,000 was utilised to
expand the production base; (iv) approximately HK$46,718,000
was utilised to repay bank borrowings; (v) approximately
HK$19,031,000 was utilised for overseas sales and procurement
and future expansion to the overseas markets; and (vi)
approximately HK$65,800,000 was utilised for general corporate
purposes.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM SHARES PLACING

On 12 December 2016, the Company completed the new shares
placing of 40,000,000 ordinary shares under general mandate,
the net proceeds from the above placing was approximately
HK$154,428,000, after deducting the related placing commission,
professional fees and all related expenses. As at 31 December
2016, the balance of the fund raised was approximately 24%
or approximately HK$36,687,000, and approximately 76% or
approximately HK$117,741,000 were utilised, among which: (i)
approximately HK$70,000,000 was utilised for capital expenses; (i)
approximately HK$33,313,000 was utilised for R&D activities; and
(i) approximately HK$14,428,000 was utilised for general working
capital.
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DIVIDEND

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Board had resolved
not to declare any dividend.

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2016 of RMB3.5 cents (equivalent
to HK8.9 cents) per share to the Shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on Thursday,
8 June 2017. Subject to the approval by the Shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting (the “AGM”), the proposed
final dividend is expected to be paid on or around Tuesday, 20
June 2017.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining the eligibility to attend the 2016
annual general meeting, the register of members of the Company
will be closed from 16 May 2017 to 19 May 2017. All transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 15
May 2017.

For the purpose of determining the eligibility to receive the final
dividend, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from 6 June 2017 to 8 June 2017, during which period no transfer
of shares will be effected. All transfer documents accompanied by
the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong
not later than 4:30 p.m. on 5 June 2017.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2016
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S SHARES

Pursuant to the applicable Company Law of the Cayman Islands
and the articles of association, the Company may repurchase its
shares under certain restrictions, and must comply with any of
the applicable requirements implemented by the Stock Exchange
from time to time when the Board exercises such right on behalf of
the Company. During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed shares.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
MANAGEMENT

The Group has all along strictly complied with the environmental
protection laws and policies in the jurisdictions where respective
member companies are located. For the year ended 31 December
2016, the Group had newly added, formulated and implemented
a number of rules and regulations in relation to environmental
protection management such as the implementation of Wastewater
Management Regulations, Waste Gas Management Regulations
and Greenhouse Gas Management Measures to further perfect the
wastewater, waste gas and greenhouse gas treatment system, in
order to strengthen its management and control in production and
domestic sewage to ensure that the wastewater discharge is in
compliance with statutory requirements, and clarified the ranges,
procedure and instrument of collecting the data of greenhouse
gas for the effective management of greenhouse gas of the Group
in the long run and prepared for reducing carbon emissions.
Meanwhile, the Group had also amended and implemented
the relevant regulations including the Fire Safety Management
Regulations and Emergency Plan, held fire drill with particular
focus on strengthening of self-check of the fire control facilities and
improving the fire prevention and control capability, and Kunshan
QT China successfully obtained the compliance certificate in terms
of work safety granted by Kunshan Administration of Work Safety.

Particulars of environmental protection management of the
Company has been disclosed in the Environmental, Social and

Governance Report of this report.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently consists of six Directors, comprising three
executive Directors, namely Mr. He Ningning, Mr. Wang Jiangiang
and Mr. Hu Sanmu, and three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang, Ms. Chen Jun and Mr. Ng
Sui Yin.

Executive Directors

Mr. He Ningning ({2888 ) , aged 46, was appointed as a Director
on 5 May 2014 and was re-designated as an executive Director
on 13 November 2014. He has been the chairman of the Board
and the nomination committee (“Nomination Committee”) of the
Board since 13 November 2014. He is primarily responsible for
overall strategic planning and formulation of investment strategies
of our Group. Mr. He founded Kunshan QT China in October 2007
and has more than 21 years of experience in the electrical and
electronic industries. Prior to founding the Group, Mr. He served
as a sales officer of Samsung Electro-Mechanics Dongguan Co.,
Ltd. (RE=2FEHABMRAAF), a manufacturer of electronic
components, from July 1992 to April 1997 where he was primarily
responsible for sales and delivery management. In November
2000 and June 2004, Mr. He founded Surewheel Asia Pacific
Limited (£ E B 5 K AR 2 7) (“Surewheel”), a company
principally engaged in agency sales of printheads, and Shenzhen
Xike Dexin Telecom Equipment Co., Ltd. (GE I 78 Al 212 18
EHITREBR QA (“Shenzhen CK”), a company principally
engaged in the research, development and sales of complete
handsets components, and has been the chairman of Surewheel
and Shenzhen CK. Mr. He is primarily responsible for the strategic
planning. In December 2004, Mr. He founded CK Telecom Limited
(FA A B s T & B OTJR) AR A ) (‘Heyuan CK”), a company
principally engaged in the sales and manufacturing of complete
handsets and handset components and modules, and has been
the chairman of Heyuan CK. Mr. He is primarily responsible for
the strategic planning of Heyuan CK. Mr. He is the sole director
and the sole shareholder of Q Technology Investment Inc. (“QT
Investment”), a controlling shareholder of the Company as at
the date of this report. Mr. He received his bachelor’s degree
in science, majoring in dynamic meteorology, from the Peking
University in July 1992 and his master’'s degree of business
administration from the University of California in March 2002. Mr.
He is also the step-brother of Mr. Wang Jiangiang, an executive
Director and chief executive officer of the Group.
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Mr. He is also a director of each of Q Technology (Great China) Inc.
(formerly known as “CK Telecom (Great China) Inc.”), Kunshan Q
Technology (Hong Kong) Limited (‘Kunshan QT Hong Kong”) and
Kunshan QT China, each of which is a subsidiary of the Company.

Mr. Wang Jiangiang ( E4258)
Director on 5 May 2014 and was re-designated as an executive

aged 45, was appointed as a

Director on 13 November 2014. Mr. Wang was appointed as chief
executive officer of the Group since 8 July 2016 and is primarily
responsible for operation and business management of the Group.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wang served as a supervisor of
the quality assurance department of SAE Magnetics (5 3 #
METH),

1995 to September 1996, where he was primarily responsible for

a computer hardware manufacturer, from October

product quality assurance. From August 1998 to January 2005, he
served as the sales assistant manager of the Shenzhen office of
Samsung Electro-Mechanics (H.K.) Limited (ZEE# (F%8)A
fR A &]) , a manufacturer of electronic components, where he was
primarily responsible for the sales of the electronic components.
From February 2005 to April 2014 and December 2005 to April
2014, respectively, Mr. Wang served as the chief financial officer of
Shenzhen CK and Heyuan CK where he was primarily responsible
for audit management and budgeting. Mr. Wang received his
bachelor’s degree in engineering, majoring in fluid machinery
and engineering, from the Sichuan University of Science and
Technology (P9Il T £t ) in June 1995. Mr. Wang is the step-
brother of Mr. He.
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Mr. Wang is also a director of Kunshan QT Hong Kong, Kunshan
QT China, Chengdu Q Technology Limited ( A% &P fr $A %k & F & %
AR 2AF]) and Taiwan Q Technology Co., Ltd., each of which is a
subsidiary of the Company.

Mr. Hu Sanmu (# =) , aged 41, is the vice president of sales
of the Group. He is primarily responsible for the expansion of sales
network and maintenance of relationship with customers. Mr. Hu
was appointed as an executive Director of the Group since 8 July
2016. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Hu held various positions in
VTech (Shenzhen) Electronic Limited (18 5#EE F&E & CFII)
BRE2AF]), a company principally engaged in manufacturing of
telecommunication products, from July 1998 to November 2002,
where he last served as a mechanical structure engineer and was
primarily responsible for the mechanical design. From November
2002 to August 2004, Mr. Hu held various positions in Tianjin
Amphenol Kae Co., Ltd. (KELZB#HIBREFERALAF), a
manufacturer of interconnect products, where he last served as a
sales engineer and was primarily responsible for maintaining the
relationship with existing customers and the expansion of sales
network. From July 2004 to November 2009, Mr. Hu held various
positions in Van Telecom Limited ( MEZ R BR/AF]) , a company
principally engaged in manufacturing and sales of precise
connectors, where he last served as the sales director and was
primarily responsible for sales management and product planning.
Mr. Hu received his bachelor’s degree in engineering, majoring in
mechanical design and manufacture from the Xi'an University of
Science and Technology (FAZ B K& ), previously known as
Xi'an Mining Institute (FAZTEZ 26t ) , in July 1998.

Mr. Hu is also a director of Kunshan QT China, which is a
subsidiary of the Company.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang (#1 R %) , aged 47, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director (the “INED”), the chairman
of the remuneration committee of the Board (“Remuneration
Committee”) and a member of each of the audit committee of
the Board (“Audit Committee”) and the Nomination Committee of
the Company on 13 November 2014. From June 1997 to June
2002, Mr. Chu served at various positions in Hewlett-Packard
Taiwan Ltd. (B Z R AR H BBRAF), which is a provider of
computing devices, testing and skilled solutions, and last served
as an expert sales and was primarily responsible for overseeing
its sales department in respect of the computing devices. From
May 2002 to August 2004, Mr. Chu served as the investment
manager of CDIB Venture Capital Corp. (% 5 3% Al 21 & %
AR AA), which was a wholly-owned subsidiary of China
Development Financial Holding Corporation ( /5 2 fd 2% & gl 4% %
BB AR (Stock Code: 2883) listed on the Taiwan Stock
Exchange and was primarily engaged in enterprise operations,
management, and consulting services. Mr. Chu was primarily
responsible for exploring and assessing of investment plans
and post-investment management. In January 2014, Mr. Chu
established W K Innovation Ltd. (ZFAIFKHBBERAF), a
venture capital firm, and served as the managing director and
acted as its chairman and chief executive officer, where he is
primarily responsible for its strategic planning. From August 2004
to January 2014, Mr. Chu served as the general manager of W K
Technology Fund (E&AIZEEE, previously known as E Al
AR ARAT), aventure capital firm. Mr. Chu was primarily
responsible for exploring and assessing of investment plans and
post-investment management. He was the legal representative
of Litmax Electronics Inc. (FREHXEBRMH B MR A F], Stock code:
4995) and Raydium Semi-conductor Corporation (Im& &5 A
R~ 7], Stock code: 3592), each of which is listed on the Taiwan
Cretai Securities Market ( 8 ZFFHFEEEEF L) .

Mr. Chu received his bachelor of science degree in electrical
engineering from the National Tsing-Hua University in Taiwan
in July 1993 and his master’s degree in management from the
National Cheng-Kung University in Taiwan in June 1995. Mr. Chu
served as an executive council member of the Taiwan Private
Equity & Venture Capital Association ( &/ ZR|EREHEREAS
from May 2008 to May 2010.
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Ms. Chen Jun (BREB) , aged 54, was appointed as an INED, the
chairlady of the risk management committee of the Board (“Risk
Management Committee”) and a member of each of the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee of the Company on 13 November 2014. Since July
1987, Ms. Chen has been the tutor in accounting and auditing at
the Capital University of Economics and Business ( & #B4£ % E 5
KE)in the PRC (“Capital University”) and primarily responsible
for teaching and research work. Since June 1999, Ms. Chen has
been accredited as an assistant professor of the Capital University.
Ms. Chen received her bachelor’s degree and master’s degree in
economics, majoring in accounting, from the Capital University in
July 1985 and December 1988, respectively. Ms. Chen received
her doctorate in management, majoring in corporate management,
from the Renmin University of China ( B AR KZ) in June 2007.
Ms. Chen completed a program of international management
education at the Brennan School of Business of Dominican
University in the United States of America in November 2007.

Ms. Chen was a speaker for various organisations, including
Beijing Institute of Certified Public Accountants (1t & &£ & &t b
#% 2 ) and Beijing Lianxin School (1t RE#{ZE24% ) . She actively
participated in the preparation of The Administrative Method for
Financial Revenue and Expenditure Auditing in Beijing Health
Sector (CItEMHERLZTFER LT EIEIE) ) and The
Practice Guideline for Financial Revenue and Expenditure Auditing
in Beijing Health Sector ( (bR T &4 R U =T R 1E1E
).
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Mr. Ng Sui Yin (RIFE),
the chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of each of the

aged 48, was appointed as an INED,

Remuneration Committee and the Risk Management Committee
of the Company on 13 November 2014. From June 2002 to
December 2004, Mr. Ng served as an audit assistant manager of
an accounting firm, where he was primarily responsible for audit
plan and audit works. Mr. Ng was previously the financial controller
of Beijing Gas Blue Sky Holdings Limited, a company whose
shares are listed on the Stock Exchange (Stock code: 6828). He
is now the financial controller and company secretary of Man Yue
Technology Holdings Limited, a company whose shares are listed
on the Stock Exchange (Stock code: 0894). Mr. Ng has extensive
experience in the areas of finance, audit, tax, bankruptcy,
information technology and business development. Mr. Ng has
been admitted as a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and an associate of the Taxation Institute of
Hong Kong since April 2001 and April 2009, respectively. Mr. Ng
was registered as a certified tax advisor of the Taxation Institute
of Hong Kong in July 2010. He received his honours diploma in
accounting from the Hong Kong Shue Yan College (now known as
Hong Kong Shue Yan University) in July 1998.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Fan Fugiang (38 @ 3) , aged 39,
company secretaries of the Group, and was appointed as chief
financial officer of the Group on 8 July 2016. Mr. Fan is primarily
responsible for financial management, securities affairs and risk

is one of the joint

control functions. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Fan held various
positions in Heyuan branch of the Bank of China, a state-owned
bank principally engaged in providing a range of corporate
banking, personal banking, investment banking and other services,
from July 1996 to June 2011 and last served as the general
manager of Heyuan High-tech Zone sub-branch of Bank of China
and vice general manager of the corporate department of Heyuan
branch of Bank of China, where he was primarily responsible for
the grant of the credit facilities, risks management and international
settlement. From May 2013 to April 2014 and July 2011 to April
2014, respectively, Mr. Fan served as the assistant to the chief
financial officer of Shenzhen CK and Heyuan CK, and was primarily
responsible for legal compliance matters and risk control. Mr. Fan
received a professional certificate from Guangdong International
Finance College ( &R B £ @i 2242 ) located in the PRC, in July
1996, majoring in international finance. He received a graduation
certificate from the Central Party School of Guangdong Provincial
Committee ( HERE Z ER ) located in the PRC,
2008, majoring in public management, and received a graduation
certificate from South China University of Technology ( %= m 32 T X
£ in July 2016, majoring in administrative management.

in January

Mr. Fan received the Top Ten Distinguished Employees ( +1£&
T ) Award of Heyuan branch of Bank of China for the years 2005
and 2006 and the Innovative Employee Award (4t T1E% ) by
Heyuan branch of Bank of China for the year 2007.
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Mr. Liu Tongquan ( 2|##) , aged 39, is the production director
of the Group and the assistant general manager of Kunshan
QT China. Mr. Liu is primarily responsible for the process
engineering and production management. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Liu served as a production manager of Kunshan
Giantplus Optoelectronics Technology Co., Ltd. (BLZENXE
Rifr AR AT ), a LCD display manufacturer, from July 2002
to November 2007, where he was primarily responsible for
production management. Mr. Liu received his bachelor’s degree
in engineering, majoring in measurement and control technology
and instrumentation, and his bachelor’s degree in economics from
the Wuhan University (V£ K2 ) in June 2002 and July 2002,
respectively.

Mr. Jin Yuanbin (£ Jt3g) , aged 41, is the research and
development director of the Group. Mr. Jin is primarily responsible
for the research and development of products, as well as the
improvement in manufacturing technology and techniques of
the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Jin served as the
manager of testing engineering department of Walton Advanced
(Suzhou) Engineering Inc. (ZER B (8 M) B R A7) from
2003 to 2007, where he was responsible for preparation of the
implementation, testing criteria and method for new product.
From 2008 to 2010, he worked in Altek System (Kunshan) Co.,
Ltd. (& KA ERFT (BIL) AR AF), and served as the factory
director of camera modules business department, where he
was responsible for manufacturing engineering and production
operation of camera modules. Mr. Jin has been engaging in the
research and development, engineering, testing and production
of camera modules since 2002, and possesses extensive related
work experience. Mr. Jin received his diploma majoring in financial
management, from Nanyang Institute of Technology ( 7 F5 32 T £
BT ) in 2008.
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Mr. Sun Wei (&) , aged 38, is the purchasing director of our
Group. Mr. Sun is primarily responsible for selecting and evaluating
the suppliers and overseeing the sourcing and purchases of
raw materials and equipment. Prior to joining our Group, Mr.
Sun served as the procurement officer (£% 3% & & ) of Compal
Electronic Technology (Kunshan) Co., Ltd. ({ZE2EF&I (B 1)
B A7]), a notebook computer manufacturer, from July 2004
to May 2005, where he was primarily responsible for procurement
of the materials. From July 2005 to June 2008, Mr. Sun served as
the procurement supervisor of Altek System (Kunshan) Co., Ltd.
(FarxBERE (EIL)BR2AAE), a digital camera manufacturer,
where he was primarily responsible for sourcing and buying the
materials for optical products. From July 2008 to February 2011,
he served as the section manager of the supplier development
division of Young Optics (Kunshan) Co., Ltd. ( B ILIZANEER A
7)), a projector manufacturer, where he was primarily responsible
for sourcing and buying the materials for optical products. Mr.
Sun received his master’s degree in management, majoring in
management sciences and engineering, from Harbin Institute of
Technology (M E/E T KE) in July 2004.

Ms. Le Yanfang (£#3 ), aged 33, is the senior human
resources manager of our Group. Ms. Le is primarily responsible
for management of human resources of Kunshan QT China. Prior
to joining our Group, Ms. Le served as the head of the human
resources department in AVCON Information Technology Co., Ltd.
(ZEF =B HMRMAR AR, a company principally engaged in
the provision of the multi-media communication system solutions,
and was primarily responsible for formulating human resources
policies and human resources affairs from October 2007 to
December 2010. Ms. Le received her graduation certificate from
Jiujiang Vocational and Technical College ( 1T B 3£ 5 i 226 )
in June 2004, majoring in electronic technology and application.
Ms. Le completed an online programme in human resources
management provided by Nankai University ( @ 5 X&) in January
2012.
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are pleased to
present the annual report and the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the Year.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM GLOBAL OFFERING

The shares of the Company were initially listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange on 2 December 2014. The net proceeds
from the above global offering was approximately HK$658,000,000
(after deducting relevant listing expenses). As at 31 December
2016, the balance of the fund raised was approximately 0.5% or
HK$3,341,000, and approximately 99.5% or HK$654,659,000
was utilized. Among the net proceeds utilized: (i) approximately
HK$256,620,000 was utilised to purchase production and testing
machinery and equipment; (i) approximately HK$164,500,000
was utilised to enhance R&D capabilities; (iii) approximately
HK$101,990,000 was utilised to expand the production base;
(iv) approximately HK$46,718,000 was utilised to repay bank
borrowings; (v) approximately HK$19,031,000 was utilised for
overseas sales and procurement and future expansion to the
overseas markets; and (vi) approximately HK$65,800,000 was
utilised for general corporate purposes.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM SHARES PLACING

On 12 December 2016, the Company completed the new shares
placing of 40,000,000 ordinary shares under general mandate,
the net proceeds from the above placing was approximately
HK$154,428,000, after deducting the related placing commission,
professional fees and all related expenses. As at 31 December
2016, the balance of the fund raised was approximately 24%
or approximately HK$36,687,000, and approximately 76% or
approximately HK$117,741,000 were utilised, among which: (i)
approximately HK$70,000,000 was utilised for capital expenses; (ii)
approximately HK$33,313,000 was utilised for R&D activities; and
(i) approximately HK$14,428,000 was utilised for general working
capital.
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the design, research and
development, manufacture and sales of mid-to-high end camera
modules and fingerprint recognition modules.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the
past five financial years are set out on pages 6 to 8 of this annual
report.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on page 143 of this report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the Year and a
discussion on the Group’s future business development are
provided in the Chairman’s Statement on pages 9 to 16 of this
report. Description of possible risks and uncertainties that the
Group may be facing can be found in the Chairman’s Statement
on pages 9 to 16. Also, the financial risk management objectives
and policies of the Group and particulars of important events
affecting the Group that have occurred since the end of the Year
are provided in the Management Discussion and Analysis on
pages 17 to 39. An analysis of the Group’s performance during
the year using financial key performance indicators is provided in
the Group Five-year Financial Summary on pages 6 to 8 of this
report. In addition, discussions on the Group’s environmental
policies,
with relevant laws and regulations which have a significant impact

relationships with its key stakeholders and compliance

on the Group are contained in the Chairman’s Statement, the
Management Discussion and Analysis, the Corporate Governance
Report, the Environmental, Social and Governance Report and this
Directors’ Report on pages 9 to 16, pages 17 to 39, pages 83 to
106, pages 107 to 131, and pages 49 to 82 respectively. These
discussions form part of this directors’ report.
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COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the Year, as far as the Board and management are aware,
there was no material breach of or non-compliance with the
applicable laws and regulations by the Group that has a significant
impact on the businesses and operations of the Group.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good
relationship with its employees, customers and suppliers to meet
its immediate and long-term business goals. During the Year, there
were no material and significant dispute between the Group and its
employees, customers and suppliers.

FINAL DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2016 of RMB3.5 cents (equivalent
to HKB.9 cents) per share to the Shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on Thursday,
8 June 2017. Subject to the approval by the Shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held on
Friday, 19 May 2017 (the “AGM”), the proposed final dividend is
expected to be paid on or around Tuesday, 20 June 2017.

There were no arrangement under which a shareholder has waived
or agreed to waive any dividends for the Year.

For determining shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote at
the AGM, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from 16 May 2017 to 19 May 2017. All transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops
1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wan Chai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 15 May 2017.
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For the purpose of determining the eligibility to receive the final
dividend, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from 6 June 2017 to 8 June 2017, during which period no transfer
of shares will be effected. All transfer documents accompanied by
the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong
not later than 4:30 p.m. on 5 June 2017.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the Year, the trading between the Group and its major
customers and suppliers were as follows:

The Group’s purchases from its largest supplier accounted for
approximately 17.2% (2015: approximately 20.4%) of the total
purchases of the Group whilst the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 46.5% (2015: approximately 48.4%)
of the total purchases of the Group.

The Group’s largest customer accounted for approximately
31.9% (2015: approximately 27.8%) of the total turnover of the
Group whilst the Group’s five largest customer accounted for
approximately 79.3% (2015: approximately 73.7%) of the total
turnover of the Group.

During the Year, none of the Directors, their respective close
associates (as defined in the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)) or any
shareholders of the Company (which, to the best knowledge of
the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued shares)
had any beneficial interest in any of the five largest suppliers or
customers of the Group.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the Year are set out in note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2016

REEERKEKRERKRE  KXAFER
—E—t+tERNARNHEZ—tFE X
ANBEERERMNBPERLFTE 5
FﬁT\ EITEMRMD iE)E%Z‘EE i & A%
MBPXHEREBEARE BAEAR_-E
*ti/\ﬂﬁEiTtFEh—Jrnﬁl’ S
EARRARBAEZELRERD BB BF
REBEFELBERAR MUt REBEF
ERRNBRISIFAEMALI7EITIZE
171657 88 °

TEEFRHEER

AEE AEERFEZHEBEEFPH
RBERWT

AEBSARERANEBEGEASEE
MEEBNI7T2% (ZE—RHF 4
20.4% ) r MA KRB EANFEBES £h
ANEBREEFENL6.5% (—T—HEF:
#4148.4% ) °

AEEBRARFPHNEEEMLNASHE
M EBEN31 9% (ZE—HF: 4
278%) MAREFPHHEERES HER

B8 EEREN79.3% (ZTE—HF : 4
73.7%)

AEEAN BECNES HERHE
A (B2 pr BT R B0 (T Ef R AN ) Fr
E%)iﬂi/‘ﬁEﬂHﬁ%(B“‘%%ﬁﬁ%ﬂ
B HMEARREEITRMHSRIA L)
BEAEERIAMHERIAZFENER
;f /\o

M- WERSZE
ERAEEREEENDE BERR

BOEBFBHR A ERRME
{lOF°



Directors’ Report

EEEHE

BORROWINGS

Particulars of borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2016
are set out in note 20 to the consolidated financial statements of
the Company.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the Year are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements.

ISSUE OF SHARES AND DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in this report, the Company did not issue any
shares or debentures during the Year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Under the applicable laws of the Cayman Islands, the share
premium of the Company is available for distribution to
the shareholders of the Company subject to the articles of
association of the Company (the “Articles of Association”). As at
31 December 2016, the aggregate amount of the Company’s
reserves (including share premium and retained profits) attributable
to the equity holders of the Company available for distribution
was approximately RMB815,723,000 (2015: approximately
RMB673,747,000).

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the Year and up to the date
of this report are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. He Ningning (Chairman)™
Mr. Yang Peikun

(resigned on 8 July 2016)
Mr. Wang Jiangiang
Mr. Hu Sanmu

(appointed on 8 July 2016)
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Independent Non-executive Directors (“INEDs”):

Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang™A®
Ms. Chen JunNARM
Mr. Ng Sui YinA™

member of audit committee of the Company
member of remuneration committee of the Company

member of risk management committee of the Company

zZ z 3 >

member of nomination committee of the Company

In accordance with article 83(3) of the Articles of Association,
any Director appointed by the Board to fill a causal vacancy shall
hold office until the first general meeting of the Company after
his appointment and shall then be eligible for re-election and any
Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing
Board shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.
Accordingly, Mr. Hu Sanmu (appointed as an executive Director
on 8 July 2016) will retire at the AGM and, being eligible, will offer
himself for re-election at the AGM.

In accordance with articles 84(1) and 84(2) of the Articles of
Association, Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang and Ms. Chen Jun will retire by
rotation and being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at
the AGM.

During the Year, other than Mr. Yang Peikun’s resignation as an
executive Director due to personal affairs (please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 8 July 2016 for details), no
Director resigned from his/her office or refused to stand for re-
election to his/her office due to reasons relating to the affairs of the
Company.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management
are set out on pages 40 to 48 of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of our executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with our Company, among which, the term of office for each of Mr.
He Ningning and Mr. Wang Jiangiang is 36 months commenced
from the month in which the Company’s Shares were listed on the
Stock Exchange (i.e. December 2014); the term of office for Mr.
Hu Sanmu is 36 months commenced from 8 July 2016. Mr. Yang
Peikun resigned as an executive Director due to personal affairs
(please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 8 July
2016 for details). The service contract of each executive Director
may be terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing
served by either party on the other party.

Each of the INEDs has signed a letter of appointment with our
Company for a term of three years with effect from 2 December
2014, being the date on which the shares of the Company were
initially listed on the Stock Exchange.

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the AGM
has a service contract or an appointment letter with the Company
or any of its subsidiaries, which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” below, no material interests in transaction,
arrangement or contract in relation to the Group’s business,
to which the Company, its holding company, its controlling
shareholder or subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2016, the interests of the Directors or chief
executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares (in
respect of positions pursuant to equity derivatives) and debentures
of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Future Ordinance,
Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong (the “SFO”)) required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO; or otherwise to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, were as follows:

(a) Interest in the Shares of the Company

EERFETHRAERKD M
ERORESTHER 2B

R-E—RE+_A=+—8 ARQA7F
EFXNFTETHRAEBERAR A R E MG
EE (EERBBEMNESTIEFZHF L
BIRA ([FE 5 RHEEG]) EXVER) &Y
B - MBI (BEBBRAITET AR
BRENFEENEE) RESFFTHAEZR
BB MHERAIEXVEET R8D EBHY
IESCBE AR B KB A BT R RE 8RR 7F
E RS0 FE35280 ER AR R TF
#9 & 50 it A s SRAR B8 B T AR BI BT &% 1 PR
HEMBRTAZESETIFIINEE
PR (MEESFR]) BRAE AR T REER
FIE R T

(a) REQFARG 2R

Approximate

Number percentage
Name of Directors/ Capacity/Nature of issued of the issued
Chief Executive of interest Shares held Position held Shares
iz
EE ITETH BRI NEFERT
ABHA 27 Vg +:1:3-1 B 8B BR BRH B
(Note 2)
(Htitz)
He Ningning Interest of a controlled 751,391,000 Long position 69.46%
&= corporation (Note 1) WA
R EEER (Htet1)
Wang Jiangiang Beneficial owner 7,500,000 Long position 0.69%
T ERfEA A (Note 3) W E
(Ht5#3)
Hu Sanmu Beneficial owner 1,119,750 Long position 0.10%
A=A EnlEA (Note 4) e
(Htit4)
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Notes:

Mr. He Ningning, an executive Director and the chairman of the
Board, is the sole beneficial owner of Q Technology Investment
Inc. (“QT Investment”) which owned approximately 69.46% of
the issued shares. Under Part XV of the SFO, Mr. He Ningning is
deemed to be interested in the Shares held by QT Investment.

The percentage represents the number of Shares divided by
1,081,771,000 issued Shares of the Company in total as at 31
December 2016.

On 6 January 2017, an aggregate of 2,500,000 Shares were
issued to Mr. Wang Jiangiang pursuant to the exercise of
2,500,000 share options granted to him by the Company under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, at an exercise price of
RMBO0.40 per share. Since 6 January 2017, Mr. Wang Jiangiang
has been the beneficial owner of an aggregate of 10,000,000
Shares of the Company.

On 6 January 2017, an aggregate of 373,250 Shares were
issued to Mr. Hu Sanmu pursuant to the exercise of 373,250
share options granted to him by the Company under the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme, at an exercise price of RMBO0.40
per share. Since 6 January 2017, Mr. Hu Sanmu has been the
beneficial owner of an aggregate of 1,493,000 Shares of the
Company.
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(b) Interest in Underlying Shares

(b) RAEBRD zHER

Approximately
percentage of
the underlying
Shares over
the Company’s

Number issued
of underlying Shares o2
Shares in (assuming
respect of that the share
Name of Directors/ Capacity/Nature the share options are
Chief Executive of interest options granted Position held exercised in full)
R R 5
HEAT S BT
B 45 (Wiz2)
BRERE BRED
EE ITETH BRED (R B R RE
ABHE LY 131 HERGHE ®¥E BE2HTHE)
Wang Jiangiang Beneficial owner 4,112,000 Long position 0.38%
T EnEAA (Note 1and 3)  t3A&
(Htat1k3)
Hu Sanmu Beneficial owner 1,578,250 Long position 0.15%
=R EnEAA (Note 1and 4)  t3&
(Htat1k4)
Notes: it -

1.

Details of the above share options have been disclosed in the
following sections headed “Share Option Scheme” and “Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme” and note 24 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The percentage represents the number of underlying Shares
divided by 1,081,771,000 issued Shares of the Company in
total as at 31 December 2016.

On 6 January 2017, Mr. Wang Jiangiang exercised 2,500,000
share options granted to him by the Company under the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme, at an exercise price of RMBO0.40
per share. Mr. Wang Jiangiang is interested in the remaining
1,612,000 share options granted to him.

On 6 January 2017, Mr. Hu Sanmu exercised 373,250 share
options granted to him by the Company under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme, at an exercise price of RMB0.40 per
share. Mr. Hu Sanmu is interested in the remaining 1,200,000
share options granted to him.
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(c) Interest in Associated Corporation
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(c) RAEBZEEZER

Approximate
percentage
of the issued

NaRCUDIroetare Number of shares in

Chief Executive Name of associated Capacity/Nature issued shares associated

corporation of interest held corporation

AEREEE

EE XEAHK gAY $h) ERITRHA

ABHE HEEE £ 8 5/ RHEME BRoEE Bk

He Ningning QT Investment Beneficial owner 1 100%
fEE ERE ERBERA

Other than as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, none of FR EXFIEBEEIN- RZTE—RF+ =

the Directors nor chief executive of the Company had any interests
or short positions in any shares, and underlying shares (in respect
of positions pursuant to equity derivatives) or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange or as recorded in the register
referred to in the SFO or which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACT
OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions”, no contracts of significance to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Shareholder
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2016, so far as the Directors were aware
of, the following persons (other than the Directors and chief
executives of the Company) had interests or short positions in the
Shares or underlying Shares (in respect of positions pursuant to
equity derivatives) as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

TERREDHKE

R-_ZTE—REFEF+-_A=+—8 AR
RIESIAMA TIALT (BRARQRREEK
FETRABN) RRMDAEERG (B
BERASTETEMBENIFESEH)
A LB FE 5 K HA B {5 5] 55336
BRARNREFOELMAZERZ A
BT

Approximate
percentage of

total issued
Capacity/Nature Number of Shares in
Name of Shareholder Long/short position of interest shares held the Company
HEEAT
ERITRHA
BRRAE e/ KR 517/ 85 iR G 8 B BYFEIL
QT Investment Long position Beneficial owner 751,391,000 69.46%
EREE ge EnEEA (Note)
(Htst)

Note: Mr. He Ningning is directly interested in the entire interest of QT  ffif: A EEE G BHEZBEE T HKIEEBRE LD

Investment, which owned approximately 69.46% of the issued

Shares.

Save as disclosed herein, the Company has not been notified of
any other person (other than a Director or a chief executive of the
Company) who had an interest or a short position in the Shares
and underlying Shares (in respect of positions pursuant to equity
derivatives) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO as at 31 December
2016.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Other than the schemes disclosed in the section headed “Share
Option Schemes” below, at no time during the Year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles of Association provide that each Director, secretary
or other officer of the Company shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from and
against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses
which any of them may incur or sustain in or about the execution
of the duties in their respective offices. The Company has taken
out and maintained appropriate insurance to cover potential legal
actions against its Directors.

Save as disclosed in this report, the Company has not come into
any permitted indemnity provision with the Directors.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Group or
existed during the Year.

DONATIONS

The Group had not made charitable or other donations of
HK$10,000 and/or above during the Year.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING YEAR

Saved as disclosed in the Management Discussion and Analysis
on pages 17 to 39, there were no other important events affecting
the Group that had occurred after 31 December 2016 and up to
the date of this report.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five individuals
with the highest emoluments for the Year are set out in notes 6
and 7 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

UPDATE ON THE DIRECTORS INFORMATION
UNDER RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING
RULES

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, changes in the
information of Directors since the date of the 2015 Annual Report
of the Company required to be disclosed in this report are as
follows:

One of the INEDs, Mr. Ng Sui Yin, has become the company
secretary of Man Yue Technology Holdings Limited, a company
whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange (Stock Code:
0894) since 12 April 2016 and up to the date of this report.

Saved as disclosed as above, there were no other important
changes in the information of Directors.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

On 13 November 2014, the Company adopted the pre-IPO
share option scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) and
a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) and granted
a total of 59,935,000 share options under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme to the eligible participants with an aim to reward
their contribution to the Group made or possibly made. On 26
October 2016, the Company granted an aggregate of 39,425,000
share options under the Share Option Scheme to the eligible
participants. Details of the schemes are set out below:
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A. Share Option Scheme

1.

Purpose of the Share Option Scheme:

The Share Option Scheme is established to recognise
and acknowledge the contributions that the Eligible
Participants (as defined in paragraph 2 below) had or
may have made to the Group. The Share Option Scheme
will provide the Eligible Participants with an opportunity
to have a personal stake in the Company with a view to
achieving the following objectives:

()  motivate the Eligible Participants to optimise their
performance efficiency for the benefit of the Group;
and

(i) attract and retain or otherwise maintain an on-going
business relationship with the Eligible Participants
whose contributions are or will be beneficial to the
long-term growth of the Group.

Participants of the Share Option Scheme:

The Board may, at its discretion, offer to grant an
option to the following persons (collectively the “Eligible
Participants”) to subscribe for such number of new
Shares as the Board may determine:

(i) any full-time or part-time employees, executives or
officers of the Company or any of its subsidiaries;

(i) any directors (including independent non-executive
directors) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries;
and

(i) any advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers,
distributors and such other persons who in
the sole opinion of the Board will contribute or
have contributed to the Company or any of its
subsidiaries.
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3. Total number of Shares available for issue under the
Share Option Scheme and percentage of issued share

capital as at the date of this report:

The maximum number of Shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Share Option Scheme
and under any other share option schemes of the
Company must not in aggregate exceed 100,000,000
Shares (representing 10% and approximately 9.13%
of the issued share capital immediately following
completion of the Global Offering (as defined in
the Prospectus) and as at the date of this report,

respectively).

4. Maximum entitlement of each participant under the

Share Option Scheme:

The total number of Shares issued and which may fall
to be issued upon exercise of the options granted under
the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company (including both exercised and
outstanding options) to each Eligible Participant in any
12-month period up to the date of grant shall not exceed
1% of the Shares in issue as at the date of grant. Any
further grant of options in excess of this 1% limit shall be

subject to:

()  the issue of a circular by the Company containing
the identity of the Eligible Participant, the numbers
of and terms of the options to be granted (and
options previously granted to such Eligible
Participant), the information as required under
Rules 17.02(2)(d) and the disclaimer required under

17.02(4) of the Listing Rules; and

(i) the approval of the Shareholders in general meeting
and/or other requirements prescribed under the
Listing Rules from time to time with such Eligible
Participant and his/her close associates (as defined
in the Listing Rules) (or his/her associates if the
Eligible Participant is a connected person(as defined

in the Listing Rules)) abstaining from voting.
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The period within which the options must be exercised
under Share Option Scheme to subscribe for Shares:

An option may be exercised in accordance with the
terms of the Share Option Scheme at any time after the
date upon which the option is deemed to be granted and
accepted and prior to the expiry of 10 years from that
date subject to the provisions for early termination set
out in the Share Option Scheme.

The minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised:

There is no minimum period for which an option granted
must be held before it can be exercised unless otherwise
imposed by the Directors.

The amount payable on application or acceptance of the
option and the period within which payments or calls
must or may be made, or loans for such purposes must
be repaid:

Options granted must be taken up within 21 days of the
date of grant, upon payment of HK$1 per grant.

The basis of determining the exercise price:

The exercise price is determined by the Board but shall
not be less than the highest of: () the official closing
price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheet on the date of grant, which must
be a day on which the Stock Exchange is open for the
business of dealing in securities; (i) the average of the
official closing prices of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii)
the nominal value of a Share.
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10.

The remaining life of the Share Option Scheme:

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a
period of 10 years commencing on 13 November 2014.

The total number of share options granted under the
Share Option Scheme on 26 October 2016:

On 26 October 2016, the Company granted a total of
39,425,000 share options (representing approximately
3.78% of the issued share capital of the Company on
the date of grant of the relevant share options (i.e. 26
October 2016) and approximately 3.60% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at the date of this
report) under the Share Option Scheme to 165 eligible
participants.

11. The period within which the options granted under the

Share Option Scheme on 26 October 2016 must be
exercised to subscribe for Shares:

The options granted are exercisable within the period as
notified by the Board to each grantee and in accordance
with the following manner:

(i)  upon, among others, the revenue (‘revenue”) of
the Company for the year ending 31 December
2017 increases by no less than 25% as compared
with the revenue for the year ended 31 December
2016, up to 40% of the share options granted
(rounded down to the nearest whole number) shall
be exercisable during the period from 1 April 2018
to 31 December 2018 (both days inclusive);
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(i

(i)

upon, among others, the revenue of the Company
for the year ending 31 December 2018 recording
compound annual growth rate of not less than 25%
from the revenue for the year ended 31 December
2016, up to 30% share options granted (rounded
down to the nearest whole number) shall be
exercisable during the period from 1 April 2019 to
31 December 2019 (both days inclusive); and

upon, among others, the revenue of the Company
for the year ending 31 December 2019 recording
compound annual growth rate of not less than 25%
from the revenue for the year ended 31 December
2016, up to 30% share options granted (rounded
down to the nearest whole number) shall be
exercisable during the period from 1 April 2020 to
31 December 2020 (both days inclusive).

The basis of determining the exercise price of share

options granted on 26 October 2016:

The exercise price per Share in respect of the share

options granted on 26 October 2016 under the Share
Option Scheme is HK$4.13 per Share.

5.

(i)

i
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B. Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme B. BERLHBERBRESTE:
1. Purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme: 1. BARALHAEEAMERESEN
Ba:

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme was a share incentive BXRARABESHE Hﬁ T%E TElE

scheme established to recognise and acknowledge the ERTRRGBELATEDH

contributions that the Pre-IPO Eligible Participants (as AEBELERANE ,éf Tﬂ 2

defined in paragraph 2 below) had made to the Group. E(EERTXE2ER) cBERA

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme provided the Pre- RAEEABERETE SR E R

IPO Eligible Participants with an opportunity to have a NAEENEERIEEEMH

personal stake in the Company with a view to achieving —RBR A QR %A E AR

the following purposes: e UERTHBZ:

() motivate the Pre-IPO Eligible Participants to (i) BEEX ARATEEAERE
optimise their performance efficiency for the benefit FrEEERBEE RAEHE
of the Group; and rFl =M B L ERIRAE

&

(i) attract and retain or otherwise maintain relationships (i) WE|REBE XA ARAEEH
with the Pre-IPO Eligible Participants whose BlEETEl s BB EEY
contributions are or will be beneficial to the long- HEBERDEERFIFEDN
term growth of the Group. EGRAER MzSEEEKE

EERNER - DEIEGE AR
SENEREREREBN-
2. Participants of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme: 2. BRAHEBEENBERETER
HAZE

The Board might, at its discretion, offer to grant an BRAAHREBEESABRETE N

option to subscribe for such number of new Shares EER2HEERESTS2ER

as the Board might determine to the full-time, key RBREHARNRR,/HERMAE
employees of the Group who, in the sole opinion of the A EARELE BN ANEER

Board, had contributed to the Company and/or any of FTEZBEE([BALHAES

the subsidiaries (the “Pre-IPO Eligible Participants”). AEERSEE]) -
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Total number of Shares available for issue under the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme:

The number of Shares in respect of which options were
granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is
59,935,000 Shares (representing approximately 5.99%
and approximately 5.47% of the issued share capital of
the Company immediately following completion of the
Global Offering (as defined in the Prospectus) and as at
the date of this report). These options were granted on
13 November 2014 to subscribe for 59,935,000 Shares.
No further options will be offered or granted under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, as the rights to do so
have been terminated.

The period within which the options must be exercised
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme to subscribe for
Shares:

The options granted are exercisable within the period as
notified by the Board to each grantee and in accordance
with the following manner:

()  up to 50% of the Shares that are subject to the
option so granted to him/her (rounded down to the
nearest whole number) at any time during the year
commencing on 1 January 2015 and ending on 31
December 2017;

(i)  up to 75% of the Shares that are subject to the
option so granted to him/her less the number
of Shares in respect of which the option has
been exercised or lapsed (rounded down to the
nearest whole number) at any time during the year
commencing on 1 January 2016 and ending on 31
December 2017; and
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(i) up to 100% of the Shares that are subject to the
option so granted to him/her less the number
of Shares in respect of which the option has
been exercised or lapsed (rounded down to the
nearest whole number) at any time during the year
commencing on 1 January 2017 and ending on 31
December 2017.

Each option granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme is exercisable during the years when such
option becomes vested.

As of the date of this report, none of share options
granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
remained outstanding, and the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme had lapsed accordingly.

The basis of determining the exercise price:

The exercise price per Share in respect of any particular
option granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
is RMBO0.4 per Share.

Except for the above, the principal terms of the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme, which were confirmed
and approved by resolutions in writing of all of the
Shareholders passed on 13 November 2014, were
substantially the same as the terms of the Share Option
Scheme.
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Details of changes during the Year in share options granted
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are as follows:
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BEERXAREEABRER ST
BREBERERFRAZEDFBN
N

Number of underlying Shares comprising share options

ERESR 2 ABRAEA
Outstanding Lapsed/
asat Granted Exercised Cancelled Forfeited As at
1 January during during during during 31 December
Category Date of grant Exercise period 2016 the Year the Year the Year the Year 2016
RZZ-XE
-A-A R=8-5x%
HATTEN HEAXH/ =
B RiEEH fit:d EhRE BEREH  HERTR HEREH L =t-A
Directors
B3
Wang Jiangiang 13 November 2014 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2017 5,000,000 N (2,500,000t - - 2,500,000
TR “F-mET-AT=H —2-14§-f-RHEZ 5,000,000 - 2,500,000/ - - 2,500,000
Z2-tErZA=1-H
Yang Peikun =7 13 November 2014 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2017 10,000,000 - (5,000,000¢2 - - 5,000,000
BRI “E-mE+-A1=H “E-1%5-f-HE 10,000,000 - (5,000,002 - - 5,000,000
ZEt5+ZA=1-R
Hu Sanmufee+ 13 November 2014 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2017 746,500 - 373,250/ - - 373,250
=R “E-RET-AT=A “E-1%-A-BH% 746,500 - (373,260)7 - - 373,250
“5-tEtZR=1-A
15,746,500 - (7,873,250) - - 7,873,250
Employees (in total) 13 November 2014 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2017 11,998,500 - 5,952,750/ = 93,000) 5,952,750
5 (a3) “3-BET-RAT=R ~2-14§-f-RH% 11,998,500 - (6,952,750 - 93,000 5,952,750
ZE-tETZA=T-H
Total
a 27,745,000 - (13,826,000 - 93,000) 13,826,000
Notes: Biat -
1. The weighted average closing price immediately before the 1. 717#H F— AL % B0 ERINEFgK

dates on which the share options were exercised was HK$1.30
per Share.

The weighted average closing price immediately before the
dates on which the share options were exercised was HK$2.84
per Share.

Mr. Yang Peikun resigned as an executive director on 8 July
2016.

Mr. Hu Sanmu was appointed as an executive director on 8 July
2016.

On 6 January 2017, Mr. Wang Jiangiang exercised 2,500,000
share options, Mr. Hu Sanmu exercised 373,250 share options,
Mr. Yang Peikun exercised 5,000,000 share options, and a total
of 5,952,750 share options were exercised by the employees on
the same date. The weighted average closing price immediately
before the date on which the share options were exercised was
HK$4.29 per Share.
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Details of changes during the Year in share options granted R-ZZE—XRNE+A-+~BREE
under the Share Option Scheme on 26 October 2016 are as R RET 2T IR R R ERERN &
follows: FEFBOT:
Number of underlying Shares comprising share options
BRESRZABROEA
Outstanding Lapsed/
asat Granted Exercised Cancelled Forfeited As at
1 January during during during during 31 December
Category Date of grant Exercise period 2016 the Year the Year the Year the Year 2016
RZB-RE
-A-8 RZ%-AF
HATEN HER T8
E3 REEH s BhRE HEARE  BEAGR RS XM/ 7% =t+-A
Directors
iz
Wang Jiangiang 26 October 2016 please refer to the paragraph under - 1,612,000 - - - 1,612,000
“The period within which the
options granted under the Share
Option Scheme on 26 October
2016 must be exercised to
subscribe for Shares” on
pages 66-67
Th% ZE-R"ETAZ1A F2H260-678 [W=F-~E+A = 1,612,000 - - - 1,612,000
“TRRRERRET D ME@E’*
RENARRATERDRIBF
Hu Sanmu 26 October 2016 please refer to the paragraph under - 1,200,000 - - - 1,200,000
“The period within which the
options granted under the Share
Option Scheme on 26 October
2016 must be exercised to
subscribe for Shares" on
pages 66-67
#=K ZE-~ETAZTAB F2H%66675 [R-F—7~ETA - 1,200,000 - - - 1,200,000
e F&iﬂéﬁ ETERLOE
RENDEROTRAR] B%E
- 2,812,000 - - - 2,812,000
Employees (in total) 26 October 2016 please refer to the paragraph under B 36,613,000 - (681,000) 35,932,000
“The period within which the
options granted under the Share
Option Scheme on 26 October
2016 must be exercised to
subscribe for Shares” on
pages 66-67
ER(A3) Z2-RETAZTAB E2HE0667R N2~ ETA - 3,613,000 - - (681,000) 35,932,000
_+/\E$Eﬁﬂéﬂﬁ E#%Hiﬁﬁ@%
RENABRATEDRIBE
Totzj\r\ - 39,425,000 - - (681,000) 38,744,000
&3
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee in accordance
with the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code as set
out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The annual results of the
Group for the Year have been reviewed by the Audit Committee
which comprises all the three INEDs, namely Mr. Ng Sui Yin, being
the chairman, Ms. Chen Jun and Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, certain related party transactions as set out in
note 29 to the consolidated financial statements also constituted
continuing connected transactions for the Company under the
Listing Rules, and are required to be disclosed in this report
in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Save as
disclosed in this report, none of the related party transactions
constitutes a continuing connected transaction or connected
transaction as defined under the Listing Rules.

During the Year, the Group has certain continuing connected
transactions which were exempted from the notice and
independent Shareholders’ approval requirements, but subject
to the reporting, annual review and announcement requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The details of those
transactions are set out below:
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Purchase Agreement in respect of the purchase of
precise connectors from Van Telecom Limited (“Van
Telecom PRC”)

On 13 November 2014, the Company entered into a purchase
agreement (the “Purchase Agreement”) with Van Telecom PRC,
pursuant to which Van Telecom PRC agreed to supply the precise
connectors to the Group for a term from 1 January 2014 to 31
December 2016.

The price for the precise connectors supplied by Van Telecom PRC
under the Purchase Agreement was determined by reference to
the price at which comparable types of precise connectors that
are sold by independent suppliers to the Group under normal
commercial terms in the ordinary course of its business and such
price shall be no less favourable to the Group than was available
from independent suppliers. In considering whether to purchase
from Van Telecom PRC, the Group sought quotations from at least
two independent third parties offering the same or comparable
products. The Group purchased the precise connectors from Van
Telecom PRC if the price and quality of the products offered were
comparable to or more favourable to the Group than those offered
by independent third parties for the same or comparable products.

Van Telecom PRC is wholly owned by CK Telecom Inc. (‘CK
Telecom”), which is in turn wholly owned by Mr. He Ningning,
an executive Director, the chairman and controlling shareholder
(as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company. As such, Van
Telecom PRC is a connected person of the Company for the
purpose of the Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the total transaction

amount under the Purchase Agreement was RMB nil and the
annual cap amount for the Year was RMB300,000.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2016

FHOEZNRARAT ([EZNKH
B BERRERRT LNRBHE

R-ZFB-—NFE+—A+=H AR7FHE
MEZ R R BRI L IR B s ([ 5R08 1
&) Bl WRRRPERERARE
BEERT ERS BRa T —WF
—A—HEE-T-—RF+-_A=+—
Bk

MELXRXTEREXBHEZEENRE
BEBRERNDSEBLHEBRNATE
BEBETFREFAXRGRAASEHE
MEERTERSNERETE  BAA
SEHEHRNEREBTRERBILHERE
BEATIRENER -EZE DR MELH
FHREBER AEBELIRMEKE
HERARABEMNBILE =T R
B-MRMELF T BEAMERE®RNE
RN E e EEH AR RRE®RNE L
FZTHFREEREEIHEAKEEER
Ba AIAREBRMEBERTBRS-

ME % Bl A B B CK Telecom Inc. ([CK
Telecom | ) 2 & %A - MCK Telecomm
MNITESHREIELRARRIZERRRE (M
ETRBITER)AEELETEHRE -
Eit RSP ERE EmHNBAR
NAMEEANT

Bz _T—R"F+_A=+—HBLF
B REXBHIETHOIZEERA
REZT AEEZFERZRER/A
K #300,0007T °



On 16 December 2016, the Company and Van Telecom PRC
renewed the Purchase Agreement (the “Renewed Purchase
Agreement”), pursuant to which, Van Telecom PRC agreed to
continue to supply to the Group precise connectors for a term
commenced from 1 January 2017 and expiring on 31 December
2019. Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 16
December 2016 for details.

C-Flex Electronic Purchase Agreement in respect of
the purchase of flexible printed circuit board (“FPC”)
from C-Flex Electronic (Heyuan) Ltd. (formerly known
as C-Flex Electronic (Heyuan) Co., Ltd) (“C-Flex
Electronic”)

On 13 November 2014, the Company entered into a purchase
agreement (the “C-Flex Electronic Purchase Agreement”) with
C-Flex Electronic, pursuant to which C-Flex Electronic agreed to
supply the FPCs to the Group for a term from 1 January 2014 to
31 December 2016.

The price for the FPCs supplied by C-Flex Electronic under
the C-Flex Electronic Purchase Agreement was determined by
reference to the price at which comparable types of FPCs that
are sold by independent suppliers to the Group under normal
commercial terms in the ordinary course of its business and such
price shall be no less favourable to the Group than was available
from independent suppliers. In considering whether to purchase
from C-Flex Electronic, the Group sought quotations from at least
two independent third parties offering the same or comparable
products. The Group purchased the FPCs from C-Flex Electronic
if the price and quality of the products offered were comparable
to or more favourable to the Group than those offered by
independent third parties for the same or comparable products.
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C-Flex Electronic is wholly owned by Shenzhen Handi Venture
Capital Investment Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhen Handi”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Shenzhen Xike Dexin Telecom Equipment Co., Ltd.
(“Shenzhen CK”) which is in turn owned as to 90.0% by Mr. He
Ningning, an executive Director, the Chairman and controlling
shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company, and
10.0% by Mr. Wang Jiangiang, an executive Director and the chief
executive officer. As such, C-Flex Electronic is a connected person
of the Company for the purpose of the Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the total transaction
amount under the C-Flex Electronic Purchase Agreement was
approximately RMB6,387,000 and the annual cap amount for the
Year was RMB6,500,000.

On 16 December 2016, the Company and C-Flex Electronic
renewed the Purchase Agreement (the “Renewed C-Flex Electronic
Purchase Agreement”), pursuant to which, C-Flex Electronic
agreed to continue to supply to the Group flexible printed circuits
and rigid-flex printed circuit boards, for a further term commenced
from 1 January 2017 and expiring on 31 December 2019. Please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 16 December

2016 for details.

Supply Agreement and Supplemental Supply Agreement
in respect of the supply of camera modules to CK
Telecom Limited (“Heyuan CK”)

On 18 November 2014, the Company entered into a supply
agreement (the “Supply Agreement”) with Heyuan CK, pursuant
to which the Group agreed to supply the camera modules to
Heyuan CK for the production of its products for a term from 1
January 2014 to 31 December 2016. On 29 December 2014, the
Company and Heyuan CK entered into a supplemental supply
agreement (the “Supplemental Supply Agreement”) to revise the
annual caps under the Supply Agreement.
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The price for the camera modules supplied by the Group under the
Supply Agreement and the Supplemental Supply Agreement was
determined by reference to the raw material costs and production
costs to be incurred by the Group and the profit margin, which
is expected to be comparable with the level of profits derived
from the Group’s sales to independent customers, subject to
adjustments arising from the expected quantity, quality, delivery
schedule, specifications and market competition.

Heyuan CK is wholly owned by CK Telecom which is in turn wholly
owned by Mr. He Ningning, an executive Director, the Chairman
and controlling shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of
the Company. As such, Heyuan CK is a connected person of the
Company for the purpose of the Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the total transaction
amount under the Supply Agreement and Supplemental Supply
Agreement was approximately RMB70,219,000 and the revised
annual cap amount for the Year was RMB70,500,000.

On 16 December 2016, the Company and Heyuan CK renewed
the Supply Agreement (the “Renewed Heyuan CK Supply
Agreement”), pursuant to which, Heyuan CK agreed to continue
to purchase from the Group camera modules and fingerprint
recognition modules, for a further term commenced from 1
January 2017 and expiring on 31 December 2019. Please refer to
the announcement of the Company dated 16 December 2016 for
details.
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Property Sub-Lease Agreement entered into by
Chengdu QT, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company and Chengdu CK Technology Limited
(“Chengdu CK”) (“Chengdu CK Sub-Lease Agreement”)

On 6 June 2014, Chengdu QT, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company entered into a lease agreement with
Chengdu CK (the “Chengdu CK Sub-Lease Agreement”), pursuant
to which, Chengdu CK agreed to sub-lease certain portion of
the premises situated on the 6th floor, Block 12, Zone C, Tianfu
Software Park, No. 219 Tianhua Er Road, Gaoxin District,
Chengdu, the PRC (A Bl Bk & 1 1= 3 [& K 2 — B 21955 R T84 &
CIEB12%R6/€ ) , with total gross area of approximately 242 sg.m. to
Chengdu QT for a term from 6 June 2014 to 31 December 2016.

The landlord of the premises sub-leased by Chengdu CK to
Chengdu QT is an independent third party, the rent under the
Chengdu CK Sub-Lease Agreement paid by Chengdu QT to
Chengdu CK was determined with reference to the market
rent for similar premises in the vicinity and the rent, utilities and
management fees payable by Chengdu CK under the tenancy
agreement entered into with the Landlord and on normal
commercial terms, and such prices shall be no less favourable to
Chengdu QT than is available from independent third parties.

Chengdu CK is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Shenzhen CK, which
is in turn owned as to 90.0% by Mr. He Ningning, an executive
Director, the chairman and controlling shareholder (as defined in
the Listing Rules) of the Company and as to 10.0% by Mr. Wang
Jiangiang, an executive Director and the chief executive officer,
respectively. As such, Chengdu CK is a connected person of the
Company for the purpose of the Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the total transaction
amount under the Chengdu CK Sub-Lease Agreement was
approximately RMB128,000 and the annual cap amount for the
Year was RMB131,000.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2016

EBARAZEEZENBE AR RBELHK
ERBETNMRARIF ([KEBET])
RN B DR E A R ([ ER A o] AR 1
&1)

R-_ZE—NENANE - AREZEE
AN B AR KE LKA P 0] 5] 2
HEwZ ((KBAEATEBRBZE]) &
b AT RI R BB AR FREKE TS
@ RE K219 RN R HECE121%
BEMMEZETHHBEEL242FF
KERFHREER BHIRBA-ZT—OF
NASRNBRE-_E—XRF+_A=+—
Hike

REBAERATRBERZOERZRE
RBIE =77 BRI IKAR R A ER A A]
BHEBBE{SNTREAAINEES T2
ZMOBUME 2T HEE KR
BEFFIVUZHERZERN ZHEE K
ENEEERILEREGRET AKX
MERIRENERERTBERBLSE
=R E-

KERAN AFIART 22EFRA M
FINATDRBRRATESREFEREAR
AIERARR (N EmRAIMER ) (MEE
EERPITESRITHRER TEBLE
HEH90.0% [ 10.0% % 2= o (It » A EB P
AIREEMRANBARAIBEEAL-

HIEF—Z2—AR"F+-_A=+—B1I#F
E - REKBANTERAGRZETNRS
HmEE A A AR ¥128,0007 NEE 2 FE
ERHRE A ARE131,0007T °



On 16 December 2016, Chengdu QT and Chengdu CK renewed
the Sub-Lease Agreement (“the Renewed Chengdu CK Sub-Lease
Agreement”), pursuant to which, Chengdu CK agreed to continue
to sub-lease certain portion of the premises situated on the 6th
floor, Block 12, Zone C, Tianfu Software Park, No. 219 Tianhua
Er Road, Gaoxin District, Chengdu, the PRC ( & Bk #875 = %7 &
KEE T RER2198 KT F E CIR124K6/E ) ,with total gross area of
approximately 242 sg.m. to Chengdu QT, for a term commenced
from 1 January 2017 and expiring on 31 December 2019. Please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 16 December
2016 for details.

Property Lease Agreements entered into by Kunshan
QT China, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company and Van Telecom PRC (the “Van Telecom PRC
Property Lease Agreements”)

Kunshan QT China, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company entered into two factory building and dormitories lease
agreements (collectively the “Van Telecom PRC Property Lease
Agreements”) with Van Telecom PRC on 23 June 2016 and 16
September 2016 respectively, pursuant to which, Van Telecom
PRC agreed to lease certain factory buildings and worker’s
dormitories situated on No. 1999 Hanpu Road, Kunshan, Jiangsu
Province, the PRC ( F BIJT # & B 1L 2B 5 19995% ) to Kunshan
QT China for a term up to 31 December 2018.

The property leased by Van Telecom PRC to Kunshan QT China
is its own property, the rent under the Van Telecom PRC Property
Lease Agreements paid by Kunshan QT China to Van Telecom
PRC was determined with reference to the market rent for similar
premises in the vicinity and on normal commercial terms, and such
prices offered by Van Telecom PRC shall be no less favourable to
Kunshan QT China than is available from independent third parties.

Van Telecom PRC is wholly-owned by CK Telecom, which is in
turn wholly-owned by Mr. He Ningning, an executive Director, the
chairman and controlling shareholder (as defined in the Listing
Rules) of the Company. As such, Van Telecom PRC is a connected
person of the Company for the purpose of the Listing Rules.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016, the total transaction
amount under the Van Telecom PRC Property Lease Agreements
was approximately RMB588,000 and the annual cap amount for
the Year was RMB1,744,325.

On 16 December 2016, Kunshan QT China renewed the lease
agreements with Van Telecom PRC (the “Renewed Van Telecom
PRC Property Lease Agreement”), pursuant to which, Van Telecom
PRC agreed to continue to lease certain factory buildings and
worker’s dormitories situated on No. 1999 Hanpu Road, Kunshan,
Jiangsu Province, the PRC (H BT #k 4 B IL T /% )8 #519995% )
to Kunshan QT China for a term commenced from 1 January
2017 and expiring on 31 December 2019. Please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 16 December 2016 for
details.

The INEDs have reviewed the aforesaid continuing connected
transactions and confirmed that such transactions have been:

1. entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Group;

2. entered into on normal commercial or better terms; and

3. entered into in accordance with the agreements governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Company and Shareholders’ as a whole.

The independent auditor of the Company was engaged to report
on the Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and by reference to Practice Note
740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. The independent auditor of the
Company has issued an unqualified letter containing findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed by the Group in this section in accordance with Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the relevant independent
auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige
the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

According to the information that is publicly available to the
Company, and so far as the Directors are aware of, the Company
has maintained a sufficient public float as required by the Listing
Rules during the Year and up to the latest practicable date prior to
the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ COMPETING BUSINESS

A deed of non-competition (the “Deed of Non-Competition”) was
entered into by Mr. He Ningning, the Chairman and an executive
Director and QT Investment (a company wholly-owned by Mr. He
Ningning) (collectively, the “Controlling Shareholders”) in favour of
the Company on 13 November 2014, pursuant to which each of
the Controlling Shareholders will not, and will procure its/his close
associates (other than members of the Group) not to directly or
indirectly be involved in or undertake any business (other than
the Group’s business) that directly or indirectly competes, or may
compete, with the Group’s business or undertaking, or hold shares
or interest in any companies or business that compete directly or
indirectly with the business engaged by the Group from time to
time except where the Controlling Shareholders hold less than 5%
of the total issued share capital of any company (whose shares are
listed on the Stock Exchange or any other stock exchange) which
is engaged in any business that is or may be in competition with
any business engaged by any member of the Group and they do
not control 10% or more of the composition of the Board.

The Company has received the annual written confirmation from
the Controlling Shareholders in respect of the compliance and
enforcement of the terms of the Deed of Non-Competition by the
Controlling Shareholders during the Year.
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The INEDs have reviewed the Deed of Non-Competition entered
into by the Controlling Shareholders as to whether the Controlling
Shareholders had abided by the Deed of Non-Competition. The
INEDs confirmed that the Controlling Shareholders had not been in
breach of the Deed of Non-Competition during the Year.

Apart from the business of the Group, none of the Directors or
their respective associates had engaged in or had any interest in
any business which competed or might compete with the business
of the Group during the Year.

PROFESSIONAL TAX ADVICE RECOMMENDED

If the Shareholders are unsure about the taxation implications of
purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in, or the exercise of
any rights in relation to the Shares, they are advised to consult a
professional adviser.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

Upon the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board has
resolved that a resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM
to re-appoint Messrs. KPMG as the independent auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board
He Ningning

Chairman

Hong Kong, 16 March 2017
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Corporate Governance Report
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The Company is committed to fulfilling its responsibilities to the
Company’s shareholders (the “Shareholders”) and protecting
and enhancing Shareholders’ value through good corporate
governance.

The Directors of the Company recognise the importance of
incorporating elements of good corporate governance in the
management structures and internal control procedures of the
Group so as to achieve effective accountability.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has adopted and complied with all applicable code
provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) as contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules during the
Year.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct governing the securities transactions by the Directors.
Following a specific enquiry made by the Company on the
Directors, all Directors have confirmed that they had complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code during the Year.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Responsibilities

The board of Directors (the “Board”) is primarily responsible for
overseeing and supervising the management of the business
affairs and the overall performance of the Group. The Board sets
the Group’s values and standards and ensures that the requisite
financial and human resources support are in place for the Group
to achieve its objectives. The functions performed by the Board
include but are not limited to formulating the Group’s business
plans and strategies, deciding all significant financial (including
major capital expenditure) and operational issues, developing,
monitoring and reviewing the Group’s corporate governance and
all other functions reserved to the Board under the Company’s
articles of association (the “Articles of Association”). The Board has
established Board committees and has delegated to these Board
committees various responsibilities as set out in their respective
terms of reference which are published on the respective websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The Board may from
time to time delegate certain functions to management of the
Group if and when considered appropriate. The management
is mainly responsible for the execution of the business plans,
strategies and policies adopted by the Board and assigned to it
from time to time.

The Directors have full access to information of the Group and are
entitled to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expense.

Composition

The Company is committed to the view that the Board should
include a balanced composition of executive and independent
non-executive Directors so that there is a strong independent
element on the Board, which can effectively exercise independent
judgment.
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During the Year and up to the date of this report, the Board
comprises the following six Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. He Ningning (Chairman)

Mr. Wang Jiangiang (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Hu Sanmu (Vice President of Sales)
(Appointed on 8 July 2016)

Mr. Yang Peikun
(Resigned as an executive Director and
Chief Executive Officer on 8 July 2016)

Independent Non-executive Directors (the “INEDs”)

Ms. Chen Jun
Mr. Ng Sui Yin
Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang

The biographical details of each of the Directors are set out in
the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report.

Mr. He Ningning, the chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”) and
an executive Director, is the step-brother of Mr. Wang Jiangiang,
Chief Executive Officer of the Group and an executive Director.
Save as aforesaid, there was no financial, business, family or other
material relationship among the Directors.

The INEDs have brought a wide range of business and financial
expertise, experience and independent judgement to the Board.
Through active participation in the Board meetings and serving on
various Board committees, all INEDs will continue to make various
contributions to the Company.

Throughout the Year, the Company had three INEDs, representing
half of the Board members, which has exceeded the requirement
of the Listing Rules that the number of INEDs must represent at
least one-third of the Board members, and met the requirement
that at least one of the INEDs has appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise.
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The Company has received an annual confirmation of
independence in writing from each of the INEDs pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based on such confirmation, the
Company considers that all the INEDs are independent and have
met the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules during the Year and up to the date of this annual report.

During the Year, the Chairman has held one meeting with INEDs
without the presence of the executive Directors.

Proper insurance coverage in respect of legal actions against the
Directors’ liability has been arranged by the Company.

Directors’ Continuing Professional Development

For the Year, each of the Directors (namely Mr. He Ningning, Mr.
Wang Jiangiang, Mr. Hu Sanmu, Ms. Chen Jun, Mr. Ng Sui Yin
and Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang) have complied with the requirements
of the Code Provision AB.5 of the CG Code, have participated in
relevant continuing professional development and training at the
Company’s expense, and all Directors have been requested to
provide the Company with their training records.

In addition, the Company has from time to time provided

briefings to all Directors to develop and refresh their duties and
responsibilities.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2016
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Meetings of the Board and Directors’ Attendance
Records

During the Year, the Board held ten meetings in total (i.e. on
1 February, 24 March, 8 April, 20 May, 8 July, 19 August, 26
October, 1 December, 8 December and 16 December 2016
respectively) with notice given to the Directors at least 14 days
in advance. Before each Board meeting, an agenda and the
accompanying Board papers have been sent to all Directors at
least three days before the intended date of the Board meeting
or such other period as agreed in advance. The joint company
secretaries of the Company (the “Joint Company Secretaries”) are
responsible for keeping all Board meeting’s minutes. The draft and
final versions of the minutes have been circulated to the Directors
for comments and record within a reasonable time after each
meeting and the final version is open for the Directors’ inspection.

The attendance of each Director at the Board meetings and
general meeting during the Year is as follows:
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Meetings attended/
Eligible to attend

HERE, BERERE
General
Board Meeting
Name of Directors E=pE EEg BRREKXE
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. He Ningning (Chairman) SRS A (F/E) 10/10 11
Mr. Yang Peikun IS IE A A
(Resigned on 8 July 2016) (RZZE—R"FELANBEFT) 5/5 1/1
Mr. Wang Jianagiang (Chief Executive Officer) TE #3858 4 (7TEC44 %) 10/10 11
Mr. Hu Sanmu (Vice President of Sales) H=AREE (HESEE)
(Appointed on 8 July 2016) (R=ZZE—XR"FEANH
EEZE) 5/5
Independent Non-executive Directors VEHTES
(the “INEDs”)
Ms. Chen Jun BREFZ L+ 10/10 1/1
Mr. Ng Sui Yin RInBELE 10/10 1/1
Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang TREFTE 10/10 1/1
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Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a policy of the Board diversity (the
“Board Diversity Policy”) with all measurable objectives set for
implementing the same.

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of a diversity
of Board members. It endeavours to ensure that the Board has
a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s business. All
Board appointments will continue to be made on a merit basis
with due regard for the benefits of diversity of the Board members.
Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, language,
cultural background, educational background, industry experience
and professional experience.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are
separate and performed by different individuals to ensure a
balance of power and authority so that power is not concentrated
in any one individual. Mr. He Ningning, Chairman, is responsible
for the management of the Board while Mr. Wang Jiangiang,
Chief Executive Officer, is responsible for managing the Group’s
business and overall operations. There is a clear division of
responsibilities between Chairman and Chief Executive Officer.

During the year, Mr. Yang Peikun, previous executive Director and
Chief Executive Officer, resigned as an executive Director and
Chief Executive Officer due to personal affairs (please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 8 July 2016 for details).

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four Board committees, namely the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Risk Management Committee, to oversee
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. The Board committees
are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2016

EEEZT{LEE

ESERMEFTEZ LLBRR([EFE
L EBE]) AR HETTHERIBRE
FIERBERE -

ARAFARAY R EEFTEKREL TILLZ
Ma TERNEREFSABBEARAE
RAXBERNRTT BRLBBZT
e PoaRE-ESEMELZERESE
NETZEREE RBEESZEKES
iz M U HRE— R Z TR
w(BEETERERN F&K #F5 X
tER HEER TERLBREREERK
BIEREA

ERERITHRAR

TEMTBRAEREAETRER AR
ATEE  ARRERENRREZ T &
ERE-—ALTHRBEERLEN -T/FE

BIRRREEAEEEAREXEBLE
BEF TRETRERSEZETE
RE R

RAFEE  RRTEERITRAHSGIE
HMELREAZSHEONRRAGEANTE
ERTRBHBE (FRARAN_-F
—RELtANBZRE) -

EEEgT£8E

EEeCRUBETNTNEZES AEX
Z8e FHEZEg REAZES AR
BEZE® UEMEEAQATEN
HZEEFEHE-BEFEE B9
REBTHEHSEBBEZRDER-



Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

The written terms of reference for the Board committees are
posted on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established with written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code. It comprises three
INEDs, namely Mr. Ng Sui Yin, Ms. Chen Jun and Mr. Chu Chia-
Hsiang. Mr. Ng Sui Yin is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The principal roles and functions of the Audit Committee include,
but are not limited to:

° making recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of external auditor, and
approving the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor, and handling any questions regarding its
resignation or dismissal;

e reviewing and monitoring the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards and discussing with
the external auditor on the nature and scope of the audit and
reporting obligations before the audit commences;

e developing and implementing a policy on engaging an
external auditor to supply non-audit services and reporting to
the Board, identifying and making recommendations on any
matters where action or improvement is needed;

° monitoring the integrity of the Company’s financial statements
and annual report and accounts, half-year report and, if
prepared for publication, quarterly reports, and reviewing
significant financial reporting judgments contained in them;

e reviewing the Company’s financial controls, internal control
and risk management systems;

e  discussing the internal control system with the management
to ensure that the management has performed its duty and
have an effective internal control system in place;
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e considering major investigation findings on internal control
matters as delegated by the Board or on its own initiative and
management’s response to these findings;

e ensuring coordination between the internal and external
auditors, ensuring that the internal audit function is
adequately resourced and has appropriate standing within the
Company, and reviewing and monitoring its effectiveness;

° reviewing the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

° reviewing the external auditor’'s management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to management about
the accounting records, financial accounts or systems of
control and management’s response;

e reviewing the pricing rules of continuing connected
transactions and implementation of transaction caps, etc.;

e  ensuring that the Board will provide a timely response to the
issues raised in the external auditor’'s management letter; and

e  considering other topics as defined by the Board.

During the Year, the Audit Committee held two meetings in
total (i.e. on 24 March 2016 and 19 August 2016) (the “Audit
Committee Meetings”) respectively and reviewed the audited
consolidated results for the year ended 31 December 2015 and
the unaudited consolidated results for the six months ended 30
June 2016 of the Company, respectively, including the accounting
principles and practice adopted by the Group, the Company’s
compliance with the code provisions of the CG Code and
disclosure thereof in the relevant annual and interim reports, the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control and recommended to
the Board for consideration the same and the re-appointment of
KPMG, Certified Public Accountants as the Company’s external
auditor at the annual generate meeting of the Company held on 20
May 2016 (‘2016 AGM®).
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The attendance of each INED at the Audit Committee Meetings
during the Year is as follows:

BEENAFRELFEEZZE S ES
g (N

No. of Attendance (Note)/
No. of Meetings

HERE (M)
Name of Directors BEEMR EERE
Mr. Ng Sui Yin (Chairman) RIGEEE (FE) 2/2
Ms. Chen Jun PR AB 22 & 2/2
Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang IIRERE 2/2

Note: The Audit Committee Meeting was attended by the INEDs in

person, not by an alternate.

The Audit Committee held one meeting on 16 March 2017 and
reviewed the Company’s draft audited consolidated results for the
Year, including the accounting principles and practice adopted by
the Group, the Company’s compliance with the code provisions
of the CG Code and disclosure in this report, as well as the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control and recommended to
the Board for consideration the same and the re-appointment of
KPMG, Certified Public Accountants as the Company’s external
auditor at the AGM.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee has been established with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The
Remuneration Committee comprises three INEDs, namely Mr. Chu
Chia-Hsiang, Mr. Ng Sui Yin and Ms. Chen Jun. Mr. Chu Chia-
Hsiang is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.
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The principal roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee #HMEZE e T EA G LEEBTEAT
include, but are not limited to:

92

making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for the remuneration of all Directors and
senior management and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing the remuneration policy;

reviewing and approving the management’s remuneration
proposals by reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives;

making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management including benefits in kind, pension rights
and compensation payments, including any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment;

making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of non-executive Directors;

considering salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment, responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

reviewing and approving compensation payable to the
executive Directors and senior management for any loss
or termination of office or appointment to ensure that it is
consistent with the contractual terms and is otherwise fair and
reasonable and not excessive;

reviewing and approving compensation arrangements relating
to the dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to
ensure that they are consistent with the contractual terms and
are otherwise reasonable and appropriate; and

ensuring that no Director or any of his/her associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) is involved in deciding his/her
own remuneration.
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During the Year, the Remuneration Committee held one meeting
on 24 March 2016, and reviewed and recommended to the Board
for consideration certain remuneration-related matters of the
Directors and senior management, determined the policy for the
remuneration of executive Directors, assessed performance of
executive Directors and approved the terms of executive Directors’
service contracts.

For determining the remuneration packages of each Director,
market rates and factors such as each Director’s workload
and required commitment were taken into account. In addition,
factors comprising economic and market situations, individual
contributions to the Group’s results and development as well
as individual’s potential were considered when determining the
remuneration packages of Executive Directors.

The attendance of each Director at the Remuneration Committee
meeting during the Year is as follows:

RAFEE FHEEER _T—RF=
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No. of Attendance (Note)/
No. of Meetings

HERE (FaE)

Name of Directors BEEHA EERE
Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang (Chairman) MRERE (/E) 11

Mr. Ng Sui Yin RinB k& 1/1

Ms. Chen Jun PRAEFZZ = 1/1
Note: The Remuneration Committee Meeting was attended by the MfiZ: FrEEEHEEHEHNEESSE

relevant Directors in person, not by an alternate.

The Remuneration Committee also held one meeting on 16
March 2017, and reviewed and recommended to the Board for
consideration certain remuneration-related matters of the Directors
and senior management.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee has been established with written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. It comprises
two INEDs, namely Ms. Chen Jun and Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang and an
executive Director, namely Mr. He Ningning. Mr. He Ningning is the
chairman of the Nomination Committee.
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The

principal roles and functions of the Nomination Committee

include, but are not limited to:

reviewing the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience and diversity of
perspectives) of the Board at least annually and making
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and selecting or making recommendations to
the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships;

assessing the independence of the INEDs;

reviewing the Board Diversity Policy and reviewing the
measurable objectives for implementing such Board Diversity
Policy, including but not limited to gender, age, race,
language, cultural background, educational background,
industry experience and professional experience of the Board,
and the progress on achieving the objectives; and making
disclosure of its progress and its review results in the annual
report annually; and

making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and the succession planning
for the Directors, in particular, the Chairman and the chief
executives.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee held one meeting on

24 March 2016, and among other things, reviewed the structure,

size

and composition of the Board, assessed the independence

of the INEDs and recommended to the Board for consideration

the re-appointment of all the retiring Directors as Directors at the

2016 AGM as well as determined the policy for the nomination of

Directors.
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The attendance of each Director at the Nomination Committee
meetings during the Year is as follows:

BEEENAFELRREBEZER
BRO0T

i3

PR
)

No. of Attendance (Note)/
No. of Meetings

HERE (FsE)
Name of Directors BEEHSZ SRRY
Mr. He Ningning (Chairman) Al 8RB S & (E /) 11
Ms. Chen Jun PRES 22 = 1/1
Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang CIER- ¥t 1/1

Note: The Nomination Committee Meeting was attended by the relevant

Directors in person, not by an alternate.

The Nomination Committee also held one meeting on 16 March
2017, and among other things, reviewed the structure, size and
composition of the Board, assessed the independence of the
INEDs and recommended to the Board for consideration the re-
appointment of the retiring Directors, namely Mr. Hu Sanmu, Mr.
Chu Chia-Hsiang and Ms. Chen Jun as Directors at the AGM as
well as reviewed the Board’s Diversity Policy.

Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee has been established with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The
Risk Management Committee comprises three members, namely
Ms. Chen Jun and Mr. Ng Sui Yin, both INEDs and Mr. Fan
Fugiang, a Joint Company Secretary of the Company. In particular,
two members are our INEDs. Ms. Chen Jun is the chairlady of the
Risk Management Committee.

The principal roles and functions of the Risk Management
Committee include, but are not limited to:

° reviewing and assessing the Group’s investment in wealth
management products in terms of whether such investment
complies with its treasury and investment policies, the fund
safety of and the risks associated with such investment;

° reviewing the remedial actions in respect of policy breaches, if
any;
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reviewing the risks associated with, and approving,
the purchase of wealth management products with the
transaction amount exceeding RMB10 million as requested
from time to time (amended to reviewing the risks associated
with, and approving, the purchase of wealth management
products with single transaction amount exceeding RMB50
million as requested from time to time, pursuant to the
amendments made to the funds management policy at the
Risk Management Committee meeting held on 24 March
2016);

reviewing and assessing the expected return of the wealth
management products with similar principal amount, and
the track record of relevant issuers and similar wealth
management products previously sold in the market; and

considering, reviewing and approving the amendments to the
Group’s policies and requirements in respect of the operation
and risk control of the Group’s wealth management products.
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During the Year, the Risk Management Committee held four
meetings in total (i.e. on 24 March, 20 May, 19 August and 26
October 2016) (“Risk Management Committee Meetings “). At the
above meetings, the Risk Management Committee reviewed and
assessed the Group’s wealth management product investment in £ &€

terms of whether such investment have complied with the Group’'s MIEME R E B BT ANEEH
treasury and investment policies, the fund safety of and risks IE BHELNIEERE - B2 L2 NEZ

R E BRI ER

associated with such investment.

REERAFELERREEZES D
E R N

The attendance of the Risk Management Committee meetings
during the Year is as follows:

No. of Attendance (Note 1)/
No. of Meetings

R (M),
Name of members REHE EERE
Ms. Chen Jun (Chairman) PREBZZ & (£ /%) 4/4
Mr. Ng Sui Yin RIGE k& 4/4
Mr. Fan Fugiang (Note 2) BRI E (HiE2) 4/4
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Note 1:  The Risk Management Committee Meeting was attended by the

relevant Directors in person, not by an alternate.

Note 2:  Mr. Fan Fugiang is a Joint Company Secretary and Chief

Financial Officer of the Company.

The Risk Management Committee also held one meeting on 16
March 2017, and reviewed and assessed the Group’s wealth
management product investment in terms of whether such
investment has complied with the Group’s treasury and investment
policies, the fund safety of and risks associated with such
investment, and also assessed whether the operating cash of the
Group is sufficient and the control policies of liquidity risks.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board recognises that corporate governance should be the
collective responsibility of the Directors though having delegated
the corporate governance duties to the Audit Committee which
include, but are not limited to:

e developing and reviewing the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and making
recommendations to the Board;

e reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior
management;

° reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

e  developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
the Directors; and

e reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this report.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company, among which, the term of office for each of Mr.
He Ningning and Mr. Wang Jiangiang is 36 months commenced
from the month on which the shares of the Company were listed
on the Stock Exchange (i.e. December 2014), the term of office
for Mr. Hu Sanmu is 36 months commenced from 8 July 2016.
Mr. Yang Peikun resigned as an executive Director due to personal
affairs (please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 8
July 2016 for details).

Each of the INEDs has signed a letter of appointment with the
Company for a term of three years with effect from 2 December
2014, being the date on which the shares of the Company were
initially listed on the Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed aforesaid, none of the Directors has a service
contract/letters of appointment with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries other than contracts/letters of appointment expiring or
determinable by the Company within one year without the payment
of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

Pursuant to Article 83(3) of the Articles of Association, any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office
until the first general meeting after his appointment and shall then
be eligible for re-election and any Director appointed by the Board
as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until
the next following annual general meeting of the Company and
shall then be eligible for re-election. Accordingly, Mr. Hu Sanmu
(appointed as an executive Director on 8 July 2016) will retire at
the AGM and, being eligible, offer himself for re-election.
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All the Directors, including the INEDs, are subject to retirement
by rotation and eligible for re-election in accordance with the
Article 84 of Articles of Association. At each AGM, one-third of the
Directors for the time being (or if their number is less than three or
a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than
one-third) will retire from office by rotation provided that every
Director will be subject to retirement at the AGM at least once
every three years. A retiring Director will be eligible for re-election
and will continue to act as a Director throughout the meeting at
which he retires. The Directors to retire by rotation will include (so
far as necessary to ascertain the number of Directors to retire by
rotation) any Director who wishes to retire and not to offer himself
for re-election. Any further Directors so to retire shall be those
who have been the longest in office since their last re-election or
appointment and so that as between persons who became or
were last re-elected Directors on the same day, those to retire shall
(unless they otherwise agree among themselves) be determined
by lot. Any Director appointed by the Board pursuant to Article
83(3) of Articles of Association shall not be taken into account in
determining which particular Directors or the number of Directors
who are to retire by rotation. Accordingly, Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang and
Ms. Chen Jun will retire by rotation at the AGM and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Particulars of the Directors’ remuneration for the Year are set out in
note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the
remuneration of the members of the senior management (other
than the Directors) whose particulars are contained in the
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” in this annual report for the Year by band is set out
below:

Remuneration band (in RMB)

AR (ARY%)

EERGREEAETH

AEREZZHMFBINENEHIM B
HKRMTEOA

BBECETREBASKZTARE &
MEEANB (BEFRINFHH (HERZ
MRANER A EFEFERS ([EERD
MEBB2BEFIT] A)INHLT :

Number of individuals

AT EE

Nil to 1,000,000 Z £1,000,0007T

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the Year, KPMG was engaged as the Group’s independent
auditor.

The remuneration paid/payable to KPMG, the auditor, for the
services in respect of the Year is set out below:

B ZHBE

AEE EFHEMEEMER SN
& B 2 B LA A o

RAFERE RN BB
EFREMERMFMINE DT

Fee paid/payable

e ENER
RMB’000
Services Bk 75 ARBF T
Audit and review service for 2016 —E—RNFHREENK

FEEFTRB 1,750*

Environmental, Social and Governance THEIRE HERERRSE
Reporting advisory services 4 AR % 240
Total FE 1,990

* The amount includes service fee of RMB1,651,000 and related VAT of
RMB99,000.
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There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee on the re-appointment of the independent auditor,
and they both have agreed to recommend the re-appointment of
KPMG as the Company’s independent auditor for the ensuing year
at the AGM.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

In addition, KPMG has stated in the independent auditor’s report
its reporting responsibilities on the Company’s consolidated
financial statements for the Year.

INTERNAL CONTROL

It is the responsibility of the Board to ensure that the Company
maintains sound and effective internal controls to safeguard the
Shareholders’ investment and the Group’s assets at all times.
The Company has adopted a series of internal control policies
and procedures designed to provide reasonable assurance for
achieving objectives including effective and efficient operations,
reliable financial reporting and compliance with applicable laws
and regulations. Highlights of the Group’s internal control system

include the following:

e  Code of Conduct — The Company’s code of conduct explicitly
communicates to each employee its values, acceptable
criteria for decision-making and its ground rules for behaviour.

° Management of related party transactions — The Group will
continue to enhance its internal control and only enter into
transactions with related parties that are carried out in the
ordinary course of its business and on normal commercial
terms and are in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.
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° Internal Audit — The Group’s internal audit function regularly
monitors key controls and procedures in order to assure its
management and the Board that the internal control system is
functioning as intended. The Audit Committee is responsible
for supervising the internal audit function.

e Compliance with the Listing Rules and relevant laws
and regulations — The Group will continue to monitor
its compliance with relevant laws and regulations and
its senior management team will work closely with the
Group’s employees to implement actions required to ensure
compliance with relevant laws and regulations. The Company
will also continue to arrange for various trainings to be
provided by its Hong Kong legal advisers or other professional
parties to the Directors and senior management on the
Listing Rules, including but not limited to aspects related to
corporate governance and connected transactions, and by its
legal advisers in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
on PRC laws and regulations.

The Audit Committee and the Board have conducted a review of
the effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group. The
Directors (including the INEDs) consider that the internal control
measures of the Company are adequate and effective.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

The Company has appointed Mr. Fan Fugiang (‘Mr. Fan”) as one
of the Joint Company Secretaries since 11 June 2014. Mr. Fan
joined the Group in July 2011 with sound understanding of the
operations of the Board and the Group. He was closely involved in
the preparation of the Listing. During the year ended 31 December
2016, Mr. Fan has received more than 15 hours of professional
training in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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To uphold good corporate governance of the Company and
compliance with the Listing Rules and other relevant laws and
regulations, the Company has also appointed Mr. Kwok Siu Man
(“Mr. Kwok”), who meets the requirements under Note 1 to Rule
3.28 of the Listing Rules, as the other Joint Company Secretary to
work closely with and provide assistance to Mr. Fan in discharge
of the latter’'s duties and responsibilities as a Joint Company
Secretary. Mr. Kwok was nominated by Boardroom Corporate
Services (HK) Limited (“Boardroom”) to assume such office and
Boardroom has been providing certain corporate secretarial
services to the Company pursuant to an engagement letter
entered into between the Company and Boardroom. The primary
person at the Company with whom Mr. Kwok has been contacting
in respect of company secretarial matters is Mr. Fan.

Mr. Kwok resigned as Joint Company Secretary and authorised
representative of the Company with effect from 8 April 2016. Ms.
Hung Ching Yuen (“‘Ms. Hung”) was appointed as Joint Company
Secretary and authorised representative of the Company on 8 April
2016.

Ms. Hung is an external service provider to the Company and a
solicitor practicing in Hong Kong. She has taken no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training as required by the Listing
Rules. The primary contact person between the Company and Ms.
Hung is Mr. Fan.

The company secretaries report to the Chairman and/or the
Chief Executive Officer. All members of the Board have access to
the advice and services of the Joint Company Secretaries. The
appointment and removal of the Joint Company Secretaries are
subject to Board’s approval.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at
Shareholders’ Meetings

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to make proposals
or move resolutions at the annual general meetings under the
memorandum of association of the Company and the Articles
of Association (the “M&A”) or the laws of the Cayman Islands.
Shareholders who wish to make proposals or move a resolution
may, however, convene an extraordinary general meeting (the
“EGM”) in accordance with the “Procedures for Shareholders to
convene an EGM” set out below.

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an EGM

Any one or more Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than ten percent of the paid-up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company (the “Eligible Shareholder(s)”) shall at all times have the
right, by written requisition to require an EGM to be called by the
Board or the Joint Company Secretaries for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition, including making proposals
or moving a resolution at the EGM.

Eligible Shareholders who wish to convene an EGM for the
purpose of making proposals or moving a resolution at the EGM
must deposit a written requisition (the “Requisition”) signed by the
Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned at the principal place of business
of the Company in Hong Kong (Room 1715, 17/F, Topsail Plaza,
11 On Sum Street, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong) for the
attention of the Joint Company Secretaries.

The Requisition must state clearly the name of the Eligible
Shareholder(s) concerned, his/her/their shareholding in the
Company, the reason(s) to convene an EGM and the proposed
agenda.
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The Company will check the Requisition and the identity and
shareholding of the Eligible Shareholder(s) will be verified with
the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong. If the
Requisition is found to be proper and in order, the Joint Company
Secretaries will ask the Board to convene an EGM and/or include
the proposal(s) made or the resolution(s) proposed by the Eligible
Shareholder(s) at the EGM within 2 months after the deposit of the
Requisition. On the contrary, if the Requisition has been verified as
not in order, the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned will be advised
of the outcome and accordingly, the Board will not call for an EGM
nor include the proposal(s) made or the resolution(s) proposed by
the Eligible Shareholder(s) at the EGM.

If within 21 days of the deposit of the Requisition the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the Eligible
Shareholder(s) by the Company.

Procedures for Shareholders to Send Enquires to the
Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board of the Company by addressing them to the principal place
of business of the Company in Hong Kong, at Room 1715,
17/F, Topsail Plaza, 11 On Sum Street, Shatin, New Territories,
Hong Kong by post or by email to Ms. Hung Ching Yuen at
crystalhung@toclegal.com.hk or Mr. Fan Fugiang at richard.
fan@ck-telecom.com, for the attention of the Joint Company
Secretaries.

Upon receipt of the enquiries, the Joint Company Secretaries will
forward the communications relating to:

1. matters within the Board’s purview to the executive Directors
of the Company;

2. matters within a Board committee’s area of responsibility to
the chairman of the appropriate committee; and

3. ordinary business matters, such as suggestions, enquiries
and consumer complaints to the appropriate management of
the Company.
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COMMUNICATION WITH THE
SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has adopted a Shareholders’ communication policy
with the objective of ensuring that the Shareholders with equal and
timely access to information about the Company in order to enable
the Shareholders to exercise their rights in an informed manner
and allow them to engage actively with the Company.

Information will be communicated to the Shareholders through the
Company’s financial reports, AGMs and other general meetings
that may be convened as well as all the disclosures submitted to
the Stock Exchange.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
There were no changes in the constitutional documents of the

Company during the Year. The M&A is available on the respective
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2016

B SRIE R,

ARBERMBERBABE - B SME
FEIRERAFERLEERFTARF Z21E
B ERREAMEBRATITERSEN
AR AR EEES BAR A

BRBETEZBARRMBRE BR
BEXGMEAMAEARIBERAS
HAMBIMREIZKEERMSBIR -

ARBRANEREZBEX A ENE -
$ATE %lJﬁAﬂﬁi’\Fﬁ&ZIS &) 48 vk 1



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE HERERERE

About this Report

Basis of Preparation

This report is the first Environmental, Social and Governance
Report of the Group in 2016, which is prepared in
accordance with the general disclosure requirements set
out in the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide contained in Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules,
and truly reflects the economic, environmental and social
responsibilities performed by the Company in 2016.

Business of the Group

The Group is a leading mid-to-high end mobile terminals
camera modules and fingerprint recognition modules
manufacturer in the PRC, which mainly engages in the
manufacturing of camera modules and fingerprint recognition
modules used for smart mobile terminals, including mobile
phones and tablets.

Scope of the Report

The reporting period of this report is the 2016 financial
year (i.e. from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2016),
which focuses only on Kunshan QT China, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group, the principal place of business of
which is the production base and the headquarters office
of the Group located in Kunshan, which is also the location
of occurrence of the Group’s major business activities.
Taken into consideration of the supporting roles of the other
operating offices of the Group in Shenzhen, Taiwan and
Hong Kong, their economic activities do not constitute any
significant threat to the safety of society and environment,
therefore are not covered in this report.
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Source of Information

The information disclosed in this report is mainly sourced
from the internal documents of the Company, internal data
analysis and market public information. The contents of all
information are reviewed and confirmed by the management
of the Company and responsible departments, and are duly
filed. In case of any doubt or opinion regarding the content of
the report, you are welcome to contact the Group.

Development Strategies of the Group on
Environmental, Social and Governance

As a leading camera and fingerprint recognition module
manufacturer in the PRC, apart from attaching importance
to scientific research innovation, high-efficient production
and lean management, the Board believes that it is crucial
to business operation to effectively conduct efforts on
environmental conservation and improve production
consumption resources efficiency, and strives to reduce the
hazards affecting the surrounding lands, water sources and
other natural resources during production. The Group takes
into account the objectives of environmental and social
responsibilities as well as the vision of maintaining social
harmony in its daily operation, with a view to lead the Group
to comply with all the respective regulations, and become a
respectable enterprise by customers and the public.
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2.1 Issues focused on by the Group

The Group is committed to improving the environmental
and social responsibility performance in the following
aspects:

Environmental protection:

° During the electronic components manufacturing
process, it is inevitable to use chemicals and
certain volume of waste gas and water would be
generated. As a corporate citizen, the Group strives
to reduce the discharge of pollutants through
highly efficient production and recycling principles
to ensure pollutants are discharged and filtered in
compliance with relevant laws.

e A certain volume of resources such as electricity
and water will be consumed during production
and transportation and greenhouse gas will be
produced. The Group wishes to make better use
of the aforesaid resources through the principle of
improving efficiency and reducing consumption.

Social-related:

e A certain headcount of frontline workers are
required for manufacturing electronic components,
hence, the Group continues to focus on the labour
rights, occupational safety and staff welfare issues,
and expects to be a good signpost of high and new
technology manufacturing enterprises, and earns
respect from customers and employees.

e Although our products are not sold directly to retail
consumers, the components are end-used in mobile
phones and other smart mobile terminals, which
are the most important belongings of the general
public in their daily lives. Product safety has always
been our highest priority and a crucial point for
consideration in daily decision making.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
HtERERRE

i

2.2

2.3

° Integrity and honesty is the major principle of
business ethics for an enterprise. To create a more
equitable competitive environment, the Group

regards anti-corruption principle as the priority rule

to regulate employee conduct and implements

consistently.
Stakeholder Engagement

In deciding the policies related to environment and
social responsibilities, materiality assessment is an
important process, which has a guiding effect on future
direction and development. Hence, during the Year, the
Group engaged an independent third party consultant
team to identify important internal stakeholders and
conducted one-to-one interview with each of them,
so as to understand the key environmental and social
responsibilities issues which they considered as
important to the Group. The team analyzed the results
collected and confirmed issues considered as important,
the Group would then decide on the key points to be
disclosed in this report according to the assessment
results.

Materiality Analysis

During the interviews with internal stakeholders, they
were being invited to give scores on the questionnaire
for the various issues on environmental and social
responsibility base on materiality. A range of issues that
have material impact on the Group will be proposed after
further analyzing the opinions collected.

To further strengthen our works, independent third
party advisor conducted professional assessment
regarding the nature of business, established major
key performance indicators that are used for preparing
the management policy and target.

considering the production activities of the Group, the

In this report, in

aspects that have material impact on investors and other
stakeholders are identified at the environmental level and
social level respectively and are summarized as follows:
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The results of materiality analysis are as follows: BEEMARUT

Stakeholder materiality assessment (environmental)

NEHEEEEEMRFM GRIR)

Use of packing materials

BEMEHER
e Cons i e Y 1
5WIN
Energy consumption related to transportation
EHEREE
Energy consumption not related to transportation

JEERERIRERE

By o 1
Fﬁ =5

B,

Non-hazardous waste disposal
EEREYIHEL

Hazardous waste‘disposal
BEREYHER

Waste gas emission
FERBERL

Greenhouse gas emission
BEREEHEN

Stakeholder materiality assessment (social)

MBmEEEEEMRMG ()

Community investment
HERE
Anti-corruption

R&ES

Product responsibility

EmEE

Supply chain

frpEsE

Human rights

N

Child and forced labour
BAZEINSEBHEI

Staff development and training
8 T B R L3

Health and safety

EasiEy e

Staff welfare
ST&7
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Listed below are the key issues related to the Group:

Environmental

Key issues

Water consumption
Electricity consumption
Hazardous waste disposal
Waste gas emission

Social

Key issues

Anti-corruption
Product responsibility
Supply chain

Child and forced labour
Health and safety

Respective Stock
Exchange requirements

A2 Use of Resources
A2 Use of Resources
A1 Emissions
A1 Emissions

Respective Stock
Exchange requirements

B7 Anti-corruption

B6 Product responsibility

B5 Supply chain
management

B4 Labour standards

B2 Health and safety
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3. Environmental 3 R

3.1 REMEBEX

3.1 Environmental-related Policies

As a leading camera and fingerprint recognition
module manufacturer in the PRC, apart from attaching
importance to scientific research innovation, high-
efficient production and lean management, the Board
believes that it is crucial to business operation to
effectively conduct efforts on environmental conservation
and improve production consumption resources
efficiency, and strives to reduce the hazards affecting
the surrounding lands, water sources and other
natural resources during production. When formulating
its policies, the Group strictly complies with and
endeavours to improve compliance with the relevant
laws and regulations on environmental protection by
local government, regards the performance of corporate
citizen responsibilities as its behavior standard, assures
sufficient resources are deployed into the environmental
protection facilities, enhances the environmental
consciousness of management at different-levels and
frontline employees, practices what we preach, and
reviews operation procedures and the execution of
relevant measures from time to time to ensure relevant
policies are executed to the end.

For systems regarding environmental production, the
Group perfects the respective system process based on
international standards, and obtained the qualification
certifications such as ISO14001 (environmental
management), ISO 9000 (management system), OSHAS
18001 (occupational safety) and ISO 27001 (information
security management system), which fully demonstrates
the Group’s performance on environmental protection
and other management systems.
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Every department head will conduct periodic analysis on
the various manufacturing activities and services of the
Group, in order to to find out potential impact factors to
the environment, such as operating procedures of the
production workshop, material transportation, optimizing
and improving the use of resources. When conducting
periodic review, the Group will compare its consumption
with industry peers, its own history and average
consumption and rectify immediately if any exception is
found.

During the precise components production process,
the most important part is the monitor of the use
of production materials in reduction of the impact
on environment. The Group has stringent criterion
in selecting material suppliers, all new suppliers are
required to sign the Environmental Protection Material
Management Agreement, and select environmental
materials in accordance with industry’s and
government’s requirements, and ensure not using
hazardous materials in the assembling process to avoid
relevant risks.
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According to the materiality analysis results, we
concluded the significant environmental issues that
are related to the Group’s business and listed out their
potential impact on the environment and the Group’s
improvement strategies and measures in the following
table:

Important

Issues Potential Impact
BEEEE BEXE

Electricity e Consume natural resources such as
consumption coal when generating electricity
A& o HEREHBERMERNARER
lapes

e Waste gas emission arising from
incinerating fossil fuels when
generating electricity

o EERTHEMBCAMHBMELN
& R HE R

e Greenhouse gas emission
o REREHN

Water e The deterioration of the problem in
consumption wastage in natural water resources
FAK and its scarcity
o RAKBRHMREERKIUMEZE
1t

e Factory sewage flows directly into sewer
and affects the surroundings

o IXBKEERATKER
VEmERs

REABZESTHER T
BMTERASEXRFHEBNE
ZHRARBBLEATREH
SIHEMHERENEETZER
AR B R E RIS I -

Improvement Strategies and Measures

HERBRIE

Increase the use of green energy, for example,
install solar panels on the rooftop of dormitories
and factories
gngerRNER fINERE REERE
BN UEAEE

Fully utilize LED lights in the factories offices and
advocate exhaust heat reuse
BERAZZEEHFALEDEAREREERR
s

Set up internal Electricity Resources Management
Procedures, optimize production flow, and
enhance electricity utilization efficiency

BN (EREBEREERER) - BLEERRE
RABEERARE

Optimize water resources utilization, such as
recovery, filtering, recycling and reuse of sewage
BALKERKER  fl0E BEEKEK R BEE
BERES

Formulate clear sewage management procedures,
conduct periodic review and maintenance of
sewage emission system to meet emission
standards.

VAR EKERIET WK MRS ET
THRE R#E URERHTEHUTE

Collect hazardous materials in special containers
and deal with them by qualified third parties
AESYREEZMNDET TRHEERH
FEHETRE
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Important
Issues
(continued)  Potential Impact (continued) Improvement Strategies and Measures (continued)

EZEE (8 BERE (B) HEXRRRER (£)

Hazardous e  Polluting nearby land and water due e Formulate clear internal guidelines on
waste to improper hazardous waste disposal procurement, storage, utilization, disposal and
disposal o TENBEEWHREILN 1K emergency treatment of chemicals

BEREMEER IKORE R )T 3 o H{EBEVHNRE BF 5 EEREIEREH

51 T AR A AR 45 5

e Al chemical waste are treated by third parties
approved by government authorities, and make
periodic online declaration on the official website
of Environmental Protection Administration

s MARCERHARNKEARIINE=7KE"
W EHERRBZEHBILER LRR

e  Strictly comply with the state and local relevant
environmental protection prevention rules

o EBRESTERMMEEAEERRI A ED

Waste gas e Waste gas emitted directly without e |nstall various specific waste gas treatment
emission prior treatment, polluting the factories equipment in the factories, such as a 15-meter

BERBE and nearby environment high waste gas funnel and water curtains etc.

o HEBEMEREEHL s EBEANREEZEBHHUNERERER
5 R e i & B B BRR fl 1Rk EMERERE RKESS

e Encourage employees to change their living
habits, such as go to work on bicycle and

carpooling
o HREEBEINBLEBE PIMUBERT KU
BOHABRHES
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3.2 Electricity Consumption

During the camera modules and fingerprint recognition
modules manufacturing process, the main resources
consumed is electricity. Since precision manufacturing
procedures required to be conducted in clean room, it
has high requirements for the production site, which are
mostly clean rooms at class 10 or class 1000 standard
and need strong air-conditioning and ventilation system.
While in production, spot-welder and oven also need
to be driven by more powerful electricity. Therefore, the
main measures of the Group to implement low emission
and green production are to optimize production
procedures, enhance electricity utilization efficiency,
execute recycling and reuse measures and even increase
green energy such as solar power generation.

The Group established the Electricity Resources
Management Procedures, to strengthen energy and
resources control, reduce consumption, and conserve
energy. The Plant Management Department is
responsible for the standardized management of internal
electricity usage, conducts periodic review, compare its
consumption with industry peers, its own history and
average consumption and rectify immediately if any
exception is found.

For reducing electricity consumption, factory offices
largely use energy-saving LED lights, promote waste
heat recycling by reusing the waste heat generated
from air compressors and workshops for heating
water supply tanks or directly conduct to offices as
warm air. In addition, the Group advocates to generate
environmental-friendly electricity, installs solar panels
in on the rooftops of certain factories and dormitories
in Kunshan, complementing the traditional electricity
generated by coal burning with an aim to achieve the
goal of low emission production.
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3.3 Water Consumption

The Group highly focuses on water resources
management, including water utilization. It avoids
contaminating water sources during production
and work process so as to sustain the utilization
of water resources. The Group formulated the
sewage management procedures, which assures
sewage emission to meet the standards through the
management and control of sewage generated from
production, dormitories and plants, and periodically
check and protect the drainage system and emission
points to avoid blocking. The plants are equipped with
septic tank and sewage treatment system. Sewage must
be treated before flowing into municipal pipe network.
Pipelines of sewage and rain are segregated strictly to
avoid waste oil and chemicals from entering into the
sewer.

Moreover, each production department needs to collect
hazardous materials into specific containers which must
be treated by qualified companies. Factory staff inspects
the sewage treatment system every day, records the
sewage discharge volume and reports to local safety and
environment department monthly for filing.

The Group advocates the recycling of waste water and
established the waste water recycling system. It recovers
and filters waste water and circulates the output to
workshops for revolving use and largely mitigated water
consumption.
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Hazardous Waste Disposal

The daily production involves certain volume of
chemicals, such as waste bath solutions, organic
solutions, waste paint slag, printing ink, dye and
coating. The Group has formulated guidelines
regarding procurement, storage, utilization, disposal
and emergency treatment of such chemicals, and
administrative department will contact third party
recognized by government authority for specific
treatment of such chemicals, and perform online
declaration on the official website of local Environmental
Protection Administration. Every department head will
monitor the entire treatment process, ensure its strict
implementation and compliance with the state and local
prevention rules related to environmental protection,
including but not limited to Solid Waste Environmental
Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the People’s
Republic of China( {F#E A R FNE[E 88 EE 105 2R
Ja%) ) and Jiangsu Province Solid Waste Environmental
Pollution Prevention Rules( (T #%%& B 88 EE 2 1))5 L IR15
BB 1651 ).

Waste Gas Emission

There are three main categories of waste gas emission
from the Group’s factories:

a. Camera manufacturing:
generated during the soldering process. As the
volume is immaterial, waste gas will be collected

the reflow waste gas

and exhaust by a 15-meter high funnel in the form
of turbine extraction.

3.4

3.5
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Waste gas generated from coating material in
coating workshops: specific waste gas treatment
equipment have been established in factories which
filters waste gas through water curtain. Particles
generated from waste water collection and filtering
will be combusted for disposal by RTO heat
reserve exhaust air burning oven, and discharges
collectively, which will meet the safety and reliability
effect without secondary pollution.

Vehicle exhaust emission: the Group advocates less
vehicle utilization, and encourages employees to
go to work by carpooling and on bicycle or green
walking. Furthermore, comprehensive inspection
in government’s testing centers are conducted at
scheduled time each year on the Group’s vehicles,
and vehicles not conforming to exhaust emission
requirements will not be used.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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EREHERMELNER:
B E R BB EREIER
B SAZK B 48 R BE R © BE 7K
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3.6 Others 3.6 Hftt

3.6.1 Noise Control 361 EEEE

120

The Group pays serious attention to the noise effect
from plant manufacturing to the surroundings, and
formulated the Noise Management Regulation.

The plant engaged a professional third party to
conduct a noise monitoring exercise, and assures
noise emission is in conformity to statutory emission
standards, and put the responsibility on respective
departments for the introduction, development,
research, application and marketing of new noise
abatement technology, enhances employees’
training and propaganda. When carrying out
construction, maintenance or other activities, noise
emission is reduced to the greatest extent possible.
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3.6.2 Greenhouse gas emission

During the Year, the Group implemented the new
Greenhouse Gases Regulations, and preliminarily
plans the scope, procedures and tools of
greenhouse gas data collection, with a view of
effective management of the Group’s greenhouse
gases in long run, and prepare well for coal and
emission reduction.

3.6.3 Non-hazardous waste disposal

The non-hazardous waste emission sources are
mainly generated from engineering construction,
packaging materials and household waste in
dormitories. Before entering into contracts to
conduct re-engineering, repairing, new engineering
works for equipment and surrounding facilities,
contractors must provide respective documents
such as Treatment of Waste Regulations ( {EEZ
YRIBVES H1%) ) and Environmental Guidelines
( GRI| A &) ) and ensure appropriate treatment of
building debris. Daily ordinary waste will adopt the
“sort first then treat” principle, for example, waste
carton boxes and garbage packaging bags will be
segregated, and will be dealt with by professional
institution selected by tender.

362 BERBHIM
REBRAFEHMET OR
EREBEENE) VT
FWERERBHEENS
B -RmRENIAES AR
ERMHEAEERERE
EITEE  RMOR BRI
1 o

363 BMEBEFYHH
EEERVRHREZR
B ITig&E  BEYAME
ENREENE EROE
1T R 8 B 1 B R bt B9 24U
32 #IE TIEAT AEMH
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B RERIZ SRS R
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3.7 Compliance with Rules 3.7 E/FHRE
During the Year, no breach of any respective environment AEBAEEWREERBE
regulations that has significant impact on the Group was REMBSAEBEEEATEN
found by the Group. IRIBAEEER -
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4. Social 4 #HE
4.1 Social-related Policies 4.1 #SAEBBEE
The Group has a series of policies in place to manage NEEFZAE —RINKEES
the issues related to various aspects of the society. The BEEEMLEE T HNZEE BK
policies are applicable to the following scopes: BANRATHEE :

122

Anti-corruption

Product responsibility

Supply chain

Child and forced labour

Health and safety

Staff welfare

Staff development and training

Community investment
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4.2 Potential impact of the Group’s businesses on
social aspects

According to the materiality analysis results, we
concluded the significant social issues and listed out
their potential impact on the society as well as the
Group’s improvement strategies and measures in the
following table:

Important
Issues Potential Impact

EREE BHEYE

Anti-corruption e  Corruption behaviour could cause the
R&S Group potential legal liability
s ERTRBBASEAHEARE
ERER

e Corruption behaviour of staff will affect
the Group’s image

o BIERNTREAEEFNKENY
485

=

Product e Effect of products on customers’
responsibility health
EmEE s EmBETREEMKTA

g

B

If

e Customers cast doubts on product
quality
s BRYUEMERGAES

e Customer privacy leakage
o EPILEBIN

4.2 XEBEXBEHREESEMNEE

E/
-4

RBEAEZED TR M
BMTEENTEZELEIN
TREFILEMHEEENE
ERERARNEBE NN E R R
i :

Improvement Strategies and Measures

HERB KB

The Group has established anti-corruption
provisions which required that all staff must sign
before commencement of employment
AEBERITRERGE YEKMAEEIEA
BATYARE

The code of “Sunshine Procurement” is in place
to ensure decentralized authority of staff in the
sourcing process
RE[BARE] TR SMETIERBBIETH
B2

Suppliers are required to provide inspection
report. All products must go through stringent
internal inspection before delivery. The Group
also entrusts a third party for sample testing
in accordance with international and domestic
standards from time to time to assure product
safety

SREEHRERBNRE - ELHENITRBE
REOABRA AREBNTREZEE=ZFREE
BEENEEREmETAS UBRERT S

We conduct customer satisfaction survey
and customer reviews regularly, and set up
management policies to protect customer privacy
EHHEFELREEREREPAE TR
ERYPRRERF B
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Important
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Supply chain
e

Child and o
forced labour

EREIR
E]

Health and o
safety

BREZE
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Environmental and social impact in
product supply chain
EEmMEERSIREL G FHEEK
%

The issue of forced labour or child
labour will affect the image of the
Company, or even result in potential
legal liability
BEISESAETRBEARNERE
K& HEREENEERE

Staff casualties due to lacking of
appropriate protection in working
environment
BITEIERENGIHEE R
# AmEKET
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Improvement Strategies and Measures (continued)

HERKRER (£)

Suppliers must sign the environmental protection
agreement and social responsibility agreement
before commencing cooperation
EREEZHEBLRARERRBENLERE
ik

Conduct onsite investigations from time to time to
check whether suppliers have complied with the
relevant agreements

TERETEMNSR UBREHERR T ETH
BN RS

Formulated clear policies to prohibit forced
labour and employment of child labour under 16
years old and review regularly the procedures of
engaging agencies

FISL T PR IR I 4 8 R BER TN T
EIWERE THREEARELBNEZIRE

Establish a confidential and anonymous complaint
mechanism to avoid forced labour
BURTREARFES B ERHEEE)
HER

Provide staff who handle chemicals with proper
protective gears, such as gloves, masks and
protective clothing
REEENEATERCE2RNES INFE.
HERERE

Comprehensive firefighting and safety management
system is in place, and conduct two fire drills every
year

REEE A

E}])\«( -—‘-

%%&?% BRG BFETMR
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4.3 Anti-corruption

Anti-corruption is a major business ethics principle of an
enterprise as corruption is detrimental to the environment
for fair competition. The Group has formal management
policies in place to prevent bribery, blackmail, fraud
and money laundering. For instance, all employees
must confirm and sign labour contracts with explicit
anti-corruption provisions inserted before commencing
employment. The Employee Manual also stipulates the
code of conduct that employees must follow, which
include sections with detailed anti-fraud management
and act as guidelines to regulate the behaviour of
employees. In addition, relevant trainings are provided to
employees before their employment.

In the course of daily business, the Group sets up
the code of “Sunshine Procurement”, which requires
that two or more employees must be present when
conducting price negotiation with suppliers and no
employee is allowed to meet customers alone. In
evaluating suppliers, the scores are given by several
departments and approval and negotiation authority are
segregated to avoid concentration of authorities on a
few of employees. There is also a direct channel for staff
to report non-compliance issues, either via face-to-face
reporting or emails. During the Year, there was no non-
compliance with relevant regulations that have significant
impact on the Group.

4.3 REF

REEBREEXTEREER
R BEHERAFHRFRE
ANEBSP LR $R - BGF
MABRBEEFHERIZIEANER
BE P EREESHEN
LEREREBOGERX  BEA
BRIV ARERR - BT FMA
TEM T BT HAEEBTHNITG
SR B ERFANRERE
BE ERRBETTRNIE
5 BN ERE ABBIIAE
HERT Z&El -

ERREBREP AEER
BB RE] TR BBEXK
EEHEEHREBOER &8
BMEA LB THES T
METEFHRE -HEFEHER
B ZHZ BT ORE A
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NAETREBEESHETIF £
BETEEERMRE AJILERE
ERRIEFHBEFTARRE
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4.4 Product responsibility

As the manufacturer of the components of mobile
terminals, the Group is not only committed to providing
quality services and solutions to customers, but must
also ensure end-consumers’ access to safe and reliable
products. While strictly complying with the Law of the
PRC on Product Quality ((FZEARLNEE RS
=,%) ) and other product-related laws to establish
formal management policies for the health and safety,
advertisement, label and privacy of products, the Group
also set up specific policies on process quality control
and finished product management.

For raw materials utilization, the Group regularly
assesses risks to prevent the outflow of products that
are harmful to public health. For example, capacitors
in the fingerprint recognition modules generally contain
tinning, which is likely to contain lead and benzene that
are detrimental to human health. Accordingly, the Group
requires materials suppliers to provide an inspection
report issued by relevant authorities to ensure their
safety. All products of the Group must pass the internal
inspection report before delivery. We also entrust a third
party to conduct sample testing in accordance with
international and domestic standards from time to time.
Meanwhile, we conduct regular customer satisfaction
survey and customer reviews and strictly implement
customer-centered product quality management.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2016
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5 HERERBE

Supply chain

The Group has relevant policies in place regarding
supply chain management, which specify clearly the
procedures for supplier selection and approval. Apart
from pricing, we will also take into consideration
the services, reputation, social responsibility and
environmental protection qualification certification (such
as 1SO9001 and ISO14000) in selecting new suppliers
and suppliers must sign environmental protection
agreement and social responsibility agreement before
commencing cooperation with the Group. The relevant
departments will conduct an annual questionnaire survey
on suppliers and conduct site investigations from time
to time to check whether suppliers have complied with
the environmental protection agreement and social
responsibility agreement, facilitating them to comply with
relevant national requirements.

Child and forced labour

The Group has always been highly concerned
about labor rights and interests. The Group has
well-established personnel policies in place, which
cover remuneration and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, holidays, equal opportunities,
diversification, anti-discrimination, other benefits
and welfares and so on. To maintain transparency,
staff benefits and responsibilities are clearly stated in
Employees Manual. The Group strictly complies with all
national and local labour laws, including Labour Law
of the PRC( (R EARKMBELEIE) ), Minors
Protection Law ( (KK F AR#EX) ) and other

personnel related laws and regulations.

I%

4.5

4.6

e

AEBEHEEESER M
K AR EE N EENE
R EREFHERE T
BeRBEHERNER BT
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MIRIRHE L RE (7A1S09001
&1S014000) EF - Mt EHE
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i

4.7

The Group is very concerned about the issues of forced
and child labour and therefore formulated policies to
clearly prohibit forced labor and employment of child
labour under 16 years old. The Group regularly reviews
the procedures of recruitment agencies to prevent
the occurrence of illegal behaviors. Further, to protect
underage workers between 16 and 18 years old, the
Group will not arrange them to work night shift nor work
in relatively high-polluted painting workshops. With
regard to employees’ rights and interest protection, the
Group set up labour union and established a confidential
and anonymous complaints mechanism to avoid forced
labour and respects freedom of employment. The Group
will not force any employee to work overtime and set a
daily overtime working hours cap. Employees can apply
to work overtime voluntarily or off duty on time. During
the Year, there was no non-compliance with relevant
regulations that have significant impact on the Group.

Health and Safety

Frontline staff will be exposed to risks arising from
hazardous chemicals and potential fire hazard during
the modules production process. The Group considers
staff safety as its first priority. Accordingly, the Group is
committed to providing a safe working environment for
its staff and strictly complies with the PRC Production
Safety Law ((FEAREMEZ 2 EEE) ) and Safe
Production Regulations of Jiangsu Province ( (T & & &
24 EEH]) ), formulated the Chemicals Management
Regulations ( ({2 mEEHTE) ) to strictly supervise
and control the reserve and utilization of chemicals
through an inventory in-and-out form and list of
chemicals and hazardous goods to prevent misuse (such
as storing privately) of dangerous chemicals. Meanwhile,
the Group formulated the Emergency Response Plan
( (B :t2E]) ) guidelines and provided chemical
management personnel regular trainings on chemical
safety instructions to ensure corresponding reasonable
treatment measures will be taken in emergencies, so
as to prevent casualties resulted from the inappropriate
use, reserve and transportation. The Group also provides
staff that handles chemicals with proper protective gears,
such as gloves, masks and protective clothing. During
the Year, there was no non-compliance incident with
relevant regulations that have significant impact on the
Group.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2016
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For fire disaster prevention, the Group has a complete
firefighting and safety management system in place.
The Group conducts two fire drills every year, assesses
and improves the efficiency and smoothness of the
drills, such as emergency evacuation route, whether all
staff are in place within time limit, and examines and
maintains fire prevention and extinguishing apparatus
regularly to create a safe and healthy environment for our
staff.

Others

During materiality assessment, the three aspects
in relation to employment conditions and welfare,
development and training and community investment
are not identified as the most important issues from the
internal stakeholders’ perspective. However, the Group
has established policies and has performed well in these
areas, which can be summarized as follows:

4.8.1 Staff welfare

Staff of the Group has equal and fair access to
promotion. The Group conducts work review,
reporting and KPI analysis every quarter and its
remuneration standard is market competitive. As a
result, our employees have good impression on the
Company as a whole. Last year, the turnover rate
was less than 3% for functional staff and 5-8% for
frontline staff respectively, a sound and satisfactory
level.

4.8
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The Group has opinion collection boxes, tea
parties, staff complaint hotlines and mailboxes
in place to enable staff at all levels to express
their opinions as they wish to help improve the
operation of the Group. Their opinions will be
kept confidential during the entire process. The
management advocates the culture of sharing.
Technical talents share via sharing sessions,
while team heads answer the questions raised by
workers at the morning and evening meetings, with
a view to improve work quality through concerted
efforts. Under the spirit of humanity, the Group
has special policy for pregnant staff. For example,
for employees who are in her third trimester of
pregnancy, no overtime work will be arranged;
for employees who are seven- to eight-month
pregnant, additional holidays will be arranged; for
new mothers, they are entitled for one hour breast-
feeding leave every day, in which they come back
late to work or get off work early. By implementing
family-friendly policies, the Group hopes to better
cultivate their sense of belongings and free from any
worries, so as to enable them to push forward the
development of the Group.

4.8.2 Staff Development and Training

The Group regards staff as an important asset and
focuses on improving employee productivity through
trainings. The Personnel Department provides no
less than 20 hours of external or internal trainings
for staff every year and offer relevant courses to
different employee groups. For management and
knowledge related courses, we engage external
lecturers to give training, and for practical and
training courses, we organize regular internal
training and sharing sessions.

4.8.3 Community Investment

To fulfill corporate citizen responsibility, the Group
participates in charity and voluntary works. For
instance, employee of the Group has organized a
performance in Kunshan Yushan elderly house, and
provided gifts for the elderly who lost their family.
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Index Table of Environmental, Social and EBEBEAEXSZ CRE - HER
Governance Reporting Guide by Hong Kong EA#H&EIELS|) Eo|FR
Stock Exchange
Aspects Corresponding Section E® HESEH
A, Environmental A RE
A1, Emissions 3.3 Water Consumption Al B 3.3 HK
3.4 Hazardous Waste Disposal 3.4 BEEWMHR
3.5  Waste Gas Emission 35 ERHEM
3.6.1 Noise Control 361 BREEHE
3.6.2 Greenhouse gas emission 3.6.2 BERBIEN
3.6.3 Non-hazardous waste disposal 3.6.3 EEEMIEMN
A2.  Use of resources 3.2 Electricity Consumption A2. BRFEA 32 HE
3.3 Water Consumption 3.3 AKX
A3.  Environment and natural resources Impacts, policies and management A3. BIERARRER ARAHBRERRAARBEREK
initiatives on the Environment and MELZ TERRERE 2
natural resources has been discussed BEEAM A2REEE
in aspects A1 and A2.
B.  Social B. #®
Bi.  Employment 4.6 Child and forced labour Bl. Ef% 46 EREIRZHHE
481 Staff welfare 481 BIREH
B2.  Health and safety 4.7 Health and Safety B2. fEHALZ 47 BEHALRZE
B3.  Development and training 4.7 Health and Safety B3. EEREI 47 REEZZ
4.8.2 Staff development and training 482 BIRERE]
B4.  Labour standards 4.6 Child and forced labour B4, HTIEH| 46 EREIRZSHHH
B5.  Supply chain management 4.5 Supply Chain B5. HEHER 45 fHIER
B6.  Product responsibility 4.4 Product responsibility Be. EmEf 44 EMEME
B7.  Anti-corruption 4.3 Anti-corruption B7. RES 43 RES
B8.  Community Investment 4.8.3 Community Investment B8. #E®E 483 HEREE
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Independent Auditor’s Report
RIS

IcRNG,

Independent auditor’s report
to the shareholders of Q Technology (Group) Company Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Q
Technology (Group) Company Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 142 to 248, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2016, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2016 and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
RIS

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”) together with any ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

ERHNER
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Independent Auditor’s Report
RIS

Timing of revenue recognition

Wi 255 R B By R

Refer to note 2 to the consolidated financial statements and the

accounting policies 1(t) on page 168.
R E RIS RZN 2R E168H I E 5T FE(L)

The Key Audit Matter
BRESEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EESTTHNEELE

The Group’s revenue arises from the sales of camera and
fingerprint recognition modules.
EXBNRRELEBHERGERENBAEENIHE -

The Group enters into a framework sales agreement with
each major customer and manufactures products based
on purchase orders. Products are delivered to a location
designated by the respective customer where they undergo
a quality examination. After satisfactory completion of the
quality examination the risks and rewards of ownership of
the products are considered to have been transferred to the
respective customer and revenue is recognised.
EREEHEEFERPAIVIERHEE R UREEFPGIE
GE-EmXNERATEPOECHETETER FER
TERmER  AREMMAENERRERERFIEEBEE
HEEE - (TR o
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Our audit procedures to assess the timing of
revenue recognition included the following:

BRI A RS EREMOBTEFEEA T ®E:

° inspecting contracts with customers, on a
sample basis, to understand the terms of
the sale transactions, including the terms of
delivery and goods acceptance and any sales
return arrangements, to assess the Group’s
revenue recognition criteria with reference to
the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;

s MEBRBEETPNEAK THEEXZHEBHN
R BIEE W& & 5 A IR IA B AE 1A 85
EROZH U EEEENNRERTER
BRABRITETEANER:

e  assessing, on a sample basis, whether specific
revenue transactions around the financial year
end had been recognised in the appropriate
financial period on the basis of the terms
of sale as set out in the sales contracts by
comparing the details in the relevant sales
invoices to customers’ acceptance documents
or customers’ inventory records which are
available from shared platforms the customers
have with the Group;

o  HFRMELAINER ZETHERRS - HEEE
SHBEEFPBRUNER EEEETFHAZE
FarNFERRALEZYE FHEREEIR
BERTRHERRIERERE NV BEME



The Key Audit Matter
BRESNEE

Independent Auditor’s Report
RIS

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EETTHNERELE

We identified the timing of revenue recognition as a
key audit matter because revenue is one of the key
performance indicators of the Group and therefore there is
an inherent risk of manipulation of the timing of recognition
of revenue by management to meet specific targets or
expectations.

BB RERREERBREEFFE SR KREEEE
EEEBNNARESR — FEEBERTEIREAR
17 152 A0 Ut 2 B SR B B 1 B JRL Bk o

scrutinising the sales ledger after the year
end to identify sales returns and inspecting
relevant underlying documentation to assess if
the related adjustments to revenue had been
accounted for in the appropriate financial
period; and

BMERERENRRERDE BANREFE
HERE  WinEAE X FFIE XX - ART L8RS
W RFARE TR EREES NI BEE &

scrutinising all the sales journals raised
throughout the reporting period and comparing
details of a sample of these journals, which
met certain risk-based criteria, with relevant
underlying documentation.

BEREHANRENNRERD & RBSTE
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Independent Auditor’s Report
R IS

Recoverability of trade receivables

B 5 W E B A WE

Refer to note 15 to the consolidated financial statements and the

accounting policies 1(m) on page 162.
B E RIS RZN 168 E162H B &5 E1(m) °

The Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EFEFPHNEES X

At 31 December 2016, the Group’s gross trade receivables
totalled RMB2,376 million, against which allowances for
doubtful debts of RMB9.9 million were recorded.
HEZZT— R+ A=1+—H E5EBEB S EKFEEE
RARB2I76E BT ST Z MR AT IR R BB RE
BARMBIIAET

The Group’s allowances for doubtful debts are based on
management’s estimate of the expected credit losses to
be incurred, which is estimated by taking into account the
ageing of overdue balances, the repayment history of the
Group’s individual customers, current market conditions
and customer-specific conditions, all of which involve a
significant degree of management judgement.
ERBETHRAERBRNMATRRKRERS H5t108
BERTAHRKENKR SRS EZTFNERGLE  RIT
MTSRE  UREFHNEERR  BEEREOERAEE
ESREIRE H -
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Our audit procedures to assess the recoverability of
trade receivables included the following:

A ERFIEN KON EARFEEAT
Jm

e obtaining an understanding of and assessing
the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of management’s key internal
controls relating to credit control, debt
collection and making allowances for doubtful
debts;

s THEREBREEES RIOMKKLFRRE
R AR R RO RE SR N BD PR I - 0 AT B IS L M AR IR
H B R AT - AT SOETT AR

e assessing whether items were correctly
categorised in the trade receivables ageing
report by comparing a sample of individual
items with underlying sales invoices;

s MEBREZEHEWHIAHEN RIS LT
HEZERRFIBEREREN D MHEEERE:



The Key Audit Matter
HRETEH

Independent Auditor’s Report
RIS

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEFPHNEES X

We identified the recoverability of trade receivables as a key
audit matter because the Group’s customers are mainly
smartphone manufacturers which are facing challenges in
terms of their profitability due to the competitive market
environment, which increases the inherent uncertainty
in assessing the recoverability of trade receivables, and
because determining the level of allowances for doubtful
debts requires the exercise of significant management
judgement.

B E S RUGRIARIRE M ERBRETFH EEARE
SENEFIERBRTFRERD  BERMROTISEF M
EERB AR N A EE S MG M T EEETHE SRR
TR Y EE ) EE A EE M TTEAEE REREKFA
TR E KRH) B 12 [E Ik -

obtaining an understanding of the basis
of management’s judgements about the
recoverability of individual material and all
overdue trade receivable balances and
evaluating the allowances for doubtful debts
made by management for these balances with
reference to the debtors’ financial condition, the
industry in which the debtors are operating, the
ageing of overdue balances and historical and
post year end payment records;
THRERBEHGEBRESESARMEBLNE FEK
FIEMRER AW E R ER WRBRERED
AR B TEIROR BT A RIS PrEE 8917 3 - B HRsR
BHERE  BERBRRERTE UTHEEE
HZERBPELOREERS:

assessing the historical accuracy of the
estimates made by management for the
allowances for doubtful debts by comparing
the allowances made by management as at 31
December 2015 with the actual new allowances
and recoveries in respect of trade receivables
as at 31 December 2015 during the current
year; and

BB REREERN T —AFT-H=+—8F
EHOREREGEEAFEHH _T—HF+=
A=+—BESRWFEARBERINENRE
1 5 N P B B 5RI8 - BT AL B IR B ST RAR B
HWRTEL hET VB L R

inspecting, on a sample basis, cash receipts
from customers subsequent to the financial
year end relating to trade receivable balances at
31 December 2016.

HH T —RNF+_A=t+—HEZEWHE
EREE - B RE R R BIRIER
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Independent Auditor’s Report
RIS

Information other than the consolidated
financial statements and auditor’s report
thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information; we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2016
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Independent Auditor’s Report
RIS

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

ERESHUBHRRE EFARENHES
BB ERE N LEERIBER T HE RS
BREFENTE UREAKELE R
A RIEFTHEREEEBR JFLLK
2 BIEEMERNERNR

ERZREeHDEZTETEEESENME
HEBENEE-

B BLRT B 5T & O B R AR
ENEE

BANER RHERSHUBRRES T
FE AR PO BREF SR AR T B B A (E ] E KB AR IR
ASEIERE  WHEABREFIE R
B o AIEM BRI R B S BRIt 2SN
WEPAIREREMAE - BT ERAHRER
ABRAEFREMALT RS SRAREREE-

BEFREERKFHRE ETERER (B
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Independent Auditor’s Report
R TS

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise fEARIE (FBEHEL]) #ETENHBREH
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism  FRFEER T HEHIE - R THEERAEE -
throughout the audit. We also: A5

140

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or
the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

e  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2016
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Independent Auditor’s Report
R TS

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Siu Chi Hung.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

16 March 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

Bt EER

for the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—Z—A"F+_A=+—HIFE

(Expressed in Renminbi) (A AR#EFIR)

Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other revenue

Other net loss

Selling and distribution expenses

Administrative and other
operating expenses

Research and development
expenses

Profit from operations

Finance costs

Profit before taxation

Income tax

Profit for the year

Attributable to:

Equity shareholders of
the company

Profit for the year

Earnings per share

Basic

Diluted

The accompanying notes on pages 149 to 248 form part of
these financial statements. Details of dividends payable to equity
shareholders of the Company attributable to the profit for the year

are set out in Note 26(b).

Note
ok
& 2
5 A A
EH
H it z= 3
H{th 5 E5 18 3
HERDHERAX
THEHEMEERT
e
mERF
ELEZ DN 4(a)
B %3 A 2 A 4
Fri5 %4 5
FRER
BB
VNG 8 =2 =N
FRER
BRAEF
HAK 9
E 9
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2016 2015
= —T-AHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AREFT
4,991,158 2,202,395
(4,568,721) (1,961,824)
422,437 240,571
18,407 23,622
(45,172) (31,476)
(9,662) (6,237)
(41,311) (27,505)
(124,564) (74,326)
220,135 124,649
(5,548) (9,948)
214,587 114,701
(23,832) (12,702)
190,755 101,999
190,755 101,999
190,755 101,999
RMB Cents RMB Cents
AR S ARED
18.4 10.1

18.1 9.8

SF140E 248 H WY BE I M A RN 3% 5 1 76 3R
B —#B D - BN AR BRERBEAZFA
i M B BB 2 R B R M FE26(b) ©



Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
EOtREEREMZERER

for the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE T —A~F+-_A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (A A R¥5I7R)

2016 2015

—E—RF —E—RF

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Kt ARE TR ARET T

Profit for the year FRER 190,755 101,999

Other comprehensive income  FREM 2 H W&
for the year (after tax and (RBREHIE

reclassification adjustments): FE#&) :

ltems that may be reclassified B eENS BEEBEN
subsequently to profit or loss: BH:
— Exchange differences on — ¥ 5 R A 3 DA S
translation of the financial Bt /&8 A 7] B 7S R B
statements of subsidiaries b N Z=%8
outside the Mainland China 8(a) 15,189 23,827
— Available-for-sale financial — A ESREE:
assets: net movement in NP EFEEZEFRE
the fair value reserve 8(b) - (2,871)

Other comprehensive income  F R H b 2 H W &
for the year 15,189 20,956

Total comprehensive income FREEKZEE

for the year 205,944 122,955
Attributable to: BE:
Equity shareholders of RAERERA A

the company 205,944 122,955

Total comprehensive income FRAEZHEWHAETE
for the year 205,944 122,955

The accompanying notes on pages 149 to 248 form part of these 5 149E 2485 A F& M i sEiE AR 52 &5 81 75 3R %
financial statements. H— 3615 e
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

SO FR R R

as at 31 December 2016 R=T— X F+-_A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi) (A AR#EFIR)

Note
Bt

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Lease prepayments

Intangible assets

Deferred tax assets

Prepayment for acquisition of
property, plant and equipment

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Other financial assets
Derivative financial assets
Current tax assets

Pledged bank deposits
Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities

Bank borrowings

Trade and other payables
Current tax payable

Net current assets

Total assets less current
liabilities

HRBEE

WME - BB RRE
HERNKIA
BVEE
ERENIRE E

WM B R REN

A IR

RBEE

&

B 5 I H g ROR
Ht e & E
TTEEMEE

B IRE E
EEMRITER
RehBREEED

hREBRE

RITRERK

B 5 N H AR 30R
JE A BIEAFR IR

REBEERE

REERTBEE
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10

12

13
25(c)

14
15
16
17
25(a)
18
19(a)

20
21
25(a)

2016 2015
—E—XRF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT T ARET T
720,181 420,670
17,048 17,464
1,315 1,476
4,287 4,922
83,354 9,398
826,185 453,930
799,246 209,262
2,606,431 888,786
- 600

126,867 =
152 10,349
96,543 145,519
64,905 282,215
3,694,144 1,536,731
335,432 142,164
2,592,781 622,053
10,372 2,095
2,938,585 766,312
755,559 770,419
1,581,744 1,224,349



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

SO FIR R &

as at 31 December 2016 R=T—F+-_A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi) (A A R¥5I7R)

2016 2015
—E—XKF —E—RF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
e ARE T AREEFTT
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Deferred income EIEU A 22 11,739 4,752
Deferred tax liabilities FEIERIBAEE 25(c) 2,040 2,040
13,779 6,792
NET ASSETS BEERE 1,567,965 1,217,557
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEAE f#E
Capital A% X 26 8,605 8,132
Reserves e 26 1,559,360 1,209,425
TOTAL EQUITY A 1,567,965 1,217,557

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 16 KEEFEER_FT—tF=H T XBHERE
March 2017. BT -

He Ningnin Al ZE %
, l g'| ¢ Directors =
Wang Jiangiang F 2o

The accompanying notes on pages 149 to 248 form part of these 5 149E 2488 I BE KT I sE B AR 2 E B 15 3R 3%
financial statements. B — 315 -

20165 %% EHRMR (RE)ERAE ] 45



o Lo} sjE — (e 2 M SO0 /i =72 el &) T2 [ [ B4 GH I QY2 =617 L &5 "Sjuswielels [eloueUl) 8s8y] JO ed wio) 8¢ Ol 67| sebed uo sejou Buikuedwoooe ey |
G96'299'} 829919 r 229'e 99 110. 95/'€G L1e'el8 6098 H-J=H-dHN—&-Y 910 J9quiade( L¢ e sy
(VAN > = = 71281 = - oz B e LT W e SeNBS) MojNIeIS NHd 03 uolteldosddy
9.2'l6) = = = = 026'96} 958 (292 OWLE2 0 JUBLLIBO.Id 8U} Jo} Panss| SaieyS
069 = = (v6v'2) = = 3 106', L WOz YLl EHy  swayos uojdo aleys spun panss| sareys
899' - - 899' = - 3 @y 2 ANEE SUOJJ0BSUJ)
SRR JuswAed paseq-aleys pajies AINb3
76'502 9506} = = = = 681Gl = = - EAVED 1B5A B 10} SWIOOU] BAISUBBIAWOD eJoL
681Gl - - - - 681Gl = = Y EEY Y BWI0OUI BAISUBYBIWO9 eyl
GGL'061 6606} 3 = = = = = [Meed¥ES Jeak 8y} Jo} 10id
EETHB &=V :910g 40} Aynba u; sabueyn
w 1S5S 185 - 8wy 99 £96'6S 195'88 786'899 548 H-H-3v-&-{ 910z Arenuer | je sy
L i
M 186'11¢ 18671y = 85y 99 96°€S 19688 88'899 e H—t=H=-}HT-&-{ G10¢ Joquisdaq | Je sy
L] m I_“_
N -1 = (Liv'o) = = = 0L - - - oloz 7 h T Y e $aMIasal AI0JNJe)s O 0} Uoneydosddy
] _ (669'+) (669'+) = ; - - - (e SYE Y i@ T Jeaf snoyeud J0 1080sa) Ul panoidde puspiig
(o)) p 8LLLE = - (06+'9) - B - Lol 22 WOz GHUBIELAALIHS  8Wsyos uojdo aIeys Jepun panss| saseyg
c I Geg - N Ge8 < . - - = @ ERNE Suoloesues
O = W EHRHY JuswAed paseq-aleys pejes Ainbg
c - e
) i 686'2eH 666'10} (128) = = = 128'€2 = - B HEITYS Jeak aU) 10} 8LIOOUI BAISUBUBIALI0D (10
<
—
o) _ 966'02 (18%) = = = 128'62 = = Y BT 309U BNISUBYBIAWOD JaYI0
Ry 666°+0+ 666'10} - - 2 a = = = MedvES Jeak 8y} o} Jold
e _ék EEBYET-5=W 15102 104 Kinbo uj sabuey)
Q N e
m nnm 88e el 869766 1/8' g18'8 99 e56'cr ovL'l 0v2'299 806', H-H-%%- G10¢ Arenuer | je sy
Q <
O 5 (PlogElf  (Miplozzy  (iplozZly JOZEH  (Pl9gEY  9eRY
-— o] (Np)gz BN (N)(plgz B1oN  (1)(PI9Z BION Joz 81N (){Pl9z 810N 92 BlON
Vp) ._t& £ ULHEY UMY  UEEMY  YEENY  YEENY  YEg¥Y  YEE¥Y  LEg¥Y  Lig¥Y 2N
-0 2 000.9NH 000.9NH 000.9NH 000.8INY 000.9NH 000.9NH 000.9NH 000.9NH 000.9NH 9ION
O .n_m [l £¥ LEEY YEELT HEEY YHNE YHTXEY HEUF BROH b2
-— N . £ BEYIAY
o o¢ BEFERY
d O @ [ej01 syjoud EIVELE)] EIVELS)] EIVELS)) EIVELE)] EIVERE)] wnjwaid [endes
o= w_Am e pautelay anfeA Jie4 Juswied Y0 fioynjers aBueyox3 aleys aleys
O & o= peseq-aleys OHd
Hh I §38 paas fynb3
c o 8
o) ﬁ 290
w2 SHEY BBy
n v _H o uw Auedwo? ay} o s1apjoyaseys Aynba 0} 8|qeINqURY

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2016

146



Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
EHEERER

for the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE T —A~F+-_A=1+—HILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi) (AA R#5I7R)

Operating activities

Cash (used in)/generated from
operations

Income tax paid

Net cash (used in)/generated
from operating activities

Investing activities

Payment for the purchase of
property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of
property, plant and equipment

Payment for the purchase of
intangible assets

Net cash (outflow)/inflow of
purchase and redemption of
other financial assets

(Increase)/decrease in pledged
bank deposits

Interest received

Placement of time deposits with
maturity over three months

Withdrawal of time deposits with
maturity over three months

Net cash (used in)/generated
from investing activities

REED
g (R /FERe

ENAEHR

REED (A
FER<FHE

REED

BEYE BEERBNHK

HEWE R RRE
719 308
WA A

B B H A BB EE Y

Be% ORb) /MA

EEMRITHER
(), E

B WA S

FAZHABBE=EHH
EHER

RBZIHBEEB=EAN
EHEFR

REED (A
FieR&FHE

2016 2015

—E—RF —E—RF

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Kt ARE TR ARET T
19(b) (33,891) 361,952
(4,723) (37,953)

(38,614) 323,999
(408,893) (137,145)

203 2,387

= (1,587)

(25,500) 126,741

(800) 800

5,279 12,871

(26,181) (66,137)

26,181 66,137

(429,711) 4,067

147
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
EHEERER

for the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—Z—A"F+_A=+—HIFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (A AR#EFIR)

2016 2015
—E-KF —E—RF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt it ARBT R AR¥ETTT
Financing activities il & 5E B
Proceeds from share issued under 18 #5 i B 5T £ 217 IR 1
shares option scheme Fr{S 718 26(c)(i) 5,530 11,178
Proceeds from share issued PR & TR (D FT 1S I8
for the Placement 26(c)(iii) 137,276 -
Proceeds from bank borrowings 817 f& 2k Fr 13 2B 245,746 312,379
Repayment of bank borrowings — {EiE $R1T1E & (270,172) (966,180)
Decrease in pledged bank BERRITIF R D
deposits 132,684 87,440
Interest paid 21 8 (5,535) (13,862)
Dividends paid B FA% B - (41,699)
Payment for listing expenses ST EMAX - (6,953)
Net cash generated MEFTEFE (FFA)
from/(used in) financing ReFHE
activities 245,529 (617,697)
Net decrease in cash and REeRBEEEBURI FE
cash equivalents (222,796) (289,631)

Cash and cash equivalentsat R—A—HWERER
1 January REeZEEY 282,215 553,104

Effect of foreign exchange rate [ERS K E
changes 5,486 18,742

Cash and cash equivalentsat R+ Z-A=+—HWEREE£RK
31 December REZEEY 19(a) 64,905 282,215

The accompanying notes on pages 149 to 248 form part of these  F149F 2488 H) k& T MI 5E#E A 5% 5 1 15 3 3%
financial statements. B — 3615 e
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR AR BT AL

1 Significant accounting policies

(@)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable International Financial
Reporting Standards (‘IFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual IFRSs, International
Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board (the
“IASB”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group are disclosed
below.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for
the current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Note 1(c) provides information of any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application of
these developments to the extent that they are relevant
to the Group for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2016 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”).

31 December 2016 —E—RE+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kBB 18RI LA ARESIR)

1 FE

(a)

(b)

FETBUR
ARBY

REVBRRVRRAAER
B i B 75 o o 22 A (T B BR B 75
WEER]) M AR B BIER B 5
HEEL B A B e 2R
ZEg([BREtEZE
e ) BB B PR A @ A fE ) B
FREF TSRS R BIFR &t ER
(TER ST 2EA]) B U K
BB RRIGROINERTE - %F
MBRRATEBETEHARS
FIBERARES MRS
ARERE ASERANTE
SEBRWBMT

HERest £l Z e RHE
THAI REETBERMBHRSE
U ZFERNANEE AR
R 1T & A HIfE &R A AT
RERA - ANBEREAZEER

MEFWEFBREHNER
Bl BB FE1(c) + % F# B AR

SERTIBESHEEH
WERRNZETHHRKRA -

CEEE
BE-F <5 +-A=+-
AEFENAGUBREOR

ARBIRENBLR (KB
[AR&EE]) -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5 AR BT L

31 December 2016 ==
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k&

1

—~NF+=-A=+—H

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(b) Basis of preparation (continued)

The financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”),
otherwise indicated as the Group’s principal activities

rounded to the nearest thousand unless

were carried out in the PRC. RMB is the functional
currency for the Company’s subsidiary established in the
Mainland China. The functional currency of the Company
and its subsidiaries outside the Mainland China is US
dollars.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except
that the following assets and liabilities are stated at their
fair value as explained in the accounting policies set out
below:

—  Derivative financial instruments (Note 1(g)).
—  Other financial assets (Note 1(g)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with IFRSs requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application
of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgments about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR AR BT AL

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(b)

()

(d)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Judgments made by management in the application
of IFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty
are discussed in Note 31.

Changes in accounting policies

The IASB has issued a number of amendments to IFRSs
that are first effective for the current accounting period
of the Group. None of these developments have had a
material effect on how the Group’s results and financial
position for the current or prior periods have been
prepared or presented.

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. When assessing whether the
Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the
Group and other parties) are considered.

31 December 2016 —E—RE+-A=+—H
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B 5 AR BT RE

31 December 2016 —E—"F+ - A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(d) Subsidiaries (continued)

(e)

(f)

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated in the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows
and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent
that there is no evidence of impairment.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see Note 1(k(ii))).

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at
fair value. At the end of each reporting period, the fair
value is remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement
to fair value is recognised immediately in profit or loss,
except where the derivatives qualify for cash flow hedge
accounting or hedge the net investment in a foreign
operation, in which case recognition of any resultant gain
or loss depends on the nature of the item being hedged.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (Note

1 (k) ii))-
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR AR BT RE

31 December 2016 —E—"FE+_-_A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kBB 1EEAIN LA ARBESIR)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(f)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant
and equipment includes the cost of materials, direct
labor, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs
of dismantling and removing the items and restoring
the site on which they are located, and an appropriate
proportion of production overheads and borrowing costs
(Note 1(v)).

No depreciation is provided in respect of construction in
progress.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight-line method over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

—  Buildings and plant 20 years
—  Machinery 3 - 10 years
—  Motor vehicles 5 years
—  Office and other equipment 3 - 5 years

The residual value rates of each class of fixed assets are
as follows:

Residual value rates (%)

—  Buildings and plant 10%
—  Machinery 10%
—  Motor vehicles 10%
—  Office and other equipment 10%

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if
any, are reviewed annually.
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5 AR BT L

31 December 2016 —E—"F+_-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(f)

(9)

(h)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in
profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Other financial assets

Other financial assets are initially stated at fair value plus
any directly attributable transaction costs. At the end
of each reporting period, the fair value is re-measured,
with any resultant gain or loss being recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in equity in the fair value reserve. Interest income from
these financial assets is recognised using the effective
interest method in profit or loss in accordance with
the policy set out in Note 1(t)(i). When these financial
assets are derecognised or impaired (Note 1(Kk)(i)), the
cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from equity to profit
or loss.

Lease prepayments

Lease prepayments represent cost of acquiring land
use rights paid to the PRC’s governmental authorities.
Land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses (Note 1(k)(ii)).
Amortisation is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the respective periods of the rights which are
50 years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR AR BT AL

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(i)

()

Intangible assets

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation (where the
estimated useful life is finite) and impairment losses (Note

1K) i)).

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
assets’ estimated useful lives and impairment losses (see
note 1(k)(ii). Computer software is amortised from the
date they are available for the use for 5 years.

Both the useful life and method of amortisation are
reviewed annually.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal installments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease terms, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in
the accounting period in which they are incurred.

31 December 2016 —E—RE+-A=+—H
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Notes to the Financial Statements

A 5 AR BT AL

31 December 2016 —Z— "+ _-_HA=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kR A AN AAREFHIR)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1 FEEHE (&)

(k) Impairment of assets (k) EERE
(i) Impairment of other financial assets and () Ett@EEURERER
receivables 15
Current and non-current receivables that are stated YR EX AN 5 R AR AN 1 TR B
at cost or amortised cost and other financial assets ) [ IE 7 Eh fE W I8 DA N H
are reviewed annually to determine whether there hemEEe S FETR
is objective evidence of impairment. Objective RS A RERE
evidence of impairment includes observable data BE REBRESBERER
that comes to the attention of the Group about one EFEMABNR T —IEs %
or more of the following loss events: THIB RS MR BREUE
- significant financial difficulty of the debtor; — BEAMNEXNTK
#;
- a breach of contract, such as a default or — ERAEX - s Kk
delinquency in interest or principal payments; 5% N ER(E B B B sl K
AN .
i+
- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter — B ARRER EsETT
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; Hi B #5E 4
- significant changes in the technological, — Ffy-mH &k
market, economic or legal environment that ERBELIBHEFAT
have an adverse effect on the debtor; and FMEOERENL: &
- a significant or prolonged decline in the fair — A#HELBHEENLD
value of available-for-sale financial asset below EEARNESIFETNRE
its cost. R E KA o
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31 December 2016 —E—"NE+_-_A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kBB 1EEAIN LA AREESIR)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k) Impairment of assets (continued)

U

Impairment of other financial assets and
receivables (continued)

[f any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognized as follows:

—  For current receivables carried at amortised
cost, the impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.
the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition of these assets), where the effect
of discounting is material. This assessment
is made collectively where these financial
assets share similar risk characteristics, such
as similar past due status, and have not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future cash
flows for financial assets which are assessed
for impairment collectively are based on
historical loss experience for assets with credit
risk characteristics similar to the collective

group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or
loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not
result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding
that which would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5 AR BT L

31 December 2016 —Z— "+ _-_HA=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kR A AN AAREFHIR)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1 FEEHE (&)

(k) Impairment of assets (continued)

(k) EEREE)

(i) Impairment of other financial assets and

() BEMzEEEUREWSER

receivables (continued) B (&)

158

For available-for-sale financial assets, the
cumulative loss that has been recognised in
the fair value reserve is reclassified to profit or
loss. The amount of the cumulative loss that
is recognised in profit or loss is the difference
between the acquisition cost (net of any
principal repayment and amortisation) and
current fair value, less any impairment loss on
that asset previously recognised in profit or
loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or
loss in respect of available-for-sale equity
instruments are not reversed through profit
or loss. Any subsequent increase in the fair
value of such assets is recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Impairment losses in respect of available-
for-sale debt instruments are reversed if the
subsequent increase in fair value can be
objectively related to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised. Reversals
of impairment losses in such circumstances
are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR AR BT AL

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k) Impairment of assets (continued)

U

(i)

Impairment of other financial assets and
receivables (continued)

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade and bills
receivables included within trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful
but not remote. In this case, the impairment losses
for doubtful debts are recorded using an allowance
account. When the Group is satisfied that recovery
is remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is
written off against trade and bills receivables directly
and any amounts held in the allowance account
relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously charged to
the allowance account are reversed against the
allowance account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in profit
or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets may be
impaired or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:
—  property, plant and equipment;

- intangible assets;

— lease prepayments; and

— investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5 AR BT L

31 December 2016 —Z— "+ _-_HA=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kR A AN AAREFHIR)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1 FEEHE (&)
(k) Impairment of assets (continued) (k) BEBE(Z)
(i) Impairment of other assets (continued) (i) EMEERE (&)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable MEFEEEAZETR - BIE
amount is estimated. et EEEEM A KE 2

160

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely independent
of those from other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or
the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of the other assets in the
unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis,
except that the carrying value of an asset will
not be reduced below its individual fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable) or value
in use (if determinable).
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PR AR BT AL

31 December 2016 —E—RE+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kBB 18RI LA ARESIR)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1 FE&FBE (&

(k) Impairment of assets (continued) (k) BEBRE(Z)
(i) Impairment of other assets (continued) (i) EMEERE (&)
—  Reversals of impairment losses —  BEEEE
An impairment loss is reversed if there has MAREBEETRE LR
been a favorable change in the estimates WEET IR B A2 g
used to determine the recoverable amount. ARk E BB A TREE -
A reversal of impairment loss is limited to BEBEMNEE A
the asset’s carrying amount that would have BEEBTFEWI ERE
been determined had no impairment loss RBEEBEEMREET
been recognised in prior years. Reversals of HEREE AR o BIEE
impairment losses are credited to profit or BR B L E AR E
loss in the year in which the reversals are FEMBEZE-
recognised.
() Inventories n ==

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net FEZRKAER S FEHK

realisable value. K& AR

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost PN ER AR N E RO A BT

formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs H UWBEMBRBRA  #Eik

of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the ARG EZESE A &

inventories to their present location and condition. 7R L EE A B EL A AR S o

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the AR FEABEXKBRER

ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of AT EEBR T AT A R

completion and the estimated costs necessary to make EL S TS e A A -

the sale.
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31 December 2016 ==
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k&

1

—~NF+=-A=+—H

Significant accounting policies (continued)

()

(m)

(n)

Inventories (continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in
the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount
of any reversal of any write-down of inventories is
recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in which the
reversal occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts (Note 1(k)(i)) except where
the receivables are interest-free loans made to related
parties without any fixed repayment terms or the effect
of discounting would be immaterial. In such cases,
the receivables are stated at cost less allowance for

impairment of doubtful debts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are
stated at amortised cost with any difference between
the amount initially recognised and redemption value
being recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings, together with any interest and fees payable,

using the effective interest method.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2016

1

FSHEERIN AARET|R)

FEEHBE(E)

o

(m)

(n)

F& (&)

REEELR  Z5FENERE
ERRSNERA B WS E
MR 32 o (Al 77 S MUK = 7] Z 3R
FENEBEFENMEER
1A HfRY 2% U85 18 A A ) R AR R
B 32 o {2 (] 77 S H0RL A0 (E AT 3¢ (o]
THERSEEEEHEER
RAXNFESBERNRD

B2 REMERRIE

B REMBRKBYVIFZRA
FEER  EERAERFERE
LK AR RRBRERE?
R (MEEE1(k)()) - MBI GRIE B
R TN ERE T E K
ﬁ'a%ﬁ%ﬂﬁﬂﬁiﬁﬂﬁ%%m?é

AEFRIBRAN - TR ZFIF R T » %
% e W ERIE K AR R BR R E
BEAESI R -

STEMER

STERERITRATVERES
R GRAMER - BB HK AR
N ﬁﬁ%ﬂiﬁ@wum/i\ggﬁﬁm@
BEZENZEEREMAE
&rﬁéﬁﬁﬁ IRABERN XX
REFRHAREE = AR



Notes to the Financial Statements

PR AR BT AL

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(0)

(p)

(q)

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value and subsequently stated at amortised cost, except
where the payables are interest-free loans made from
related parties without any fixed repayment terms or the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition.

Employee benefits

(i)  Short term employee benefits and contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which the associated services
are rendered by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present
values.

Contributions to appropriate local defined
contribution retirement schemes pursuant to the
relevant labor rules and regulations in the PRC
are recognised as an expense in profit or loss as
incurred, except to the extent that they are included
in the cost of inventories not yet recognised as an
expense.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5 AR BT L

31 December 2016 —Z— "+ _-_HA=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kR A AN AAREFHIR)

FEEHBE(E)

() BERA (&

1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1

(q) Employee benefits (continued)

(i) Share-based payments (i) KRG BEETFH

164

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost
with a corresponding increase in a capital reserve
within equity. The fair value is measured at grant
date using the black-scholes model, taking into
account the terms and conditions upon which the
share options were granted. Where the employees
have to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the share options, the
total estimated fair value of the share options is
spread over the vesting period, taking into account
the probability that the share options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior years is charged/credited to the
profit or loss for the year of the review, unless the
original employee expenses qualify for recognition
as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to
the capital reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect
the actual number of share options that vest (with
a corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve)
except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the market price
of the Company’s shares. The equity amount is
recognised in the capital reserve until either the
share options are exercised (when it is transferred
to the share premium account) or the share options
expire (when it is released directly to retained
profits).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR AR BT AL

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(r

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.
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5 AR BT EE

31 December 2016 —E—"F+_-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(r

Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse
either in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into which
a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be
carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which
the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at each balance sheet date and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that
it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR AR BT AL

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(r)

Income tax (continued)

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Group has
the legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the following additional
conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Group intends either to settle on a net basis,
or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be
settled or recovered, intend to realise the

current tax assets and settle the current tax

liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle

simultaneously.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5 AR BT EE

31 December 2016 —E—"F+_-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(s) Provisions and contingent liabilities

(t)

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company has
a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss
as follows:
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR AR BT AL

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(t) Revenue recognition (continued)

U

(ii)

(iii)

Sale of good's

Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered
and when the customer has accepted the related
risks and rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes
value added tax (“VAT”) and is after deduction of
any trade discounts.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement
of financial position initially when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the
Group will comply with the conditions attaching
to them. Grants that compensate the Group for
expenses incurred are recognised as income in
profit or loss on a systematic basis in the same
year in which the expenses are incurred. Grants
that compensate the Group for the cost of an asset
are recognised by setting up the grant as deferred
income that is recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the useful life of the asset.

Unconditional discretionary government grants from
the government authorities are recognised in the
profit or loss as other revenue when the amount is
received.
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A 5 AR BT RE

31 December 2016 ==
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k&

1

—~NF+=-A=+—H

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(u) Translation of foreign currencies

(v)

Foreign currency transactions during the period are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates.

The results of operations with functional currency other
than Renminbi are translated into Renminbi at the
exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement
of financial position items are translated into Renminbi
at the closing foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of
the reporting period. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the exchange
reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR AR BT AL

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(w) Related parties

(@)

A person, or a close member of that person’s

family, is related to the Group if that person:

0)

(i

(i)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Group’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies:

)

(i

(i)

(iv)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same Group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint venture
of a member of a group of which the other
entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.
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31 December 2016 —E—"F+_-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kR A AN AAREFHIR)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(w) Related parties (continued)

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

(vii) The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the group or to the
group’s parent.

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that individual in their dealings with the
entity.

(x) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial statements provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR AR BT AL

31 December 2016 ZE—RE+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kBB 1EEAIN LA ARBESIR)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1 FEEHE (£2Z)

(x) Segment reporting (continuead) x) DEIRE (&)

Individually material operating segments are not MBI Em =S &2 E E Rl & 2
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the DETEEHAR BRIEE@AD
segments have similar economic characteristics and LB RFRAEE  BEEM N
are similar in respect of the nature of products and REHEE £SEIREE &
services, the nature of production processes, the type or Fam sy 8 - 5 fHE m ek Ie it
class of customers, the methods used to distribute the REHNFTRNUAREESIREBEEDS
products or provide the services, and the nature of the S mEMEL - REEF E it K36
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are MEERERIEE KK E D L
not individually material may be aggregated if they share EEEX N

a majority of these criteria.

2 Revenue and segmental reporting 2 WERDI®RE
The principal activities of the Group are manufacturing AEENTEXFeEENBEETF
and sales of camera modules and fingerprint recognition WL EHEMBRENEGEEEA N IEN
modules for mobile phones and other electronic appliances. HAEA- AAEEFTENEFE
No segment information is presented for Group’s business MER A JJ:t ]I ,ﬂ\ AEBEKEDH
segment as the Group is principally engaged in a single line of D EERE
business.
Revenue represents the sales value of goods sold, excludes WHIEFTEEYMHERBE T8
VAT and is after deduction of any trade discounts. FBEERAMBRETARZ S0
The Group’s revenue by geographical location is determined AEBZMIEBENEZ DA TR
by the locations of operations of the contracting parties. BRI AT RS BhEE o
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A 5 AR BT RE

31 December 2016 —Z— "+ _-_HA=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kB A AN AAREFIR)

2 Revenue and segmental reporting 2 WBEBNDERE (&
(continued)
2016 2015
—E-F —ZT—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR®EFTT
Revenue Y 2=
PRC (including Hong Kong) FEH(BEESE) 4,988,798 2,163,600
Overseas BTN 2,360 38,795
4,991,158 2,202,395
The Group had two (2015: three) customers with whom BE_Z2—XXF+A=+—
transactions had exceeded 10% of the Group’s revenue for AEFE AEEBHEHMZ(ZF
the year ended 31 December 2016. The aggregate amount —AF ZR)BEFPHAXRSHEA
of sales to these customers amounted to approximately HEWZMWI0% - HE_F — X
RMB3,027,256,000 (2015: RMB1,255,948,000) for the year FT+T_A=+T—BLEEFE MZ
ended 31 December 2016. Details of concentrations of credit EXPHNEHEBERNBARE
risk arising from these customers are set out in Note 27(a). 3,027,256,000t (ZE—HF: A
R #1,255,048,00070) - ZE R F
EANEERRERNFBERHIIRN
BsE27(a) ©
For the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, certain BE_ZT—R"FERTE—HEF+=
amounts of revenue are related to sales made to related A=+T—HLEFE &ETUh=me8
parties (see Note 29). DEBRBEEAFELENEE (RN

£09) o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR AR BT AL

31 December 2016 —E—RE+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kBB 1EEAIN LA ARBESIR)

3 Other revenue and other net loss 3 HukEszREMFEERE
2016 2015
—E—XKF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT R ARETTT
Other revenue H bz
Government grants BT % B 13,620 5,832
Interest income A B U A 4,256 11,311
Investment income & WA = 4,741
Others HAb 531 1,738
18,407 23,622
2016 2015
S Ll -
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT T ARETTT
Other net loss HFEEER
Net foreign exchange loss HNIE B5 1B 558 (64,613) (30,878)
Net gain on foreign currency forward 9INE 3= Bi & 49 B9 U 2= /3 58
contracts - 600
Net gain on foreign currency option %N EA#E & 49 B U &= /5 58
contracts 19,458 -
Loss on disposal of property, plant 5 E W%« M E K
and equipment REBHEE (17) (1,098)
Loss on disposal of intangible assets i & & 2 & 2= Y &5 18 - (100)
(45,172) (31,476)
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5 AR BT EE

31 December 2016 —E— "+ _-_HA=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kR A AN AAREFHIR)

4 Profit before taxation 4 BRI AEIEA
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): B B B s A R FIBR (5T A) T3 &
HEBER:
2016 2015
—E—RHF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT R ARBFT
(a) Finance costs (a) ®LE KA
Interest expenses AMEFHXZ 5,548 9,948
(b) Staff costs (b) EI A
Contributions to defined AEHBCRIKRETE
contribution retirement plans R (H1a223)
(Note 23) 6,944 5,481
Salaries, wages and other HFe ITENK
benefits H A 18 A 270,316 144,733
Equity settled share-based NHESEENRG
payment expenses (Note 24) NREX (K iE24) 1,658 835
278,918 151,049
(c) Other items (c) Ht1E R
Depreciation (Note 10) e (#ati10) 63,443 41,888
Amortisation iR
— lease prepayments (Note 12) —HEBNNIE
(Htat12) 416 416
— intangible assets (Note 13) —EBEEE
(K1a£13) 161 145
Auditors’ remuneration 1% A 7 B
— Group audit and —SEBEETK
review services EH R 1,651 1,698
— Subsidiaries statutory —FRAEVERE
audit services FEiT RS 152 198
Operating lease charges in BAMENKE
respect of properties HEEBR 4117 1,001
Research and development A (B aE0))
costs (Note (i) 124,564 74,326
Impairment losses recognised on & 5 & E b fE U 5K 18
trade and other receivables BRI A E 18 9,400 1
Cost of inventories (Note (ij) BFEERA (Ka3) 4,641,127 2,001,968
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PR AR BT AL

4 Profit before taxation (continued)

Notes:

(i)

Research and development costs include staff costs of
employees in the design, research and development department
of RMB43,093,000 for the year ended 31 December 2016
(2015: RMB26,773,000), which are included in the staff costs as
disclosed in Note 4(b).

The criteria for the recognition of such costs as an asset are
generally not met until late in the development state of the
project when the remaining development costs are immaterial.
Hence both research costs and development costs are
generally recognised as expenses in the period in which they

are incurred.

Cost of inventories includes RMB252,230,000 (2015:
RMB155,762,000) for the year ended 31 December 2016
relating to staff costs, depreciation and amortisation expenses,
which amounts are also included in the respective total amounts
disclosed separately above or in Note 4(b) for each of these

types of expenses.

31 December 2016 ZE—RE+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kBB 1EEAIN LA ARBESIR)

4 BRBIAIER (42

Hat -

0)

(it

MEXRABEHE_T—E+=
R=+—HBIEFE& I
1B B & 8 TR A K %43,093,000
T (ZE—R%F: AK¥26,773,000
Jo) s AM E4(b)H B R B TR
j;o

HERAER S —REENGTE
—MREEH A FAEIRERER T
BRAALNEARTA & e - Bt

MARARFAERA-—RREESE
HIR R R -

HE-_Z-—~"F+=_RA=+—
HEFE GFERABEARK
252,230,000t (ZZE—FHF: AR
#5155,762,0007T) * 7 Al 81 B T X
N FERBHEHASER 258
Mt AZESBRIRASTE EXES
WEXRMFIOFENRBELS
o
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A 5 AR BT RE

31 December 2016 —Z— "+ _-_HA=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kB A AN AAREFIR)

5 Income tax in the consolidated statement 5 &#tEZEFWER
of profit or loss

(@ Income tax in the consolidated statement of (a) EHHEZRFNFAEHRE:
profit or loss represents:

2016 2015
Sl = -
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT T ARBFTT
Current tax B 8 Bt 18
PRC Corporate Income Tax FRECEMREH 25,339 11,971
PRC Dividend Withholding Tax A B % B FB+0 %4 - 5,760
Hong Kong Profits Tax BBNFH (2,142) -
23,197 17,731
Deferred tax IE B 1E
Origination and reversal of TR HEEED
temporary differences EERED
(Note 25(b)) (KB1at25(0)) 635 (5,029)
23,832 12,702

] 78 Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2016



Notes to the Financial Statements

PR AR BT AL

31 December 2016 —E—RE+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kBB 1EEAIN LA ARBESIR)

5 Income tax in the consolidated statement 5 4tz xPWFER
of profit or loss (continued) (4&)

=l

BRERRERGENHBAXES
g A B B -

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and (b)
accounting profit at applicable tax rates:

2016 2015
—E—RF —RhF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AR¥ETTT
Profit before taxation B ¢ A ) 214,587 114,701
Notional tax on profit before B &2 Al g A1 B9 44 & A IR
taxation, calculated at the REARNBEENRE
rates applicable to the tax EEREENBETE
jurisdictions concerned 52,180 29,946
Tax effect of PRC preferential BB SN
tax treatments (iii) 7t 755 52 22 (i) (17,088) (9,275)
Tax effect of additional deduction fiff 2 5k 7K & B8 S 18 AY
on research and development Mg 2
costs (9,207) (8,389)
Effect of non-deductible expenses I~ A] 1 5 % B9 57 22 89 249
Tax effect of unused tax loss not 7~ & 52 & Eh A3 1 18 /&5 18 /Y
recognised %R B - 171
Over provision in prior years BAEFEEREEE (2,142) =
Actual tax expense ERBBRALZ 23,832 12,702
Notes: Biat -
()  Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman () BEHREHELMABELHS

Islands and the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), the Group is
not subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands and
BVI.

(i) No provision was made for Hong Kong Profits Tax in 2016
as the Group did not earn any assessable profit subject to
Hong Kong Profits Tax during 2016 (2015: nil).

(IRBREZHES]NRAR
AR CANEEBERNRERS
REBRELEHESBNERMAE
Wi o

(i) ARAEER-_ZT—"FITE

ﬁ?ﬁ SERBBABENEHH
ERBGN MR T —RF
jiﬁﬁ'f%/%ﬂ SHEH -

(ZE—RHF:8)
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5 AR BT EE

31 December 2016 —E—"F+_-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

5

Income tax in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss (continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and
accounting profit at applicable tax rates:
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(ii)

(iv)

Effective from 1 January 2008, the PRC statutory income
tax rate is 25%. Kunshan Q Technology Limited (“Kunshan
QT China”) was qualified as a High and New Technology
Enterprise (“HNTE”) in 2009, and had successfully
renewed the HNTE qualification on 21 May 2012 and
6 July 2015 respectively and continued to enjoy a
preferential income tax rate of 15% for another three years
commenced from 1 January 2015.

According to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law
and its related regulations, the Group is subject to a
withholding tax at 10%, unless reduced by tax treaties
or arrangements, for dividends distributed by a PRC
enterprise to its immediate holding company outside the
PRC for earnings generated beginning on 1 January 2008
and undistributed earnings generated prior to 1 January
2008 are exempt from such withholding tax. According
to the China-HK Tax Arrangement and its relevant
regulations, a qualified Hong Kong tax resident which is
the “beneficial owner” and holds 25% or more of a PRC
enterprise is entitled to a reduced withholding rate of 5%.
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(b) REBRARKRFENHBEMAIES
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i
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(i)

(iv)
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(TEWWESKFBR])R=ZFZ AN
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R ER RN
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—RFEAANBERNET S
RTC%ER BT —RF
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15%H) B EFTEHE -
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BEE) REBBERE A&
BARTEEEE —TTN\F
—R—HEMELNEFNRE
FEIRINERER AR DK
BB 12 10% (AR IR 7 4 15
K 22 B 3R BR SN ) B9 AR R R
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PR AR BT AL

31 December 2016 ZE—RE+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kBB 1EEAIN LA ARBESIR)

6 Directors’ emoluments 6 EEHN
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) RIEE B R A& E383(1)1F & A
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Al (BEEEEFEER) R GIFE280
Companies (Disclosure of information about Benefits of HEMMBRBE2ESEZHMAOT :

Directors) Regulation are as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2016 BE-_E—XNE+=-HA=+—HIE

Salaries,
allowances Retirement Share-based
and other scheme  Discretionary payments
benefits  contributions bonuses Sub-total (note)
HRH A

Fooak BRONT
fig  REMEN ERHGHBER BiERA i it
RMB000  RMB'000  RMBO00  RMB'000  RMBO00  RMB'000  RMBY00
ARBTR  ARETR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARETR

Executive directors #1783

Mr. He Ningning AEsEs 322 - - - 322 - 322
Mr. Yang Peikun AL - 279 19 - 298 156 454
Mr. Wang Jiangiang TRHELE - 195 b 500 700 125 825
Mr. Hu Sanmu f=ARnk - 319 18 370 707 63 770

Independentnon- B FEHT
executive directors gz

Mr. Chu Chia Hisang NRELE - 90 - - 90 - 90
Ms. Chen Jun BBt - 90 - - 90 - 90
Mr. Ng Sui Yin RRELE - 90 - - 90 - 90
Total st 32 1,063 4 870 2,207 344 2,641
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A 5 AR BT RE

31 December 2016 —E—"F+_-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kB A AN AAREFIR)

6 Directors’ emoluments (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2015

6 EEHM (=&

BE-Z-AF+-A=1+—HLHF

E
Salaries,
allowances Retirement Share-based
and other scheme  Discretionary payments
Fee benefits  contributions honuses Sub-total (note) Total
UG
e 2h AROHR
e REREN RAHEER BB INGE (i) @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT  ARETR  ARETRT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
Executive directors ~ HTES
M. He Ningning e 295 - - - 295 - 295
M. Yang Peikun s - 875 17 600 992 238 1,230
Mr. Wang Jiangjang TRELE - 120 - 300 40 119 539
Independentnon- B FEHT
executive directors ~ EZ
Mr. Chu Chia Hisang NRELE - 8 - - 8 - 8
Ms. Chen Jun Rifnt - 8 - - 8 - 8
Mr. Ng Sui Yin RRBEE - 82 - - 82 - 82
Total fazt 2% T 17 900 1,953 357 2,310
Note: These represent the estimated value of share options granted to Kt ZELRERBEANEBNERES

the directors under the Group’s share option scheme. The value
of these share options is measured according to the Group’s
accounting policies for share-based payment transactions as
set out in Note 1(q)(ii).

The details of these benefits in kind, including the principal
terms and number of options granted, are disclosed in Note 24.

During the year, there were no amounts paid or payable
by the Group to the directors or any of the highest paid
individuals set out in Note 7 below as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as a compensation for loss of
office. There was no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any emolument during the year.
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PR AR BT AL

31 December 2016 —E—RE+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kBB 1EEAIN LA ARBESIR)

7 Individual with highest emoluments 7 BREFAL
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two B2 —_E—XRE+T=-_A=+—H1Ik
(2015: two) of them are directors for the year ended 31 FE hEmeFALTHRERE (=
December 2016, whose emoluments are disclosed in Note 6 E-—hEFE ME)BES HHFHR
above. The aggregate emoluments in respect of the remaining LB sE6iEE - 82 T A TR B 42
individuals are as follows: A0 :
2016 2015
—E-XF —T—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T ARETTT
Salaries and other emoluments & N H b % B 915 845
Discretionary bonuses (SRR AN 1,204 787
Contributions to retirement benefit Rk #&@ A5 2] 4L 3%
scheme 14 15
Share-based payments LARS 19 7 EE 7 B9 5F 30 182 30
2,315 1,677
The emoluments of the three (2015: three) individuals with the B2 E—XRE+-_A=+—HIt
highest emoluments for the year ended 31 December 2016 FE - ZZ(ZE—RAF:=%)%
are within the following bands: SHATHHEMNTATEHE :

2016 2015
—EB—RF¥ —ZET—hEF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals

AB A

HK$Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z 71 %£1,000,000/%5 7T 3 3
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A 5 AR BT RE

31 December 2016 —Z— "+ _-_HA=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kB A AN AAREFIR)

8 Other comprehensive income 8 HitzmUW=
(@) Tax effects relating to each component of other (a) FEAEMEZEMKESARIBHH
comprehensive income HBEE

2016 2015
ZE-RE “3-1%

Before-tax Net-of-tax Before-tax Net-of-tax
amount Tax effect amount amount Tax effect amount
BHALE RE¥E  RE4eE EEEREE it 7 S il e
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARETR  ARETZ [N EWAEUN:LS D AN S

Exchange difference on BENTEEN

translation of; EXER:
- financial statements of SN2 7
subsiolaries outside HEARN
the Mainland China kA% 15,189 - 15,189 23,827 - 23827
Available-for-sale financial ~ WEHESREE:
asses:
- net movement In - DTERE
fair value reserve 2938 - - = (3,378) 507 (281)
Other comprehensive income £t 2 AW 15,189 - 15,189 20,449 507 20,956
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31 December 2016 —E—RE+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kBB 1EEAIN LA ARBESIR)

8 Other comprehensive income (continued) 8 HttzmEUzs (&

(b) Components of other comprehensive income, (b) HttzEKREART 0 (BEE
including reclassification adjustments FoERAE)

2016 2015
ZE—REF —ET—ARF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTFT

Available-for-sale financial assets: ]t & & @& & ¢
Changes in fair value recognised & AR A F{E %

during the year - 1,363
Reclassification adjustments for %2 % 18 25 /) U8

amounts transferred to EFOBERAE:

profit or loss:

— gains on disposal — HE W= = (4,747)
Tax effect of fair value change NEBEZETARED

charged to reserve M8 - 507
Net movement in the fair O EL A 2 T WA A B BB Y

value reserve during the FARAFERBESLSFRE

year recognised in other

comprehensive income - (2,871)
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31 December 2016 —Z— "+ _-_HA=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kB A AN AAREFIR)

9 Earnings per share 9 BREF
(@) Basic earnings per share (@) BREXRER
The calculation of basic earnings per share is SIREREF AR A B ZEE
based on the profit attributable to ordinary equity B AFELERN ARK
shareholders of the Company of RMB190,755,000 190,755,000 (= ZF — A &F:
(2015: RMB101,999,000) and the weighted average of A K #101,999,0007T) & F
1,038,359,000 (2015: 1,014,174,000) ordinary shares in A B 21T @ AT A 0 RE S S 8
issue during the year, calculated as follows: 1,038,359,000fx ( = ZE — H#
F:1,014,174,0000% ) = & %
AEMAT:
Weighted average number of ordinary shares Z AR I
2015
—E—RF
‘000
T
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January R—A—HH
BEEITERR 1,027,945 1,000,000
Effect of share options exercised ETENERENTE
(Note 26(c)(ii)) (Ha£26(c)(ii)) 8,332 14,174
Shares issued for the Placement Bl &2 &ITRD
(Note 26(c)(ii) (B1at26(c)(i) ) 2,082 -
Weighted average number of R+Z—H=+—8%
ordinary shares at 31 December 5 IR 0 Y 2 1,038,359 1,014,174
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31 December 2016 —E—RE+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kBB 1EEAIN LA ARBESIR)

9 Earnings per share (continued) 9 BRER (£&)
(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) EREERR
The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based FRRE SRR JAKR A 7 i@
on the profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders fEEEEEAEBERNGO AR
of the Company of RMB190,755,000 (2015: #190,755,000c (=& — &
RMB101,999,000) and the weighted average of ordinary F:HAE®101,999,000
shares of 1,056,739,000 shares (2015: 1,046,124,000) o) KM E BRI EFE B E
calculated as follows: 1,056,739,000 (=& —®
£ :1,046,124,0000% ) & & %
ATEMT:
Weighted average number of ordinary shares ZERINEFGE (#E)
(diluted)
2015
—E—RF
‘000
T i
Weighted average number of R+-_A=+—8#H
ordinary shares at 31 December 38 AR hn 1 T 15 8K 1,038,359 1,014,174
Effect of deemed issue of shares BRAERBE AR A IR
under the Company’s share option a2l 31T i% 1 B 2 &
schemes 18,380 31,950
Weighted average number of R+=—ZHA=+—8&
ordinary shares (diluted) 58 AR N T 15 2
at 31 December (#59) 1,056,739 1,046,124
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31 December 2016 —ZE—RF+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kB A AN AAREFIR)

10 Property, plant and equipment 10 ¥ -BEKRKRE
Office
Buildings Motor and other Construction
and plant Machinery vehicles equi%m\egg Sub-total in progress Total
A
BFREBE HaE nE EthRfe it ERIE )

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ABRTT  ARETR ARETT AREBTT ARETR ARETT ARET:R

Cost: B
At 1 January 2015 R-E-nF-A—H 108,242 225,435 689 36,345 365,711 32,881 398,592
Additions NE 916 65,428 - 28,648 94,992 35,264 130,256
Transfer from construction ~ EEBEER IR
in progress 49,774 1,972 - 2,634 54,380 (54,380) -
Disposals HE - (8,213) - (924) (9,137) - (9,137)
At 31 December 2015and R =-E—1%
1 January 2016 +ZA=+-Bk
=== A= 153,932 284,622 689 66,703 506,946 13,765 519,711
Additions NE 20,547 188,324 - 58,143 267,014 96,160 363,174
Transfer from construction EEEEETR
in progress ) 1,741 46,407 - 1,350 49,498 (49,498) -
Disposals HE = (1,042) - 1) (1,083) - (1,063)
At 31 December 2016 RZE-RF
e = 176,220 518,311 689 126,175 821,395 60,427 881,822
Accumulated depreciation: 247 :
At1 January 2015 A-Z-RE-f-A (9,590) (39,186) 14 (13:815) (62,805) - (62,805)
Charge for the year ERR (6,536) (21,451) (124) (13,777) (41,888) - (41,888)
Written back on disposals {11 & s B o) - 5,202 - 450 5,652 - 5,652
At 31 December 2015and = W=F—H1%F
1 January 2016 +ZRA=+—-Ak
—E-NF—f-H (16,126) (65,435) (338) (27,142) (99,041) - (99,041)
Charge for the year EWTH@ (9,351) (31,978 (124) (21,990) (63,443) - (63,443)
Written back on disposals  HERE - 836 - 7 843 - 843
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RE
+-A=t-A (05.477) (86,577) (462) (09125 (161,641) - (161641)
Net book value: RHFE:
At 31 December 2015 R-E-1F
+-RA=+-H 137,806 229,187 351 39,561 406,905 13,765 420,670
At 31 December 2016 RZE-RF
== 150,743 431,734 227 77,050 659,754 60,427 720,181
The buildings held for own use are located in the PRC under Bire B FARPE  BhH
medium-term leases. A o
As at 31 December 2016, the Group was in the process of N_E—RE+=—_F=1+—8 ' £K&
obtaining the ownership certificate in respect of buildings B rERMRTREZEEFEAA
in the PRC with net book value of RMB24,281,000 (2015: R#&24 281,000 (—ZE—H4F: /\
RMB25,415,000). AE%25,415,00075)ZT§+EE B
A -
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31 December 2016 —E—"E+-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kBB 1EEAIN LA ARBESIR)

Investments in subsidiaries

The following list contains the particulars of all the subsidiaries

11 REIE R RINIKRE

TREJIARAMBEMBRRZE

of the Company. The class of shares held is ordinary unless ko BB A iR D ER A
otherwise stated. 2 X o
Proportion of equity
Place and date of incorporation/ Place of Paid up capital/  interest attributable to the
Name of Company establishment operation registered capital Company Principal activities
BRRER/
RAERH AL/ RIEHR B EXBE EREL ADAEERELS  EEXRH
Direct Indirect
J-§:3 E:3
Q Technology (Great China) Inc.” British Virgin Islands (‘BVI")/ BvVI US$10,000 100% - Investment holding
Q Technology (Great China) Inc.* 3 July 2007 KBRUES 10,0005 REER
ERELEE ((ABRRES])/
“2RLELA=H
Kunshan Q Technology Limited® People’s Republic of China (‘PRC’)/ PRC US$75,000,000 = 100% Manufacture and trading of
BIERMETHRERAT 16 October 2007 i 75,000,000% 7 Camera Modules
FEARRNE ([48))/ RERERERARE
“ETLETATER
Kunshan Q Technology (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong/15 January 2013 Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100% Trading of Camera
Kunshan Q Technology (Hong Kong) Limited B%/-F-Z§-At1A ¥ 10,0007 Modues
EERGEEA
Chengdu Q Technology Limited* PRC/B June 2014 PRC RMB1,000,000 = 100% Research and
RBEHUETRRERAT P8/ —F-BF5 AR E ABR#1,000,0007T development of Camera
Modules
HEEERER
Shenzhen Q Technology Limited* PRC/19 June 2015 PRC RMB2,000,000 - 100% Trading of Camera
R TERMEFRHARAT h8/-F2-R%F/~ATNA ik AR2,000,0007T Modules
BEERGERA
Taiwan Q Technology Limited® Taiwan/1 July 2015 Taiwan TWD 8,000,000 100% - Trading of Camera
SREHREAR AR AE/—F-0FtA-H = 3,000,000% & % Modules
REBREERA

i The entity was previously known as CK Telecom (Great China)

Inc. (“CK Great China”), and its name was changed to Q

Technology (Great China) Inc. on 2 September 2015.

The English translation of the companies’ names are for

reference only. The official names of the companies are in

Chinese.

Inc. ([CK Great China ) - E&ZBR =
T—AF A -BHEHRAEQ Technology
(Great China) Inc. °

ERABM KB EFERSE %
S ARIMIEXBRE RSP -

el s
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A 5 AR BT RE

31 December 2016 —Z— "+ _-_HA=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kB A AN AAREFIR)

11 Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

11 RIEBARMNRE (£Z)

Notes: Bt
(i)  The entity is a wholly foreign owned enterprise established in () ZERAERARBIHING T E
the PRC. ¥
(i)  The two entities are limited liabilities companies established in (i) ZMREEASNFRKINERE
the PRC. ENEIE

12 HERAN KA

12 Lease prepayments

RMB’000
AREFTT
Cost: A
At 1 January 2015, R—_ZT—RAF—HF—A8" —HFR
31 December 2015 and 2016 —E—XFt+=-A :+ El 20,791
Accumulated amortisation: 2T
At 1 January 2015 R-_ZE—RF—HF—H (2,911)
Amortisation for the year F B (416)
At 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016 RZE—RAF+-_A=+—HEK
—E-RF—-H—H (8,327)
Amortisation for the year F 5 (416)
At 31 December 2016 RZE—R"E+ZA=+—H (8,743)
Net book value: BREFE:
At 31 December 2015 R—ZT—RAF+-_HA=+—H 17,464
At 31 December 2016 R—ZE—RF+=-_HA=+—H 17,048

190

Interests in leasehold land represent prepayments of land
use rights premium to the PRC authorities by the Group.
The Group’s leasehold land is located in PRC, on which its
manufacturing plants were built. The Group is granted land
use rights for a period of 50 years up to 2058.

The amounts include RMB416,000 (2015: RMB416,000)
current portion of the lease prepayments as at 31 December
2016.
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13 Intangible assets

Notes to the Financial Statements

PR AR BT AL

31 December 2016 —E—RE+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kBB 1EEAIN LA ARBESIR)

13 B EE

Computer
software
SFEME G
RMB’000
ARETFTT
Cost: AN :
At 1 January 2015 R=—ZFT—RF—H—H 152
Addition during the year 2015 RZE—HFERE 1,587
Disposals HE (131)
At 31 December 2015 and 2016 RZE—HFRK
—E—XH+=-HA=+—H 1,608
Accumulated amortisation: Rty
At 1 January 2015 R=—ZFT—HF—H—H (18)
Amortisation for the year G (145)
Written back on disposals S R ] 31
At 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016 RZE—RAF+_A=+—HEK
—ZE—X"¥—H—H (132)
Amortisation for the year F N (161)
At 31 December 2016 RZZE—RF+=-_A=+—H (293)
Net book value: BREFEE:
At 31 December 2015 RZE—RFE+=ZA=+—H 1,476
At 31 December 2016 RZF-—AFE+ZA=1t—H 1,315

The amortisation charges of the intangible assets for the year
are included in “administrative and other operating expenses”
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

e

FABTVEENBEHEFAXTAAR
PriE R P ) [1TER M B b 8 4 7
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A 5 AR BT RE

31 December 2016 —Z— "+ _-_HA=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kB A AN AAREFIR)

14 Inventories 14 78
Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial position SEHBMBRIETHNFTEBRRE:
comprise:
2016 2015
—E—XF —E—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AREFTT
Raw materials JR# K 227,125 54,800
Work in progress & m 272,938 80,715
Finished goods X & 299,183 73,747
799,246 209,262
The analysis of amount of inventories as an expenses and EARSt \BERTNEESTER
included in profit or loss is as follows: DT
2016 2015
—E—XF —ET—hEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AREFT
Carrying amount of inventories sold B H&FSHREE 4,564,809 1,955,929
Carrying amount of inventories MR TTI R A 48 &
recognised as administrative ERRMMEERD
and other operating expenses FEMEREE
and research and development
expenses 73,843 44 892
Write down of inventories T B MR 2,475 1,147
4,641,127 2,001,968
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PR AR BT AL

31 December 2016 —E—RE+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kBB 1EEAIN LA ARBESIR)

15 Trade and other receivables 15

Trade receivables

— third parties

— related parties (Note 29(c))
Bills receivable

— third parties

Trade and bills receivables

Less: allowance for doubtful debts

Other deposits, prepayments and
receivables

H 5 R
—E=%

— 8T (B a229(c))
FE W E &

A —

=05

B 5 RUGRIA MR W R R

R AR

Hibiz®  BNKER
& W 5K IR

All of the trade and other receivables are expected to be

recovered or recognised as expense within one year, except
for the Group’s deposits amounting to RMB264,000 (2015:
RMB9,000) as at 31 December 2016, which are expected to

be recovered after more than one year.

Bill receivable represented outstanding bank acceptance

bills and commercial acceptance bills. As at 31 December
2016, bills receivable amounting to RMB129,225,000 (2015:
RMB27,128,000) were pledged as security for bills payable

(see Note 21). Bills receivable are due in 3 to 6 months from

the date of issue.

EZ RHEMEBWRFIE
2016 2015
—E—XKF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT T AR¥ETTT
2,371,648 751,647
3,894 13,546
169,105 116,670
2,544,647 881,863
(9,904) (504)
2,534,743 881,359
71,688 7,427
2,606,431 888,786

FTEE 5 KkE M EKKIBEEBER
—FRREHEREAZ  ERZF
—NF+_A=+—H2BEAAR
#264,000L (T —HF: AR¥
9,000 )M AEEIZEHRIN %F
CRBHENBR —FEKME -

JE W B 18 R B B UK KA R 17 K
AEBEBEALEE- R_Z
— " FE T A=1+—H AR%
129,225,000t (=2 —HF: A
R #27,128,0007T) WE KR EEE
EIRERENRBEMER(RMHE
21) B ZEEZE B ETHE-EEIE
61E A 285
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A 5 AR BT RE

31 December 2016 —Z— "+ _-_HA=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kB A AN AAREFIR)

15 Trade and other receivables (continued) 15 ES REMEWTEIE(Z)
(a) Ageing analysis (@) BRERZ T
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis NEEHIR - IR ZERHEIH &
of trade and bills receivables (which are included in trade Mk REEEENE S5 EWR
and other receivables), based on the invoice date and EREREZEE (Bt ABSIRE
net of allowance for doubtful debts, is as follows: M FEWERIE) R DT T -
2016 2015
ZE-RF —T—AF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AREFIT
Within 1 month R11E A LA A 1,569,991 613,254
More than 1 month wmA1E A ER
but within 3 months 31E A AR 902,416 250,927
More than 3 months B E3ME A E R
but within 6 months 61E A AR 62,336 17,165
More than 6 months fBA6E A BN
but within 1 year 1F AR - 13
2,534,743 881,359
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PR AR BT AL

31 December 2016 —E—"E+-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kBB 1EEAIN LA ARBESIR)

15 Trade and other receivables (continued)

(b) Impairment of trade and bills receivables

Impairment losses in respect of trade and bills
receivables are recorded using an allowance account
unless the Group is satisfied that the recovery of the
amount is remote, in which case the impairment loss is
written off against trade and bills receivables directly (see
Note 1(K)(i)).

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during
the year is as follows:

At 1 January n—H—H
Impairment loss recognised EERNREESE
At 31 December R+—_A=+—H

As at 31 December 2016, there was an impairment
provision of RMB9,904,000 (2015: RMB504,000) related
to certain customers which balances were overdue
and were individually determined to be impaired. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.
After taking into account their respective financial
condition and the subsequent year end settlements from
customers up to the date of these financial statements,
the directors considered that such specific provision was
adequate but not excessive.

15 B RHEMEWKIR (&

(b) EZEUREARERRERE

B 5 FEUGRIE K B W E R 6 R E &
BIRABRERGDS  RIEAEE R
W IEl 7 A & KB /9 A BE 1T B A

ERERT REEEEZEESE
WokE & e = s sE (R ETEE1(K)
(i) e

FARKBEENOESHNT

2016 2015
—E—XE —E—AF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT T AR¥ETTT
504 503

9,400 1
9,904 504

R-ZB—RE+-_A=+—8"'F8
BETREFZREREGEAARYE
9,904,000t (ZE—HF: ARK
504,0007T ) + B 45 8 B i B30 (@ B
EBEABE  ANEBEW B EZE4
R ERIE Y - KETRZERFP Z
MR R ERREREEZEY
Bk ABENEERL E5RE
EHABEERERE B ARBEE-
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A 5 AR BT RE

31 December 2016 —Z— "+ _-_HA=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kB A AN AAREFIR)

15 B REMBWRIE (&

(c) IER{EHE 5 EYIRREW

15 Trade and other receivables (continued)

(c) Trade and bills receivables that are not

impaired

The ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables that
are neither individually nor collectively considered to be
impaired are as follows:

Neither past due nor impaired BE R %8 B TR AR R E
Less than 3 months past due # HASE A LA A

Over 6 less than 12 months # HA R iBe(E AR
past due L1218 A

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
related to a wide range of customers for whom there was
no recent history of default.

As at 31 December 2016, receivables that were past
due but not impaired related to customers that maintain
continuing trading relationships with the Group. Based
on past experience and customer’s financial condition,
management believes that no impairment allowance
is necessary as the balances are still considered fully
recoverable.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2016
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BE R {8 51 75 K L R 4% R A RE
BB ZEYWRIA K E W EIR
BRI T -

2016 2015
—E—RE —ZE—hFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR®ETF T
2,453,442 864,181
617 17,165

- 13
2,454,059 881,359

BE 2R 380 2 7 oK OBk (B /O FE U 5K IR
BTV EBRCHENZ AR
FaR-

RZZE—RF+—A=1+—H"
B 48 B8 KR (B &Y FE I IR 1T
REEAXEEREE ZH TR
BF - BEBEBENEREZER
EHBBERN EEERE %
LM 2PKRE AT E
MZEERELRERE-



Notes to the Financial Statements
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31 December 2016 —E—"E+-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kBB 1EEAIN LA ARBESIR)

16 Other financial assets

17

16 Htt & MEE

Foreign currency forward contracts 91 i B & 49

The fair value of the foreign currency forward contracts is
measured using the forward exchange rates at the end of the
reporting period and comparing to the contractual rates, with
the resulting value discounted back to the present value. The
terms of the forward contracts are 6 months.

Derivative financial assets

2016 2015
—E—XKF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT T AR¥ETTT
= 600

SMERHE NN A FETDRA®RE
HARMEMEXRGE TEAYE
Kt BAREEMEAEERE-ZE
HEWNHRR6MEAR -

17 STEEREE

2016 2015
—E—XRF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®B T ARET T

SMEHIES X

Foreign currency option contracts

The Group entered into foreign currency option contracts
with bank. As at 31 December 2016, the notional amount of
outstanding contracts amounted to USD127,500,000 (2015:
nil). All these option contracts are matured within one year.

The fair value of the foreign currency option contracts is
measured using the Black-Scholes-Merton Model. Main
parameters used in the model include the spot price of the
foreign exchange rates as of the valuation date, strike rates,
forward foreign exchange rates, implied volatilities of foreign
exchange rates and the risk-free rates.

126,867 =

7 £ & B — fE 4R 17 7] 3 o & HR A
G- RZFT—R"F+_A=1+—
H XIBEO22EZHA
127,500,000 L (=& —H F:
) FTEREHESHNAN—FNR
EHf -

SNEEES B AT E T RA S
Fe— A FET — BIA A 52 o 4R R
RANEELHEEHEDNHE
TREER AREE NEEX
18 2 % B0 2 A T L 2
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A 5 AR BT RE

31 December 2016 —Z— "+ _-_HA=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kB A AN AAREFIR)

18 Pledged bank deposits 18 B HRITERK
2016 2015
—E—XRF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT R AREFT
Pledged for AT B IEE A
— bank borrowings (Note 20) —RITIER (K7 2220) 12,000 144,684
— bills payable (Note 21) —EREE (Hit21) 75,493 835
— letter of guarantee — R K 9,050 =
Pledged bank deposits 2R ITERK 96,543 145,519
The pledged bank deposits will be released upon the ERBRTFRERNFERBRT
settlement of relevant bank borrowings, bills payable, and the B BN RE RERK D HE R
maturity of letter of guarantee. i o
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PR AR BT AL

19 Cash and cash equivalents

(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

31 December 2016 —E—RE+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kBB 1EEAIN LA ARBESIR)

19 RERREEE/Y

Cash in hand FHERE
Cash at bank IRITTFR
Cash at bank and in hand RITERKEFEES

As at 31 December 2016, cash and cash equivalents
placed with banks in the Mainland China amounted to
RMB40,744,000 (2015: RMB234,125,000). Remittance
of funds out of the Mainland China is subject to the
relevant rules and regulations of foreign exchange control
promulgated by the PRC government.

() BeRBESEEYERE:
2016 2015
—E—XE = Z5—h &
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETTT
65 ol
64,840 282,164
64,905 282,215

RZE—RF+_A=+—
B AEEHFAPRBEKERT
NBEeERBEEEENAARE
40,744,000t (ZF—AHF : A
R #234,125,0007T) - & &
B i A B K Bz 78 8 <7 R B R AT
A8 1 B9 48 B8 SN BE B I R B RO
o
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A 5 AR BT RE

31 December 2016 —Z— "+ _-_HA=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kB A AN AAREFIR)

19 RERREEEY (&

(b) BRBIADERIEREEFIBREMNY

19 Cash and cash equivalents (continued)

(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash

generated from operations: BE:
2016 2015
—E—XE —E—hHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARETFIT
Profit before taxation B 25 Al 4 A 214,587 114,701
Adjustments for: AT FIEAE:
Depreciation e 63,443 41,888
Amortisation of lease & T8 FRIE 5
prepayments 416 416
Amortisation of intangible assets 2 & 2 # §4 161 145
Interest expenses FE R 5,548 9,948
Interest income B U A (4,256) (11,311)
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE BERXEEE
plant and equipment 17 1,098
Loss on disposal of Intangible HEREEERE
assets - 100
Impairment loss for inventories 17 S EE 18 2,475 1,147
Impairment loss for trade and B 5 K EAM W IR R B E R
other receivables 9,400 1
Equity-settled share-based iEmAEE RN TR S
payment transactions 1,658 835
Net gain on foreign currency SNERHAES KN e T8
forward contracts - (600)
Net gain on foreign currency SNEEHRRE & K9 5
option contracts (19,458) -
Investment income wE WA = ,7A))
Foreign exchange loss SNEE B5 18 20,460 5,087
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31 December 2016 —E—RE+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kBB 1EEAIN LA ARBESIR)

19 RERBEEE/Y (&

(b) BRBIADERIREERERENY

19 Cash and cash equivalents (continued)

(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash

generated from operations: (continued)

BR: (&)

2016 2015
—EB-RF —E-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARETTT
Changes in working capital: LEEETEE:
Increase in inventories FEEM (592,459) (68,812)
Increase in trade and other 2 5 N H & U SR IE 3 N
receivables (2,058,425) (16,103)
Increase in trade and other B 5 N F M FE A 5RIEE N
payables 2,362,344 270,656
(Increase)/decrease in pledged — FHRRIR1TH B K 3F
deposits with banks TR (Em),md (57,408) 16,159
Decrease/(increase) in amounts & < A B 5 s8R 4
due to related parties (3%hn) 967 (2,442)
Decrease in amounts due from & U B8 B 75 ZIE R
related parties 9,652 3
Increase in deferred income % FE YA S50 6,987 3,777
Cash (used in)/generated from e (A /BB e
operations (33,891) 361,952

(c) Major non-cash transactions

Major non-cash transactions during the year included the

(c) FBZHREXS

FAEEHFAERHBIEAT

following items: ER
2016 2015
B —E—hHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AREFIT
Settlements of trade payables BHEHZEESE=HES
directly by the bills 2 SR FRIA
endorsement 320,705 215,172
Settlements of trade payables HBHEMRIRTHEBEODES
directly by the bank through EXRmEEEE S ENHIE
import trade loan facilities 207,537 83,285
Total B35 528,242 298,457
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31 December 2016 —Z— "+ _-_HA=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kB A AN AAREFIR)

20 Bank borrowings 20 WITEK
RZEBE-—RFT_A=+—80"
ERANEE191% (T —RF:
3.03% ) BZAR —FAEBENRITE

As at 31 December 2016, the bank borrowings with effective
interest rate of 1.91% (2015: 3.03%) were repayable within
one year as follows:

202

AT
2016 2015
75 LR
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT T ARET T

Bank borrowings HRITE K

— secured (Note) — B\ (K7 111,335 142,164
— unsecured — 4= 3K 1 224,097 =
335,432 142,164

Note:The bank borrowings were secured by assets of the Group and
the carrying amounts of these assets are as follows:

Hat - RITERBAEE N EEFKR
- REFEENKREENT:

2016 2015
—E-RE —E—hF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%ETR AR¥ET T

Pledged bank deposits (Note 18) BRI RITER (H2£18) 12,000 144,684
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21 Trade and other payables

Notes to the Financial Statements

PR AR BT AL

31 December 2016 —E—RE+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kBB 1EEAIN LA ARBESIR)

21

Trade payables and accruals
— third parties
— related parties (Note 29(c))
Bills payable (Note (a))
— third parties

Trade and bills payables (Note (b))

Accrued payroll

Foreign currency option premium
(Note (c))

Other payables and accruals

B EMNRENETER
—FE =77

—BA 7 (H12229(c))
BN ZIE (K it(a))

A —

=EI=75
B 5 B RIE R

FENZ3E (KaEmb))
fEst T&
SNEHARER (H7it(c))

Ho Al A FRIR & B A B

All of the trade and other payables as at 31 December 2016
are expected to be settled or recognised as income within

one year or are repayable on demand.

(a) Bills payable analysed by type of security

=,

EZ REMENRIE
2016 2015
—EB—XE —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREETTT
2,054,547 547,636
1,170 203
318,154 34,117
2,373,871 581,956
50,161 24,231
107,409 -
61,340 15,866
2,592,781 622,053

—E-RF+_A=+—BMWF
ESNEMENREERR —F
BEXERBR AL EIRENRE

o

S | A

N

2l

() REFBEEIMZ2ENRE

Bills payable secured by

— Bills receivable
— Pledged bank deposits

Bills payable unsecured

HATNTEREERMM
A ZENRE

—RERER
— B HERRITHEK
BERHEMNRE

2016 2015
—E—RE —ZE—hFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR¥ETTT
124,760 25,771
102,748 8,346
227,508 34,117
90,646 -
318,154 34,117
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31 December 2016 —E—"F+_-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kB A AN AAREFIR)

21 Trade and other payables (continued)

(b) An ageing analysis of the trade and bills
payables based on the invoice date is as
follows:

21 EZREMENRE (&)

(b) REZHHE D 2EZENRE
RENRBZREDTUT

Within 3 months F31E A LA A
More than 3 months HBA3ME A B R
but within 6 months 61E A A A
More than 6 months iBA6E A BN

but within 1 year 1F AR
More than 1 year HE1F

As at 31 December 2016, the accrued trade payables
which represented the amounts with no invoice received
by the end of the year, amounted to RMB142,943,000
(2015: RMB48,857,000).

(c) Foreign currency option premium

Foreign currency option premium represented the
amount payable for entering into the foreign currency
option contracts (Note 17).

204
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2016 2015

= Aarat:d —FTHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R AR TTT
2,046,742 530,719
182,461 1,464
896 912

829 4
2,230,928 533,099

R_ZE—RFE+-_A=+—8"
A ESEMNRE (FERL
EBUMBZENRE)AAREK
142,943,000c (ZF —HF:
AR #48,857,0007T) °

(c) SNEHEE

SNEE HA #E B AR R SLOME B HES
KEN 228 (HFE17) -
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31 December 2016 —E—"FE+-_A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kBB 18RI LA ARESIR)

23 Employee retirement benefits

Defined contribution retirement plans

The PRC subsidiaries of the Group participate in defined
contribution retirement benefit schemes (the “Schemes”)
organised by the PRC municipal and provincial government
authorities whereby the PRC subsidiaries are required
to make contributions at the rate of 20% starting from 1
December 2011 (before 1 December 2011: 18%) of the
eligible employees’ salary rate to the Schemes. The Group
has accrued for the required contributions which are remitted
to the respective local government authorities when the
contributions become due. The local government authorities
are responsible for the pension obligations payable to the
retired employees covered under the Schemes.

22 Deferred income 2 EIEU A
Government
grant
B Bh
RMB’000
ARETFT
At 1 January 2015 R=—FT—HRF—H—H 975
Additions during the year FARNE 4,980
Amortisation credited to consolidated FTAS B am R B 2 5
statement of profit or loss (1,208)
At 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016 RZZE—RHF+-A=+—HEK
—ET—-R"E—H—H 4,752
Additions during the year FRARE 9,081
Amortisation credited to consolidated FTAG BB R A
statement of profit or loss (2,094)
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RE+ZA=+—H 11,739

23 EERKEF

REMR-TRNETE

REENTRRMNBERAGF2ERFEH
AR S & AR HT #E 78 P pK 2 B0 R TE
HRRANBEFIFE ([ZATE]) &
B ——F+=-A—HRHK"
FEMNBARIBUNAEREEF S
W20% (ZE——F+-_H—HHA:
18% ) BULL K [A) 3% 7T &I E H 5K - &
SEEREEZMTHI RHRIH
B B 1< F 45 Hh 75 R AT 44 8 o b 5 X
JiT 1% 28 5k P& [R) 52 51 2 BT8R Y R AR
REXNRIKESHRES T
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31 December 2016 —E—"F+_-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

23

24

Employee retirement benefits (continued)
Defined contribution retirement plans (continued)

Starting from 2014, the Group also operates a Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF scheme”) under the
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
for employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance and not previously covered
by the defined benefit retirement plan. The MPF scheme
is a defined contribution retirement plan administered by
independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make contributions
to the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income,
subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000
(HK$25,000 prior to June 2014). Contributions to the plan
vest immediately.

The Group has no other material obligation for the payment of
pension benefits beyond the contributions described above.

Equity settled share-based transactions

On 13 November 2014, the Company adopted a pre-IPO
share option scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”)
and a share option conversion scheme (the “Conversion
Scheme”) and granted a total of 59,935,500 share options
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme to the eligible
participants with an aim to reward their contribution to
the Group made or possibly made. The directors of the
Company were authorised, at their discretion, to invite certain
employees of the Group, including directors of any company
in the Group, to take up options at nil consideration to
subscribe for shares of the Company. Details of the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme are set out in Note 24(a)(i).

On 26 October 2016, the Company granted a total of
39,425,000 share options (the “2016 Share Option Scheme”)
to eligible participants to subscribe for a total of 39,425,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the capital of the
Company, subject to performance conditions related to
certain revenue growth targets of the Group’s 2017, 2018
and 2019 financial years. Details of the three tranches of the
2016 Share Option Scheme are set out in Note 24(a)(ii).
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(BRABREPI UAREIIR)

EBERKERN (&)
RE R E (F)

BT NFR AEETRE (F
B mlEAEEFTEER) ARE
BUERBKD) E& TEMBH ZA
WARMARERAEBRKGTEINES
BRSBTS ([BEEET
2]) - BELFTEARBILIITA
EEMNAEEFERIRGE - RIER
B g BEEREREES RN
FENEAEBEREE A BNSBIEAMH
;= AMBEBEA B/ LR A30,000/%8
7Tt (ZZF — W F ;X A Bl A&25,000%
JC) cHETEIER MR RANRES -
Br Ei AN REB R TR
ReEEHMTEEME RE(E-

DESREREURGHERD

R

RZZTE—NMNF+—A+=H &2
BIERM T BERARBEERBRER
2 (TERAFRBESABAREE])
k—IERE R EEREE ([ERE
2 EREEAAHABENER
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Ble A RREERREARIBEE
AEBIHFNEE (BEASEEM
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39,425,0001D EEIE#E ([ =T — R F
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FREREE 2 FBEHNHIE24(a)
(ii) ©
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PR AR BT AL

31 December 2016 —E—RE+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kBB 18RI LA ARESIR)

24 Equity settled share-based transactions 24 DREBEEURMBERDN

(continued) X5 (#&)
(@) The terms and conditions of the grants are as (a) REMGERRESFNT :
follows:

Vesting conditions

Number of 5 & R4 Contractual life
instruments  Years from the date of grant of options
THEEE ARUAHBHZFR BRENSHNED
() Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
() BRAFRBEANBRES
2012
—E—_F
Granted to directors:
RTEF:
—-on 1 January 2012 15,000,000 3 years 6 years
-RN-ZE——F—F—H 3F 64F
-on 1 January 2012 7,500,000 4 years 6 years
—IN=B=—E=F=E 4F 65F
-on 1 January 2012 7,500,000 5 years 6 years
-R-ZE——F—F—H 5% 6
Granted to employees:
BTES:
-on 1 January 2012 11,948,500 3 years 6 years
-RN-ZE——F—F—H 3F 64F
—-on 1 January 2012 5,974,250 4 years 6 years
—INEm—=tE=F—E 4F 65F
-on 1 January 2012 5,974,250 5 years 6 years
-R-ZE——%—F—H 5% 6
Sub-total for 2012 53,897,000
ZE-CFNG
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B 5 AR BT RE

31 December 2016 —Z— "+ _-_HA=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kR A AN AAREFHIR)

24 Equity settled share-based transactions 24 DERGEEURDRERD

(continued) 5 (#&)
(2) The terms and conditions of the grants are as (a) BHEMKERREHFOT: (&)

follows: (continued)

Vesting conditions

Number of B HHF Contractual life
instruments  Years from the date of grant of options
THEHE ABAREAHBHZER BRENSHNES

() Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)
() BRABMREMBRESE (&)

2013

— ==

Granted to employees:

BTES:

-on 1 January 2013 2,186,500 2 years 5 years
-RZZ—=F—A—H 2% 5%
-on 1 January 2013 1,093,250 3 years 5 years
-RZE—=%—H—H 3F 5%
-on 1 January 2013 1,093,250 4 years 5 years
-R=ZE—=F—F—H 45 5%
Sub-total for 2013 4,373,000

—E-=#/t
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PR AR BT RE

31 December 2016 —E—RE+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kBB 1EEAIN LA ARBESIR)

24 Equity settled share-based transactions 24 DREBEEURGBERDN

(continued) X5 (#E)
(@) The terms and conditions of the grants are as (a) BHEMWGERREHFENOT: (&)

follows: (continued)

Vesting conditions

Number of BB HHF Contractual life
instruments  Years from the date of grant of options
TEHEE ABAREAHBHZER BRENSHNFH

() Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)
() BRABMREAMBRESE (&)

2014
—ZE-mF

Granted to employees:

ETES:
-on 1 January 2014 832,500 1 years 4 years
—-R-F-—mF—HA—H 16 45
—-on 1 January 2014 416,250 2 years 4 years
—-RZZE—lmFE—H—H 2% 45
-on 1 January 2014 416,250 3 years 4 years
-RZE-HFE—-H—H 3F 45
Sub-total for 2014 1,665,000
—F-mEQ
Total Pre-IPO Share 59,935,000

Options granted
EERERAREEH

B R
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5 AR BT L

31 December 2016 —E—"F+_-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kR A AN AAREFHIR)

24 UEmGEHIURDRBERD
X5 (%&)

24 Equity settled share-based transactions

(continued)

(@) The terms and conditions of the grants are as

follows: (continued)

Vesting conditions

(a) RHMEAREENT : (&)

Number of B HRHF Contractual life
instruments  Years from the date of grant of options
TEHE ABARUEAHBHZER BRENSHNES
(i) 2016 Share Option Scheme:
iy —FB-—AFHRETE:
Granted to directors:
BYTE%:
- on 26 October 2016 1,124,800 1 years and 5 months 2 years and 2 months
—-RZZE=RFETHAZ+RH 1EZ5M A 2ET2(AR
- on 26 October 2016 843,600 2 years and 5 months 3 years and 2 months
—-RZE-—RFTAZtXH 2FZ5(E A SEZ2ME A
- on 26 October 2016 843,600 3 years and 5 months 4 years and 2 months
-RIE-RFETHZTE 3F Z5(E A 4FEZ21E A
Granted to employees:
BTESR:
- on 26 October 2016 14,645,200 1 years and 5 months 2 years and 2 months
-RZIE-R"FE+H=+/H 15 Z5(E A 2FEZT2E A
- on 26 October 2016 10,983,900 2 years and 5 months 3 years and 2 months
—-RIE-RETHZT/E 2FT5(E A SEZ2MH A
—on 26 October 2016 10,983,900 3 years and 5 months 4 years and 2 months
—-RZE-RE+TAZTXH 3FT5(E A 4FZ218 A
Total 2016 Share 39,425,000

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2016
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PR AR BT AL

31 December 2016 —E—RE+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kBB 18RI LA ARESIR)

24 Equity settled share-based transactions 24 DREBEEURMBERDN

(continued) X5 (#&)
(b) The number and exercise prices of share (b) EREHERITHEENT :

options are as follows:

(i) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme () BARABZREBRETE
2015
“T-hF
Exercise Number of Exercise Number of
price options price options
T fE BREZE 1668 ERkEHE
RMB ’000 RMB ‘000
AR%T T4 ARBT T
Outstanding at the RERHRTE
beginning of the year 0.4 27,745 0.4 56,700
Forfeited during the year ~ RER B XM 0.4 (93) 0.4 (1,010)
Exercised during the year ~ RER BT 0.4 (13,826) 0.4 (27,945)
Outstanding at the end RERERITE
of the year 0.4 13,826 0.4 27,745
Exercisable at the end RERATE
of the year - - = =
On 13 November 2014, the share options under N —FE+—H+=
Employee Share Option Scheme were converted H EEERKREFZIE N2
into share options of the Company, with 1 share B EDER 5K AT 2
option under Employee Share Option Scheme BERS #E - IR AE R R T M 51
being converted into 100,000 share options of BB IESEIREZI1E
the Company, at the same terms and conditions, T 2 R #EEH 5100,000
except that the respective exercise prices were RN T) 7 B - EAERE
adjusted on a proportionate basis from RMB40,000 1TEED B A K%40,000
to RMBO.4 per share. TR PIABREGR AR

0.47C°
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A 5 AR BT AL

31 December 2016 —Z— "+ _-_HA=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kR A AN AAREFHIR)

24 Equity settled share-based transactions 24 DERGEEURDRERD

(continued) X5 (#&)
(o) The number and exercise prices of share (b) EREHERITHEENT :
options are as follows: (continued) (&)
(i)  Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) () BXABZEFERIESZ
(#&)
The 2012 Pre-IPO Share Options outstanding at 31 R-E—RE+_/F=1+—
December 2016 had an exercise price of RMBO0.4 HEARTEN —_E——F57
(2015: RMB0.4) and a weighted average remaining RAFRZEE R ERERNTT
contractual life of 1 year (2015: 2 years). FEBAEARKOL4T (=

—hE: AR®04TTL) A K
EFHY RS LFE A
FE(ZE—RE:25)-

The 2013 Pre-IPO Share Options outstanding at 31 R-E—RE+_A=+—
December 2016 had an exercise price of RMBO.4 HEEXTEHN_ZE—=FH
(2015: RMBO0.4) and a weighted average remaining KA BEERBIRENTIT
contractual life of 1 year (2015: 2 years). FEAEARE4T(ZE

—HF: AR®0.4TT) A K
INEEE I F g8 A LFH A
F(ZZTE—FhF 25F)-

The 2014 Pre-IPO Share Options outstanding at 31 NZE—RF+_HA=1+—
December 2016 had an exercise price of RMB0.4 HERTEN-—ZE—NEH
(2015: RMBO0.4) and a weighted average remaining RAFBREFBIRESNTT
contractual life of 1 year (2015: 2 years). FEEAEARE4T(ZE

—HF: AR®0.47T) A K
MEFHF &R E L FH A1
F(ZTE—RHF:25) -

2 ] 2 Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2016
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PR AR BT AL

31 December 2016 —E—RE+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kBB 1EEAIN LA AREESIR)

24 Equity settled share-based transactions 24 DREGEEURGBERDN

(continued) X5 (#&)
(b) The number and exercise prices of share (b) EREHERITHEENT :
options are as follows: (continued) (&)
(i) 2016 Share Option Scheme (i) —FE—NFHERETE
2016
—E-RE
Number of
Exercise price options
TEE BREHAE
HKD ‘000
ABIT T
Granted during the year REARNBER D 4.13 39,425
Forfeited during the year RERNBE KK 413 (681)
Exercised during the year RERNBITHE = -
Outstanding at the end RERMAKRITE
of the year 413 38,744
Exercisable at the end RERAITHE
of the year - -

20165 %5 EHRMK (RE)ERAE 2] 3
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5 AR BT L

31 December 2016 —Z— "+ _-_HA=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kR A AN AAREFHIR)

24 Equity settled share-based transactions 24 DERGEEURDRERD

(continueq) RS (4#E)
(b) The number and exercise prices of share (b) EREHERITHEENT :

options are as follows: (continued) (4&)

(ij) 2016 Share Option Scheme (continued) (i) =—E—NFBREFE (Z)
The 2016 Share Options outstanding at 31 R RE+_A=+—
December 2016 had an exercise price of HKD 4.13 HRERTEN -Z— R FiE
and a weighted average remaining contractual life of R REH 1TEE B4.13/8 7T
2.9 years. VA B hnE - 5 I g & 40 F HR

5295 -
(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions (c) BERENDAFERRER

The fair value of services received in return for share D HERERBARESN A

options granted is measured by reference to the fair TEZ2EZFEHERESN S TE

value of share options granted. e

(i)  Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme () BLXABZEFERETS
The estimate of the fair value of the Pre-IPO =N =T g
Share Options granted is measured based on (et A EEE S 7 — £F
Black-Scholes model. The contractual life of the RETEAAZ - EBIRENS
share option is used as an input into this model. A E B fE % R B AR e A A
Expectations of early exercise are incorporated into HIEFE A IRE TR TEE
the Black-Scholes model. 2 A= — SR HETE A

W o
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24 Equity settled share-based transactions

(continued)

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions

Notes to the Financial Statements

PR AR BT AL

31 December 2016 —E—RE+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kBB 18RI LA ARESIR)

24 URESmEEIURDHERRD

X5 (%&)

(c) BRENAFERRBRR (&)

(continued)
(i)  Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) () BARABZREFBREE
(#&)
2012 2013 2014
Employee Employee Employee
Share Share Share
Options Options Options
—E-ZF —E-Z=f —E-mF
EEBRE EEERE EEBRE
Fair value at measurement ~ Rat2H BN AFE RMB16,206 RMB25,332 RMB89,705
date AR¥16,2061 AR¥253327T AR89,7057T
Spot Price REE RMB35,394 RMB50,772 RMB123,604
AR#35,394T AR®S50,77270  AR#123,6047T
Exercise Price (Note (b)) B (frat b)) RMBO0.4 RMBO0.4 RMBO0.4
AR#0.47T AR®0.47T AR#0.47T
Expected volatility EHA R 1R 53.8% 51.3% 47.9%
Option life (expressed AR Y (AR RS B
as weighted average life AR IS
used in the modelling) FHRT) 4.88 3.88 2.88
Expected Dividend FEHRES 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Risk-free interest rate &R E (Rp
(based on CNY China B AR ES
Government Bond Yield) W EE) 3.27% 3.25% 4.42%

The expected volatility is based on the historic

volatility of comparable companies operating in

similar industry of the Company, calculated based

on the weighted average remaining life of the

share options, adjusted for any expected changes

to future volatility based on publicly available

information. Expected dividends are based on

historical dividends. Changes in the subjective input

assumptions could materially affect the fair value

estimate.

TR ERR b8 LA AN R T
RELN A AL R A BINE
SRR AEE  ERNERE
B DN T 25 ek BT & -
WARIE AR TS AR sl 1A
RO M 3R B (R R B
58 2 o TR EAAR B U0 DA S2
I B REE - T B ARE

B ALY AFE
[hEtENE AT E -
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5 AR BT L

31 December 2016 —Z— "+ _-_HA=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kR A AN AAREFHIR)

24 Equity settled share-based transactions 24 DERGEEURDRERD

(continued) R5 (&
(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions (c) BRENAFERRBR (£
(continued)
(i) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) () BRABZEHBREZ
(#)
Share options were granted under a service 8 IR 4 5 AR R AR S 1R 1
condition. This condition has not been taken into o ST E & B Hi T R 75
account in the grant date fair value measurement B R E R R E B Z IR
of the services received. There were no market o R BBRET EME M
conditions associated with the share option grants. B AGE
(i) 2016 Share Option Scheme (i) =E—NFEBEREFE
The estimate of the fair value of the 2016 Share BH T RFRRENG
Options granted is measured based on a Binomial AV ERE-_EXBEEE
Option Pricing Model. The contractual life of the RASHE - BRENENF
share option is used as an input into this model. HATE 2 AR B AR B Ro A EUE
Expectations of early exercise are incorporated into FR - REB{TEMTEE &
the model. AZIERI A o
2016 2016 2016
Employee Employee Employee
Share Share Share
Options Options Options
—E-XRE ZB-RE —B-XF

BEBKRE BERRE EERBKRE

Vesting date FEBS 01/04/2018 01/04/2019 01/04/2020
Maturity date 3 HE 31/12/2018 31/12/2019 31/12/2020
Fair value Wit E B HKDO0.48 HKDO0.35 HKDO0.26
at measurement date NS 0.488 7T 0.35/8 7T 0.26/% 7T
Share price e HKD4.13 HKD4.13 HKD4.13
4138 T 4138 7T 4138 T
Exercise price (Noteb)(ii) — 1TE(E (KT (b)) HKD4.13 HKD4.13 HKD4.13
4138 T 413 TT 413 T
Expected volatility T8 HRR 18 40.86% 40.64% 40.63%
Risk-free interest rate a2 3 B A1) = 0.47% 0.51% 0.58%
Expected dividends BHRE 0.49% 0.49% 0.49%
Forfeiture rate ERES 2.25% 2.25% 2.25%
Suboptimal early exercise  KEBIREITERZ
factor 1.85 1.85 1.85
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PR AR BT AL

31 December 2016 —E—RE+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kBB 18RI LA ARESIR)

24 URESmEEIURDHERRD
X5 (%&)

24 Equity settled share-based transactions
(continued)

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions
(continued)

(c) BRENAFERRBRR (&)

(i) 2016 Share Option Scheme (continued) (i) =—EFE—NFERETZ(Z)

The expected volatility was referenced to the
average of daily historical share price volatility of
comparable companies operating in similar industry
of the Company. Expected dividends are estimated
as the average of the Company’s historical
dividends. The option scheme was granted under
a performance condition, and the management of
the Compnay estimates the probability of attaining

BHKIETI2ERNAREIRR
UITRELENABLRAF
B B 19 S B (B R 1R - T HA
BB A ET RAR RIE SRR
H S5 88 - B R AT 81 0 AR
BERBIRERARREERE
TR AL R B IR A
BEMEM X H - T B AR

revenue growth target. Changes in the subjective 2R By (E (] B L A] A T E
HEtEKERTE -RILE

P R X 4 75 T 95 (R A

input assumptions could materially affect the fair
value estimate. There were no market conditions
associated with the share option grants.

25 Income tax in the consolidated statement
of financial position

25 ST BARRRPNAER

(@) Current taxation in the consolidated statement
of financial position represents:

(@) GO BEMR A RDPVENEIT B

15

2016 2015
—E—XE —ZE—ARF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T ARETFIT
Current tax assets BB IEEE
PRC Corporate Income Tax FRECESH 152 10,349
Current tax payable B HA P& 1 Bt 18
PRC Corporate Income Tax PR ERSR 10,372 =
Hong Kong Profit Tax BEBMSEH = 2,095
10,372 2,095

217
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5 AR BT L

31 December 2016 —Z— "+ _-_HA=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kR A AN AAREFHIR)

25 Income tax in the consolidated statement 25 & f#tE1 R R KX P FFEF

of financial position (continued) (4&)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b) EERBNEERELEERERS:
The components of deferred tax assets and liabilities FERRNE FE BRI REDZH
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial BEEFIBEEN A G/ 4Hk 2P
position and the movements during the year are as NE=E N N
follows:

Unrealised
Fair value profit Impairment
change of  Undistributed  arising from  on inventories
financial  profits of PRC intra-group and trade Deferred Accrued
instruments  subsidiaries  transactions receivables income expenses Total
BEER

i AAERE
EMIA  HELEN EEN  BHREZ
AYERE  AOEEN  REREN BRSREE BERA EiAx &t
RVB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL  ARETR ARETT  ARBTRT ARETR  ARETR  AR¥TR

At 1 January 2015 R-E-84-A-H (507) (7,800) 4,657 148 146 702 (2,654)
Charged/(credited) to e/ (GrA)

consolidated statement A ERR

of profit or loss (Vote 5/a)  (Hii25a)) - 5,760 (623) 27 567 (702) 5,029
Charged to reserves BEENR 507 - - - - - 507

At 31 December 2015and  R=E-R%
1 January 2016 +ZA=T-Ak
- E-f-H - (2,040) 4,034 175 713 - 2,882
(Credited)/charged to (3tA)/1kE
consolidated statement ~ AGFEER
of profit or loss (NVote 5(a)) (Hiz25)) (2,919 - (513) 1,749 1,048 - (635)

At31 December 2016 ~ R=B-A%
+=A=t+-H (2,919 (2,040) 3,521 1,924 1,761 - 2,247
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PR AR BT AL

31 December 2016 —E—RE+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kBB 18RI LA ARESIR)

25 Income tax in the consolidated statement 25 & {81 #4857 3k 4 Fr 588
of financial position (continued) (4 )
(c) Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of (c) EHEHRAREIE:
financial position:

2016 2015
—®-A%E —2-EF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T ARBTF

Net deferred tax asset recognised A& 6§ Bf 75 Ak 1 3% #E 32

in the consolidated statement of ~ EILF{IE & E/FE

financial position 4,287 4,922
Net deferred tax liability recognised 7 & Bt 75 1A 5 3= FE 52 16

in the consolidated statement of ~ IEILF{1E & (&% 58

financial position (2,040) (2,040)
2,247 2,882
(d) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised (d ABEREZEHREERE

The Group did not recognise deferred tax liabilities in NEBWEGLF EMFE QTR
respect of the PRC dividend withholding tax relating —E-RE+-A=+—H8HH
to certain undistributed profits of the PRC subsidiaries B RE T &2 0% R BT 48 b
as at 31 December 2016 since the Group controls B AZ BB I R R 77 T8 B
the dividend policy of these subsidiaries. Based & RE 2N & E 1 5% = Mt
on the assessment of the management, as of 31 % AR EREK - BIEEIE
December 2016, the undistributed profits amounted to ZF (. HE T — NE+ —
RMB559,708,000 (2015: RMB388,759,000) will not be ﬂ =+—H ' xOoFREFEEA
distributed in the foreseeable future. R #559,708,000t (—&E—H

F: AR #388,759,0007T) #&
TERAITER A REK DB
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5 AR BT L

31 December 2016 —Z— "+ _-_HA=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kR A AN AAREFHIR)

26 Capital, reserves and dividends 26 £ RERERE
(@ Movements in components of equity (@) EmEBHEH
The reconciliation between the opening and closing NEFEEHFERSIHMHDEFET
balances of each component of the Group’s K EREHNEESF NS O
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated mEBK - AR A= ER S 5D
statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes in NEYVEFRNEFFE BT
the Company’s individual components of equity between /N

the beginning and the end of the year are set out below:

Equity
settled Accumulated
share-based loss/
Share Share Exchange Other payment Retained
capital premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
NEREEH
DRBRER  RiEE/
BA RGEE B HitfktE DES i REER st

Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RVB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
#i  AR®TT  AR%TT ARETR ARETR ARETR AR%TR ARMTR

260f) 264l 26di) 264

At1 January 2015 R-B-HE—F—B 7,908 652,240 (934) 66 8,813 (11,162) 656,931
Share issued under share  RIZBERRIERT BB TR

option schemes 224 16,144 - - (5,190) - 11,178
Equity settled share-based AR BB IR &

payment transactions ERRRRS - - - - 835 - 835
Profit for the year FREF - - - - - 58,224 58,224
Dividend approved in respect % & & it R &

of the previous year 2605)f) . - . . . (41,600) (1,6%9)
Other comprehensive income 1 2 EMA - - 40,683 - - - 40,683
As at 31 December 2015 R=Z2-ZF+-A=1+-H

and 1 January 2016 R-E-~E-H-H 8,132 668,384 39,749 66 4,458 5,363 726,152
Share issued under share  IRIZEERVERT BT R

option schemes 26(c)i) 17 7,907 - - (2,494) - 5,530
Equity settled share-based ~ MERESHARADA

payment transactions HERERRRS = = - - 1,658 - 1,658
Shares issued HEERTRE

for the Placement 26(c)/li) 356 136,920 - - - - 137,276
Loss for the year FREE - - - - - (2,851) (2,851)
Other comprehensive income £ fit 2 EMA - - 49,844 - - - 49,844
As at 31 December 2016 HR=F-A~"E+=A=1-H 8,605 813,211 89,593 66 3,622 2,512 917,609
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PR AR BT AL

31 December 2016 —E—RE+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kBB 18RI LA ARESIR)

26 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued) 26 ¥& - -HERRKRE (&

(b) Dividends (b) BRE
(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the () FAEMNELGREFEAR
Company attributable to the year |

2016 2015
= —E-EF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT R ARBET T

Final dividend proposed after ¥R & Hi 45 R 14

the end of the reporting BEAHKRER

period of RMB3.5 cents ARE3.5%

equivalent to HK3.9 (FBZER3.97810)

cents (2015: nil) (ZE—hF:FT)

38,151 =
The final dividend proposed after the end of the year RBEHR RAFEELER
has not been recognised as a liability as at the end BEZFRRIKE M ATER
of the reporting period. REE-
(ii) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (i) FAEHERZ(TZ L—1EE

Company attributable to the previous financial HEEENERAGRERFEA
year, approved and paid during the year. RE -

2016 2015
= aritd —FThF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARBTTT

Final dividend in respect of BAFABHER
the previous financial year, Sz E— M EE
approved and paid during the REIIRE (= — R &F:
year (2015: RMB4.06 cents &k AR #4.06% )
per share) - 41,699

20165 %% EHRMR (RE)ERAE 22]
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5 AR BT EE

31 December 2016 —E— "+ _-_HA=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kR A AN AAREFHIR)

26 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued) 26 B& - -H#ERRKRE (&)

(c) Share capital (c) B=
(i) Authorised and issued share capital () ZEREZTRE
Number of
Shares Amount
%14 & B &8
‘000 HK$’000
T T
Authorised: BN :
Ordinary shares BREE
of HK$0.01 each 0.018 L&A 50,000,000 500,000
Number of Nominal value of
shares ordinary shares
R#AEE EREREE
Note ‘000 HK$'000 RMB'000
/g3 T’ TAEL ARETT
Issued and fully paid: BRETRAR:
At 1 January 2015 R-Z—ha%—F—H 1,000,000 10,000 7,908
Shares issued under BEERARBER
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme  BE % &5t 2|3 17 it (7 (i) 27,945 279 224
At 31 December 2015 and RZZT—1F
1 January 2016 +ZA=+—8Ak
—E-"¥-HR—H 1,027,945 10,279 8,132
Shares issued under BEERAREE
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme BBk #Eat 21317 R 17 (i) 13,826 138 117
Shares issued for the Placement &t Hd & 217 % 13 (i) 40,000 400 356
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RF
+=-A=+—-H 1,081,771 10,817 8,605
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26 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

(c) Share capital (continued)

(ii)

(iir)

Shares issued under Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme

During the year, options were exercised to
subscribe for 13,826,000 ordinary shares in the
Company at a consideration of RMB5,530,400 all
of which was credited to share premium account
(2015: 27,945,000 shares at a consideration of
RMB11,178,000). RMB2,494,000 was transferred
from the equity settled share-based payment
reserve to the share premium account (2015:
RMB5,190,000).

Shares issued for the Placement

On 12 December 2016, an aggregate of
40,000,000 shares were allotted and issued
to Value Partners Hong Kong Limited and The
People’s Insurance Company (Group) of China
Limited at HKD3.90 per share. The net proceeds
after deducting placing commission, professional
fees and all related expenses,
RMB137,276,000.

is approximately

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

0

Share premium

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman
Islands, the funds in the share premium account of
the Company are distributable to the shareholders
of Company provided that immediately following
the date on which the dividends is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay
off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course
of business.

31 December 2016 ==
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&
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31 December 2016 —E—"F+_-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

26 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of
financial statements of operations outside Mainland
China which are dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies as set out in Note 1(u).

PRC Statutory reserve

As stipulated by regulations in the PRC, the
Company’s subsidiaries established and operated in
the Mainland China are required to appropriate 10%
of their after-tax-profit (after offsetting prior year
losses) as determined in accordance with the PRC
accounting rules and regulations, to the statutory
surplus reserve until the reserve balance reaches
50% of the registered capital. The transfer to this
reserve must be made before distribution of profits
to parent companies.

The statutory reserve can be utilised, upon approval
by the relevant authorities, to offset accumulated
losses or to increase capital of the subsidiary,
provided that the balance after such issue is not
less than 25% of its registered capital.

Other reserve

The other reserve of the Group as at 31 December
2016 and 2015 represents the difference between
(i) the carrying amount of share capital of QT
Great China; and (ii) the nominal value of the share
issued by the Company in exchange for all the
issued share capital of QT Great China under the
reorganisation of the Group completed on 26 June
2014.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2016
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31 December 2016 ZE—RE+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kBB 1EEAIN LA ARBESIR)

26 Ex  RERRE (&)

d) RENEERAR (&)

26 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(v) Equity settled share-based payment reserve (v) HEZZEURGEZEENT

(vi)

(vii)

The equity settled share-based payment reserve
comprises the portion of the grant date fair value
of unexercised shares options granted to the
directors and employees of the Group that has
been recognised in accordance with the accounting
policy adopted for share-based payments in Note

1(a)ii).

Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net
changes in the fair value of other financial assets
held by the Group as at the year end dates net of
deferred tax, and is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policies in Notes 1(g) and 1(k)(i).

Distributability of reserves

At 31 December 2016, the aggregate amount
of reserves (including share premium and
retained profits) available for distribution to
equity shareholders of the Company was
RMB815,723,000 (2015: RMB673,747,000).

(e) Capital management

The

Group’s primary objectives when managing capital

are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a

going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns

for its shareholder and benefits for other stakeholders,

by pricing products commensurately with the level of risk

and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

e

AR E AR BERN
B ERE NN T
1(q) (i) BT 8% Bt LA R% 10 A i
B SRR ) 5T BUR FE R
BRYAEBEEREEBZK
ITEERENRERABRAT
BEE M -

(vi) 2-FERE

AFEREREAEEA
REAMSRMEERFEH
MAFERTEEFE (N
BREERIE) - WIR R &
1(g) & A(K) (i) FT 8 & 5T B SR
BRI o

(vii) #ER 7 IREEL

R_E—RFE+-_A=+—
H - AiftoRFARQAR
BEABEANRGE (B2
B aEBERRE®F) R
A ARMS815,723,000
T(ZE—HF: ARK
673,747,0007T) °

() EXERE

AEEEEEANEEZRARR
REREBERELENEN B
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31 December 2016 —E—"F+_-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kB A AN AAREFIR)

26 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

(e) Capital management (continueq)

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between the
higher shareholder returns that might be possible with
higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure with reference
to its debt position. The Group’s strategy is to maintain
the equity and debt in a balanced position and ensure
there are adequate working capital to service its debt
obligations. The Group’s gearing ratio was 21.4% at 31
December 2016 (2015: 11.7%).

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

27 Financial risk management and fair values

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency
risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s business.
The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(@) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
trade and other receivables and deposits with banks.
Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis.
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27 Financial risk management and fair values
(continued)

(a) Credit risk (continued)

)

Trade and other receivables

For the year ended 31 December 2016, certain
amounts of sales were related directly to the related
parties (Note 29(b)).

The management considers that related parties
are under influence of the Group’s Controlling
Shareholder, hence no material credit risk exists on
sales to related companies.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual
credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit terms. These evaluations focus on
the customer’s history of making payments when
due and current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customer as well as
pertaining to the economic environment in which
the customer operates. These trade receivables are
due within 30 to 90 days from the date of billing.
Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from
customers.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer and therefore significant concentrations
of credit risk primarily arise when the Group has
significant exposure to individual customers. As
at 31 December 2016, 32.49% (2015: 16.88%) of
the total trade and bills receivables were due from
the Group’s largest customer, and 58.13% (2015:
61.12%) of the total trade and bills receivables were
due from the Group’s five largest customers.

31 December 2016 ==
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&
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31 December 2016 ==
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k&

—~NF+=-A=+—H

27 Financial risk management and fair values
(continued)

(@) Credit risk (continued)

U

Trade and other receivables (continued)

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by the carrying amount of each financial asset in
the consolidated statement of financial position after
deducting any impairment allowance.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from trade
and other receivables are set out in Note 15.

The Group derecognised bills receivable when
it transferred bank acceptance bills to suppliers
through endorsement. Bill holders in due
course preserve right of recourse against the
Group in case of dishonor of the bills. As at 31
December 2016, the outstanding balance of bills
endorsed with recourse totaled RMB65,099,000
(2015:RMB60,144,000),

Group’s exposure to credit risk. All of these bills are

which represents the

due within one year.

The Group only accepts bank acceptance bills
issued by major banks or banks with qualified rating
in the PRC and thus considers that the credit risk
associated with such bank acceptance bills to be
insignificant. The Group had not suffered any losses
in this respect during the year.

The Group does not provide financial guarantee
which would expose the Group to credit risk.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2016
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31 December 2016 ZE—RE+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kBB 1EEAIN LA ARBESIR)

27 TRIERERRK X VE
(%)

(a) FERB (&)

27 Financial risk management and fair values
(continued)

(a) Credit risk (continued)

(i) Deposits with banks
The Group mitigates its exposure to credit risk
by placing deposits with financial institutions with
established credit ratings. Given the high credit
ratings of the banks, management does not expect

(i) BRITIEH
AEBEREEENREE
B E R BT SORERE SR
o EmRIRTTHEEFNRR
o BEEERHEA ST

any counterparty to fail to meet its obligations. BT e NETEEE-
(b) Liquidity risk (b) RBESER
Individual operating entities within the Group are NEERWH E R §%,J%EE§
responsible for their own cash management, including ERBEHNIRESEE BEHEeE

the short term investment of cash surpluses and the

ﬁ%ﬂ’]’*&ﬁ}%&é&%’géﬁkuﬁ

raising of loans to cover expected cash demands, B HRAYIR & & Sk 0 S BGER
subject to approval by the board of directors when HETEE /K - BIIZBE
the borrowings exceed certain predetermined levels of BE=ait g

authority.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending covenants,
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and

AEBHWBERLEBRHERR
AE@*&E%%&% E}‘j}aﬂ'

adequate committed lines of funding from major financial 1% LEEFES @M}g@ﬁ }E1 B
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short HNEGEES  UEMNEEEER

and longer term.

All non-interest bearing financial liabilities of the Group
are carried at amount not materially different from their
contractual undiscounted cash flow and all the financial
liabilities are with maturities within one year or repayable
on demand as at 31 December 2016.

HHRBHESHFR -

HRMBESRAEER —FRE
MEEAR_E—ANF+=A
=T BHBEEZEXEE WAEE
WA RESREBETRER
my\’]ﬂiﬁﬁﬁfﬁﬂif/l EREN S
HEET E
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31 December 2016 ==&

27 Financial risk management and fair values

(continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued)

—~NF+=-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k&

SHEERIN UAARETIR)

(&)

(b)

The following tables show the remaining scheduled

maturities at the end of reporting period of the Group’s
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on

RBEERAR

TRINTAEEREE R RIZ

27 cREREER A FE

(%)

é\%@ﬂiﬁﬁfﬁfﬁiumzmiﬂ%

B (BRRE

WF K (B F

B RBERHE B AR BITH A R
AtEMF B BT ETEE

3

rates current at the end of the reporting period): HAZ¥E 15 -
Total
Total contractual
contractual undiscounted
undiscounted cash flow/
cash flow/ more than 1
within 1 year year but less Carrying
or on demand than 2 years amount
BRRER
BNRBE RERELE
ReRBAE/ BB -5
—FRFEER B E W F RREE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT AREFIT AREFIT
Bank borrowings RITERK 336,665 - 335,432
Trade and other payables B 5 & H o e ZIE 2,592,781 - 2,592,781
At 31 December 2016 RZE—R
—R= 2,929,446 - 2,928,213
Bank borrowings RITIE K 143,110 - 142,164
Trade and other payables B 5 & E b e ZE 622,053 - 622,053
At 31 December 2015 R-_F—HF
R = 765,163 - 764,217
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27 Financial risk management and fair values
(continued)

(c)

(d)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from bank
borrowings. As at 31 December 2016 and 31 December
2015, the Group does not obtain any bank borrowings at
variable interest rates. Borrowings issued at fixed rates
expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk. Details
of the interest rates and terms of bank borrowings are
disclosed in Note 20.

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
bank borrowings, and sales and purchases which give
rise to loan balances, cash balances, receivables, and
payables that are denominated in a foreign currency,
i.e. a currency other than the functional currency of
the operations to which the transactions relate. The
currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily USD and
RMB.

(i) Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s major
exposure at the end of each reporting period to
currency risk arising from recognised assets and
liabilities denominated in a currency other than
the functional currency of the Group to which they
relate. For presentation purposes, the amounts of
the exposure are shown in Renminbi, translated
using the spot rate at the end of each reporting

period.
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31 December 2016 —E— "+ _-_HA=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kR A AN AAREFHIR)

27 Financial risk management and fair values 27 €RIEREE N A F¥E

(continued) (#&
(d) Currency risk (continued) (d) E¥ @ (&)
(i) Exposure to currency risk (continueqd) () E¥EppRE(EZ)
usD RMB
EYH ARH

2016 2015 2016 2015
—B-RE —ZE-RfF —E-RE —Z-hfF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT NS AR%TT NS

Cash and cash equivalents & kRS EY 625 42,961 881 6,165
Pledged bank deposits EERRITER - = = =
Trade and other receivables B 5 & E b fE Y 708 66,384 = = =
Trade and other payables & 5 & E ft fE 5178 (1,656,508) (555,070) - -
Bank loans and borrowings $R77 & & f& 5% (20,395) (88,164) (50,000 (54,000)
Gross exposure to EMERAEER

currency risk (1,609,894) (600,273) (49,119) (47,835)
Notional amounts of 0B RATHE K
exchange rate derivatives %&£ 901,810 147,311 = =
~ Forward contracts —BHEH 17,342 147,311 - -
- Option contracts —HEAY 884,468 = = =
Net exposure to ERERAEFE
currency risk (708,084) (452,962) (49,119 (47,835)
(i)  Sensitivity analysis (i) BEE S HT
The following table indicates the instantaneous TREFVNAREB KRB R
change in the Group’s profit after tax (and retained (RRBHAMEEBELES
profits) and other component of consolidated equity EREZS E A ER D (AL
that would arise if foreign exchange rates to which SN PE 3R 70 3 25 BA oK (R 3% A
the Group has significant exposure at the end of KAy H B 8 12/ = A&
the reporting period had changed at that date, e BREMEEMESE S
assuming all other risk variables remained constant. RIFE) BN & &) o
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31 December 2016 ZE—RE+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kBB 1EEAIN LA ARBESIR)

27 Financial risk management and fair values 27 €RIEREE R A F¥E

(continued) (&
(d) Currency risk (continued) (d) E¥mEb (&)
(i)  Sensitivity analysis (continued) (i) HBEZH (&)
2015
—E-0%
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) [Si(-l 8l (decrease) Effect

in foreign  Effect on W T in foreign Effect on on other
(O EULI iU g oW Il exchange  profit after  component

rates tax  of equity rates tax of equity

SHEE X HEs RENEES HEn

R/ HRHE HtHoH R/ HERE®E EfHHH

(FR) BFFE 24 (TB) &NFE 7

% RMB’000 RMB’000 %  RMB'000  RMB’000

ARBTT AR®TrR ARBTT ARETTT

usD XL 5 (30,094) - 5 (25,512) -

(5) 30,094 - () 25512 -

RMB ARE 5 (2,051) - 5 (1,958) -

5) 2,051 L (5) 1,058 =
Results of the analysis above represent an Pt STy R AL T ANE
aggregation of the instantaneous effects on BB S E NG
the Group’s profit after tax and retained profits T3 18 755 | N2 AR B8 et 71 &9 B B
measured in the respective functional currencies, FE BT E R HREH
translated into Renminbi at the exchange rate ruling AR TEERBLE B AR

as at the end of the respective reporting periods for 2SI == | Bl == )

presentation purposes.
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31 December 2016 —Z— "+ _-_HA=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kB A AN AAREFIR)

27 Financial risk management and fair values 27 €RIEREE N A FE
(continued) (#&
(d) Currency risk (continued)

(d) E¥ @b (£Z)

(i)  Sensitivity analysis (continued) (i) BEEZH (F)

234

The sensitivity analysis above assumes that
the change in foreign exchange rates had been
applied to re-measure those financial instruments
held by the Group which expose the Group to
foreign currency at the end of the respective
reporting periods, including inter-company
payables an receivables within the Group which are
denominated in a currency other than the functional
currencies of the lender or the borrower. The
analysis excludes differences that would result from
the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations into the group’s presentation currency.
The analysis has been performed on the same basis
for 2015.

(e) Fair value

(i)  Financial instruments carried at fair value

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s financial instruments measured at the
end of the reporting period on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy
as defined in IFRS 13, Fair value measurement.
The level into which a fair value measurement
is classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs used in
the valuation technique as follows:

e Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs i.e. Unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities at the measurement date

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2016
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR AR BT AL

31 December 2016 —E—RE+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kBB 1EEAIN LA ARBESIR)

27 Financial risk management and fair values 27 €RIEREE R A F{E

(continued) (#&
(e) Fair value (continued) (e) AFE(#&)
(i)  Financial instruments carried at fair value () BAFEIRYEHTA
(continued) (&)
e Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using o EL2EE : FHEH2
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which i A (Bl Kk eE=EER
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant [E 45 1 & 7] B8 5= g A 2
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are BRI RFEREAT
inputs for which market data are not available R ABIETEN
NFE AR E R A
HERAEMSEENG
A BE
° Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using ° HZIBE:-FHEKR
significant unobservable inputs Al E R ABIEst =
A F1E
The Group has a team headed by the assistant NEEBE — BB SEER)
chief financial officer performing valuations for ALY E XY S/ T A
the financial instruments, including other financial (BFESBEEANTEEZLF
assets which are categorised into Level 2 of the BR2NEMERMEE)E
fair value hierarchy. The team reports directly to the 1TIE1E - % BB ' 2R
chief financial officer. A valuation report with analysis 4aBEGR A o PAR SR HATK 12
of changes in fair value measurement is prepared at B N ETEE I DT
the end of each reporting period, and is reviewed ML ERE - I H S aes
and approved by the chief financial officer. N E

Fair value measurement as at

31 December 2016 categorised into
R-ZB-AF+=A=+-HW
AYLEHELEAR

2016 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
“E-RE B &1 &2 B3
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETR ARETR AR®T T

Assets: EE:
Derivative financial assets  $TE & BEE
- Foreign currency —SMEHES 4
option contracts 126,867 - 126,867 -
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5 AR BT EE

31 December 2016 —E—"F+_-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kR A AN AAREFHIR)

27 cREREER QA FE

==
=
(/r'/E\

DV EE)

27 Financial risk management and fair values
(continued)

(e) Fair value (continued) (e)

236

(i)  Financial instruments carried at fair value

() BRAFEIRYZHTA

(continued) (%)
Fair value measurement as at
31 December 2015 categorised into
RZE—RAF+-A=+—HH
AFEHEHES

2015 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

—Z-1f ER1 B2 E#&3

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETTT ARETT ARETTT

Assets: BE:
Other financial assets HtheMEE
- Foreign currency —NERBAH
forward contracts 600 = 600 =

The fair value of foreign currency forward contracts
in Level 2 is determined by using the forward
exchange rates at the end of the reporting period
and comparing to the contractual rates, with the
resulting value discounted back to the present
value.

The fair value of foreign exchange option contracts
in Level 2 is determined by using the Black-
Scholes-Merton model. The observable inputs for
valuation were described in Note 17.

(ii)  Fair value of financial assets and liabilities
carried at other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are
not materially different from their fair values as at 31
December 2016.
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PR AR BT AL

31 December 2016 ZE—RE+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kBB 1EEAIN LA ARBESIR)

28 Commitments 28 AiE
(a) Capital commitments (a) BAXREE
Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2016 RZE—RFE+=_A=+—H
not provided for in the financial statements were as MAEEENRNY KRR L EST
follows: REBENEREAENT :

2015

—E-KF —T—hF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®B TR AR¥ETTT

Contracted for B 5T 4) 51,103 58,915

(b) Operating lease payments (b) REHEMNIR

As at 31 December 2016, the total future minimum lease RZEBE—RFt+_A=1+—8"
payments under non-cancellable operating leases were RIE D A BUEE & 2 4 e /Y

payable as follows: ARFEEEMNRBTBLOT :

2016 2015

ZE-REF —T—hF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT R ARET T

Within 1 year 1F R 1,969 595

After 1 year but within 5 years 1B BRSFER 1,477 696

3,446 1,291
The Group leases a number of properties under NEFERBEIKLSHLYEE %18
operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial ME-HHY— YT AEHH1IE2
period of 1 to 2 years, at the end of which period all F P R AR AHARE R
terms are renegotiated. None of the leases includes fEE - HAHY T BEXAEE -

contingent rentals.
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A 5 AR BT RE

31 December 2016 —Z— "+ _-_HA=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kB A AN AAREFIR)

29 EXBABARS

B 1tk = B 765 i 5% EL {th 3B 10 5 BR #O R
BOAEMIN REETZATEX

29 Material related party transactions

In addition to the related party information disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group entered

238

into the following significant related party transactions:

Name of related parties

RBAHE £8

BT RS

Relationship with the Group
B2 5 E A B R

- Heyuan CK* (‘BB Al (5 £ it sk & OnR) AR A F))

—mRAER ([AErBEERMRE CTR)BRAAE])

— Guangzhou CK Telecom Limited (“Guangzhou CK”)
(‘BEMNARREERNZEER QR

—BMNARERMZERRAR ([EMEAT])

— Van Telecom Limited (“Van Telecom PRC”)
(‘MEL B AR AR

—HERRRERRA] ([MELRERE])

— C-Flex Electronic (Heyuan) Ltd.*(“C-Flex Electronic”)
(AEEF OCR)BRAR

-AEEFOTR)BRAR ([BEEF])

— CK Telecom Asia Pacific Ltd

—CK Telecom Asia Pacific Ltd

— Chengdu CK Technology Limited* (“Chengdu CK”)
(‘B EBPE R BB R A )

—BE TR RHEAR A A ([EEEA )

The English translation of the companies’ names is for reference
only. The official names of these companies are in Chinese.
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Controlled by Mr. He Ningning
B fA] 28 28 S A

Controlled by key management
of the Group
HASEFZERA S
Controlled by Mr. He Ningning

F fa] B8 B8 ST A fE
Controlled by Mr. He Ningning

fa] 2 B ST A P
Controlled by Mr. He Ningning
M fA] 2 B ST A PR
Controlled by Mr. He Ningning
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PR AR BT AL

31 December 2016 —E—RE+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kBB 1EEAIN LA ARBESIR)

29 Material related party transactions 20 EXBEBARS (&

(continued)

(a) Key management personnel remuneration (@ EEEBEAETM
Key management personnel are those persons holding TEESEAEREFEZE
positions with authority and responsibility for planning, BEHEAERE  IEERITEARERH
directing and controlling the activities of the Group, TEE R R B 2 B RSy A
directly or indirectly, including the Company’s directors. T - BEAAGESE-
Remuneration for key management personnel of the NEEBFTEEEAEHFIEHE
group, including amounts paid to the Company’s ENANARIES (KM E6ET I
directors as disclosed in note 6 and certain of the BINETHESFMMES (10K
highest paid employees as disclosed in note 7, is as ST E )BT
follows:

2016 2015
= arat:d —FT0F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT T ARBFT
Short-term employee benefits 5 HA(E B & A 5,146 3,880
Post-employment benefits BB & 18 A 69 45
Equity compensation benefits % #E 6 (243 A 609 407
5,824 4,332

The above remuneration to key management personnel LM EEEBRAEHFMEN 8

is included in “staff costs” (Note 4(b)). TRKA] (MtaE4(b)) °
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A 5 AR BT RE

31 December 2016 —Z— "+ _-_HA=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kB A AN AAREFIR)

29 Material related party transactions 20 ERBEHARS (42
(continued)
(b) Transactions with related parties (b) HEBINKS
2016 2015
—E—XKF —T—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T AREFIT
Sales of products to EmET
— Heyuan CK — AR Al 70,219 69,158
Purchases of products from EmER
— C-Flex Electronic —AEETF 6,387 1,701
Service fee to X RBE T
— Guangzhou CK —EMEA - 84
Rental expenses to SHHEERS T
- Chengdu CK — B &P F Al 128 131
— Van Telecom PRC — M2 BHE A 588 =

716 131
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PR AR BT AL

31 December 2016 —E—RE+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kBB 1EEAIN LA ARBESIR)

29 Material related party transactions 20 EXBEBARS (&
(continued)
(c) Balances with related parties (c) ERRAEE T 46k
At 31 December 2016, the Group had the following RZEBE—FRE+=—_A=+—8"
balances with related parties. REBEHEBAM T HIARNERe
(i) Due from related parties () FEHEES
2016 2015
—E-XKF —T—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AR¥ETTT
Trade-related E 5 e
Trade receivables 2 5 e W RIAE
— Heyuan CK — AR g Al 3,894 13,546
(i) Due to related parties (i) ETEHS
2016 2015
—E—XE —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AREF T
Trade-related E 5 16
Trade and bills payable B RNRIEREMNEE
— C-Flex Electronic —AEET 1,170 =
— Van Telecom PRC — MR B - 203
1,170 203
The amounts due from/to related parties as at 31 R-E—RF+-_A=1+—
December 2016 and 31 December 2015 were B ER=—_ZEE—HRF+=A8
expected to be recovered/repaid within one year. =+—H - EW FER A
7 FIATEE KR — F A E
SIEE-
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A 5 AR BT RE

31 December 2016 —E—"F+_-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

29 Material related party transactions
(continued)

(d) Operating lease payments

(e)

As at 31 December 2016, the total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
are payable to Chengdu CK and Van Telecom PRC as

(BRARBEPI UAREIIR)

20 EXEBARS (&)

(d) ERERENRK

R-_ZE—RF+_A=+—8"
R 15 T AT BEE A8 & A 4 e AN K
B 78 A K ME &2 B A B A R 2R

follows: EHENKBTENOT :
2016 2015
= Aarat:d —FTHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T AREEF T
Within 1 year 1FE RN 1,062 595
After 1 year but within 5 years 1B EBREER 1,193 696
2,255 1,291

The Group leases a number of properties under
operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial
period of 1 to 2 years, at the end of which period all
terms are renegotiated. None of the leases includes
contingent rentals.

Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to
continuing connected transactions

The transactions in relation to sales of products to
Heyuan CK, purchases of products from Van Telecom
PRC and C-Flex Electronic as disclosed above constitute
connected transaction or continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).
The disclosures required by Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules are provided in the section headed “Continuing
Connected Transactions” of the Directors Report.
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PR AR BT AL

31 December 2016 —E—RE+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kBB 1EEAIN LA ARBESIR)

30 Company level statement of financial 30 ARIBHEMBRRE
position
2016 2015
—REF —T-RHE
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
/oK AR®T T ARSI T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries HEN B R A 11,965 10,307
Amount due from a subsidiary fEU—FRIH B R & KA 554,987 519,513
566,952 529,820
Current assets REEE
Amount due from a subsidiary & Uk — M B R & FRIE 351,258 189,925
Cash and cash equivalents BHENREEZEEY 4,357 7,827
355,615 197,752
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 & Hth B4 FR0E 4,958 1,420
Net current assets RBEEFE 350,657 196,332
Total assets less current BWEERARBAESE
liabilities 917,609 726,152
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BAXE HE
Share capital fi& A 26(c) 8,605 8,132
Reserves 1 26(a) 909,004 718,020
TOTAL EQUITY e 917,609 726,152
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors EEeR _T—+tHF=-A+"B&Z
on 16 March 2017. AEE FF ] B o
He Ningnin (EREES
, g' = Directors E=E
Wang Jiangiang FiE oA
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A 5 AR BT RE

31 December 2016 —Z— "+ _-_HA=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kB A AN AAREFIR)

31 EREFHEFH R H K

31 Significant accounting estimates and

244

judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The selection of critical accounting policies, the judgements
and other uncertainties affecting application of those policies
and the sensitivity of reported results to changes in condition
and assumptions are factors to be considered when reviewing
these financial statements. The principal accounting policies
are set forth in Note 1. The Group believes the following
critical accounting policies involve the most significant
judgements and estimates used in the preparation of these
financial statements.

(a) Impairment of trade and other receivables

The Group estimates the impairment allowances
for trade and other receivables by assessing the
recoverability based on credit history and prevailing
market conditions. This requires the use of estimates and
judgements. Allowances are applied to trade and other
receivables where events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the balances may not be collectible. Where
the expectation is different from the original estimate,
such difference will affect the carrying amounts of trade
and other receivables and thus the impairment loss in
the period in which such estimate is changed. The Group
reassesses the impairment allowances annually.
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PR AR BT AL

31 Significant accounting estimates and
judgements (continued)

(b) Net realisable value of inventories

()

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary
to make the sale. These estimates are based on the
current market conditions and the historical experience
of selling products with similar nature. Any change in the
assumptions would increase or decrease the amount of
inventories write-down or the related reversals of write-
down made in prior years and affect the Group’s net
assets value. The Group reassesses these estimates
annually.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

If circumstances indicate that the carrying value of
an asset may not be recoverable, the asset may
be considered “impaired”, and an impairment loss
may be recognised in profit or loss. The carrying
amounts of assets are reviewed periodically in order
to assess whether the recoverable amounts have
declined below the carrying amounts. These assets
are tested for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that their recorded carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. When such a decline
has occurred, the carrying amount is reduced to

recoverable amount.

31 December 2016 ==
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&

—~E+=A=+—A
SEEHI AARBFIR)

31 ERGFHEE RAM (&)

(b) EEMTEEFE

(c)
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B ZE A

M BERRERE

fid 15 0 BN & B H BR (B AJ B
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[E R 1E] - I 7] 4£ 1B 25 7 FE R
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A 5 AR BT RE

31 December 2016 ==
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k&

—~NF+=-A=+—H

31 Significant accounting estimates and
judgements (continued)

(c)

(d)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
(continued)

The recoverable amount is the greater of the fair value
less costs to sell and the value in use. In determining
the value in use, expected cash flows generated
by the asset are discounted to their present value,
which requires significant judgment relating to level of
sales volume, sales revenue and amount of operating
costs. The Group uses all readily available information
in determining an amount that is a reasonable
approximation of recoverable amount, including
estimates based on reasonable and supportable
assumptions and projections of sales volume, sales
revenue and amount of operating costs.

Depreciation and amortisation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives,
after taking into account the estimated residual value.
Intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis
over the estimated useful lives. The Group reviews the
estimated useful lives of the assets regularly in order to
determine the amount of depreciation and amortisation
expenses to be recorded during any reporting period.
The useful lives are based on the Group’s historical
experience with similar assets and taking into account
anticipated technological changes. The depreciation and
amortisation expenses for future periods are adjusted
prospectively if there are significant changes from
previous estimates.
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PR AR BT AL

31 December 2016 —E—RE+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kBB 1EEAIN LA ARBESIR)

32 Possible impact of amendments, new RN EBE_E—XRE+_H
standards and interpretations issued but =t+—BLEFECSHEMER
not yet effective for the year ended 31 REMWEET - T £ B2
December 2016 EBENTgEsE
Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the IASB HENEUHEHERTIEAE BB
has issued a number of amendments and new standards etEHAlLEe BhZEER R
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December HHETER| o2 E BT L] E AR
2016 and which have not been adopted in these financial BEE-ZE—AF A= BIE
statements. These include the following which may be FEEMRARER WRLETFHEK
relevant to the Group. WARKA HPBEA TR

SER@AE-

Effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after

RT5I Bz %5 E 0
SEHEEN
Amendments to IAS 7, Disclosure initiative 1 January 2017
B St ERE75 (BFIA) « HEEi 2 —T—+F—-H—H
Amendments to IAS 12, Income taxes — Recognition of deferred tax 1 January 2017
assets for unrealised losses
B gt EAFE1258 (BRI AR) - —FT—+F—H—H
P88 — Bt AR B3 5 18 1R 53 AR AL 1 IR B
IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers 1 January 2018
B B B S R 5 YR R B 1655 » B2 &7 5T & AYH) i 7 —E-NF—-H—H
IFRS 9, Financial Instruments (2014) 1 January 2018
BRI M EERNESR oM T A (ZF—HF) —T-NF—-H—H
Amendments to IFRS 2, Classification and measurement of share- 1 January 2018
based payment transactions
BB B I RS A B 25k (BRI A) - —T-NF—-H—H
KRG RBIEZER AKX Z 5K aE
IFRS 16, Leases 1 January 2019
BRI s SR 165 HE —T-NF—-—H—H
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A 5 AR BT RE

31 December 2016 —E—"F+_-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kB A AN AAREFIR)

32 Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2016 (continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments and new standards
is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far it
has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a
significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

33 Immediate and ultimate controlling party
As at 31 December 2016, the directors consider the
immediate controlling party of the Group to be QT Investment,

which is incorporated in the BVI, and the ultimate controlling
party of the Group to be Mr. He Ningning.
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